Public Document Pack

Resources Scrutiny Commission
(formally Business Change and Resources
Scrutiny Commission)
Agenda
Date: Thursday, 6 December 2018
Time: 4.00 pm
Venue: Committee Room 6, First Floor - City Hall, College Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR
Distribution:
Councillors: Stephen Clarke (Chair), Afzal Shah (Vice-Chair), Donald Alexander,
Mark Brain, John Goulandris, Margaret Hickman, Tim Kent, Sultan Khan,
Graham Morris, Steve Pearce and Clive Stevens
Copies to: Mike Jackson (Executive Director of Resources and Head of Paid Services),
Denise Murray (Service Director - Finance & Section 151 Officer), Tim Borrett (Director:
Policy, Strategy & ICT), Penny Fell, Simon Oliver, John Walsh (Director: HR, Workforce
and Organisational Design (Interim)), Mark Wakefield (Service Manager - Performance
& Infrastructure), Tony Whitlock, Sara Manix (DLT Support Manager), Jan Cadby (Risk
Manager), Johanna Holmes (Policy Advisor - Scrutiny), Tracy Mathews (Performance
Improvement Advisor).

Issued by: Johanna Holmes, Scrutiny Advisor
City Hall, PO Box 3167, Bristol, BS3 9FS
Tel: 0117 90 36898
E-mail: scrutiny@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Friday, 30 November 2018

Resources Scrutiny Commission (formally Business Change and Resources Scrutiny Commission) – Agenda

Agenda
1.

Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information

4pm
(Pages 5 - 6)

2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Declarations of Interest

To note any declarations of interest from the Councillors. They are asked to
indicate the relevant agenda item, the nature of the interest and in particular
whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest.
Any declarations of interest made at the meeting which is not on the register of
interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion.

4.

Minutes of the Previous Meeting and Action Sheet

To agree the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record.

5.

Scrutiny Work Programme

To note the work programme.

6.

Chair's Business

To note any announcements from the Chair

7.

(Pages 7 - 13)

Public Forum

Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item
Any member of the public or Councillor may participate in Public Forum. The
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at
the back of this agenda. Public Forum items should be emailed to
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk and please note that the following deadlines
will apply in relation to this meeting:Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the
meeting. For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in

(Pages 14 - 18)

Resources Scrutiny Commission (formally Business Change and Resources Scrutiny Commission) – Agenda

this office at the latest by 5 pm on Friday 30th November 2018.
Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the
working day prior to the meeting. For this meeting this means that your
submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on
Wednesday 5th December 2018.

8.

A New Commercialisation Strategy for Bristol City Council

4.20pm

Plus a verbal Commercialisation & Innovation Working Group up-date from
Members

(Pages 19 - 24)

9.

4.35pm

Global Parliament of Mayors Report

(Pages 25 - 62)
10. Brexit Scenario Assessment

4.50pm
(Pages 63 - 125)

11. Council Tax Base Report

5.15pm
(Pages 126 - 137)

12. Collection Fund (Surplus/Deficit) Report
(Pages 138 - 147)
13. Resources Performance Report Quarter 2

5.50pm
(Pages 148 - 157)

14. Task and Finish Group Up-dates (verbal)

6pm

15. Resources Period 6 Finance Information

6.10pm
(Pages 158 - 167)

16. ICT Systems and Strategy - Not for publication
That under s.100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded
from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of
Part 1 of schedule 12A of the Act.
This item is not for publication and will be forwarded to Members separately.

6.25pm

Agenda Item 1
www.bristol.gov.uk

Public Information Sheet
Inspection of Papers - Local Government
(Access to Information) Act 1985
You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at www.bristol.gov.uk.
You can also inspect papers at the City Hall Reception, College Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR.
Other formats and languages and assistance
For those with hearing impairment
Other o check with and
You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer. Please give as much notice as
possible. We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular
meeting.
Committee rooms are fitted with induction loops to assist people with hearing impairment. If you
require any assistance with this please speak to the Democratic Services Officer.
Public Forum
Members of the public may make a written statement ask a question or present a petition to most
meetings. Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee and be available in the meeting
room one hour before the meeting. Please submit it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk or
Democratic Services Section, City Hall, College Green, Bristol BS1 5UY. The following requirements
apply:



The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.
The question is received no later than 5pm three clear working days before the meeting.

Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. If the statement is longer
than this, then for reasons of cost, only the first sheet will be copied and made available at the
meeting. For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine articles
that may be attached to statements.
By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the committee. This information will
also be made available at the meeting to which it relates and placed in the official minute book as a
public record (available from Democratic Services).

Page 4

www.bristol.gov.uk

We will try to remove personal information such as contact details. However, because of time
constraints we cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement
contains information that you would prefer not to be in the public domain. Public Forum statements
will not be posted on the council’s website. Other committee papers may be placed on the council’s
website and information in them may be searchable on the internet.
Process during the meeting:







Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions
that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned.
There will be no debate on statements or petitions.
The Chair will call each submission in turn. When you are invited to speak, please make sure that
your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would like Members to consider. This will
have the greatest impact.
Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions. This may be as
short as one minute.
If there are a large number of submissions on one matter a representative may be requested to
speak on the groups behalf.
If you do not attend or speak at the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken
your statement will be noted by Members.

For further information about procedure rules please refer to our Constitution
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution
Webcasting/ Recording of meetings
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all Full
Council and Cabinet meetings and some other committee meetings are now filmed for live or
subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except
where there are confidential or exempt items) and the footage will be available for two years. If you
ask a question or make a representation, then you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to have
given your consent to this. If you do not wish to be filmed you need to make yourself known to the
webcasting staff. However, the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means
that persons attending meetings may take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and
report on the meeting (Oral commentary is not permitted during the meeting as it would be
disruptive). Members of the public should therefore be aware that they may be filmed by others
attending and that is not within the council’s control.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4
Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Resources Scrutiny Commission
23 March 2017 at 9.30 am

Members Present:Councillors: Graham Morris (Chair), Donald Alexander, Charlie Bolton, Tom Brook, Barry Clark,
Helen Godwin, Geoff Gollop, Tim Kent and Afzal Shah
Officers in Attendance:Denise Murray (Service Director Finance), Andrea Dell (Service Manager Democratic Engagement),
Tara Dillon (Service Manager, Programme Management Office), Merlin Jones (Project Manager),
Johanna Holmes (Policy Advisor - Scrutiny), Tracy Mathews (Performance Improvement Advisor) and
Louise deCordova (Democratic Services Officer)

1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
The Chair led welcome and introductions.
2. Apologies for Absence
Apologies were received from Cllr Stephen Clarke. Cllr Charlie Bolton attended in substitute.
3. Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
4. Chair's Business
The Chair advised that Item 13, the Resources Directorate Risk Register had been rescheduled for April’s
meeting.
The Service Director, Finance confirmed that the April report would include an in depth work schedule
and deliverability plan.

Page 6

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

5. Minutes of the Previous Meeting
The Commission Resolved:
To agree the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record.
6. Action Sheet
Members considered the update on actions from the previous meeting.
In respect of the Commission’s referral to Cabinet, to express continued support for the Social Value
Policy, the Chair confirmed that the Social Value Policy objectives had been endorsed by the Mayor.
7. Public Forum
There had been no public forum received.
8. Work Programme
Members to continue to flag any issues for a future Scrutiny Work Programme, however, it was noted
that Scrutiny was not expected to continue in its current format.
The Service Manager, Democratic Engagement outlined ongoing discussions by Councillors to explore the
future structure of Scrutiny, with support from officers and the LGA, which had commenced with a
‘hothouse’ workshop and would continue with a further session on 5 April.
9. Capturing Commercialisation
The Commission considered a report of the Service Director, Finance, which described the vision for a
process to funnel, explore, assess and deliver commercial ideas. Members were asked to consider and
comment on the proposed Commercialisation Greenhouse Process.
In discussion and in response to Members questions, the following points were raised:
a. A commercial ethos and need for a commercial return should be balanced with a need for social
value outcomes. The Council may benefit from being uniquely placed to maximise social value
over profit concerns.
b. Exposure to risk should be minimised through understanding of the acceptable parameters
c. Communication and messaging should demonstrate that ideas will be respected, seriously
considered and assessed. However, it was important to be clear and manage expectations

Page 7

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

d. There should be a focus on quick wins to prove the concept works.
e. The submissions process should be agile and flexible and where possible, not stifle innovation,
embrace new technologies as well as the imagination of the proposers, a mixed approach
including Dragon’s Den styled sales pitches
f. Each submission could contain as little or as much detail as available and not necessarily
constrained by templates. It was recognised that some proposers may wish to submit an idea and
move on, whilst others may wish to be fully involved or take a lead in developing an idea.
g. There was a need to process ideas at pace, and evaluate against established parameters working
with a member panel, supported by a group of internal volunteers and university partners to
provide research and benchmarking.
h. Feedback would be an important part of the process, when ideas were discounted it was
important to tell people why.
i.

Existing income generation work carried out in a business as usual context was currently out of the
scope of this process and potentially a different piece of work. However, it was recognised that
there may be opportunities within departments to expand and maximise their work and may
benefit from a greater understanding of departmental income and cost.

j.

Consideration could be given to reward and incentives for ideas that progressed to fruition

k. The Service Director Finance to consider organisations such as Set Squared, Natwest or the Engine
Shed which could be invited to share their expertise for how ideas are cultivated and to act as a
catalyst for the Council’s own scheme.
The Commission Resolved:
To note the report, comments and actions arising.

(Cllr Godwin and Cllr Shah joined the meeting)
10. Change Governance and Support
The Commission considered the report of the Interim Service Director, HR, Change and Communications.
Members were asked to consider and comment on the Change Governance and Lifecycle slides presented
by the Project Manager.
In response to Members questions, the following points were raised:

Page 8

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

a. It was noted that the new Change Governance principles were more robust, with increased focus
on regular monitoring of key milestones, the recognition of and work to address issues before
they go ‘red’, and the regular input of professional views from officers from Change, Finance and
HR.
b. It was planned that best practice training would be delivered to officers to support the new
governance principles.
c. Scrutiny involvement was critical and the mechanism for Members to raise questions in the public
domain needed to be a fundamental part of the governance structure to ensure transparency and
accountability. A question was raised whether a member of OSM should sit on the Delivery
Working Group. Action: Craig Cheney/Denise Murray
The Commission Resolved:
To note the report, comments and actions arising.
11. Resources Finance Information : Period 9
The Commission considered a report from the Service Director, Finance. The report detailed the relevant
Resources extracts taken from the Period 9 Finance Report.
In response to Members questions the following points were raised:
a. A root and branch review of ICT Licences would continue to identify savings and ensure ownership
was transferred to departmental budgets, although central oversight would remain.
b. Concern was raised that departmental litigation costs were met by Legal Services budgets in all
cases. The Legal Services Business Model was still to be fully defined to understand the internal
and external cost nuances. A Member suggested that there may be more that Councillors could
do to understand the financial litigation consequences of Committee decision making. It was
confirmed that there were plans for Member Development supported by the LGA and HR Learning
and Development, which could involve a refresh of Members’ role, remit and responsibilities.
The Commission Resolved:
To note the report and comments arising.
12. Resources Performance Report : Quarter 3
The Commission considered the Resources Performance Report for Quarter 3 of 2016/17, presented by
the Performance Improvement Advisor. All indicators aimed to show the progress made to support the
delivery of the Corporate Plan 2014/17.

Page 9

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

In response to Members questions, in respect of performance measures that were ‘well below target’
(red) the following points were raised:
Finance: BU355 Percentage of invoices paid on time (BCC)
a. Members raised concern that delayed payment of to SMEs could result in a reputational risk for
the Council, discourage SMEs from working with the Council and posed a risk to the livelihood of
SME suppliers. It was noted that most SMEs were paid within 30 days of the invoice date. Officers
to provide data of where payments exceeded 60 days to understand the impact of this measure
on SME suppliers and where improvements should be targeted. Action: Tracy Mathews
HR/Change: BU208 Percentage of employees with a completed 'My Performance' 15/16 review form (BCC)
b. Members raised concern that almost half of employees had not completed a review. It was
deemed to be an important target that needed to be monitored however the performance to date
suggested a lack of will within the management structure. It was noted that there had been
significant change for staff across the organisation and this may have contributed to the number.
Officers to provide more narrative to support reasons for this result. Action: Tracy Mathews
c. It was noted the Commission should also have a focus on the ‘below target’ (amber) measures in
an effort to take action to prevent them becoming ‘well below target’ (red).
d. It was noted that the organisations performance monitoring and reporting would be refreshed in
the new financial year, which would see performance targets which were aligned to the Mayors
vision and related to Mayoral and Chief Executive priorities. These would then inform
departmental business plans and performance targets.
The Commission Resolved:
To note the report, comments and actions arising.
Meeting ended at 12.00 pm

CHAIR __________________

Page 10

Bristol City Council
Resources Scrutiny Commission
Action Sheet
September 2018
Resources Scrutiny Commission Action Sheet 2018/2019
Agenda
Item

Title of Report/
Description

Action and Deadline

Responsible
Officer / Member

Action taken and date
completed

ACTION: Officers to ensure that the role of
Scrutiny is specifically identified in the
Programme Governance Diagram (in the
Programme Board’s Terms of Reference
contained in the confidential papers).

Steve Somerfield

Officers agreed to ensure
‘Scrutiny’ is included

ACTION: Officers to confirm who the
independent third-party board member is once
they have been appointed and if they can come
to the next Commission meeting.
ACTION: an up-date report to be brought to
next meeting

Steve Somerfield

Officers to let Members know
who this is when they have
been confirmed.

Penny Fell

ACTION: The issue of disaggregation - Officers
agreed to make it clear whether the information
presented to members is directorate based or
cross-cutting in future.
ACTION: The Chair requested a representative
of Legal Services attend the next meeting to
discuss this Legal Service’s spend on external
barristers.

Tracy Matthews

A further report will be
brought to the 6th December
Scrutiny Commission meeting
Officers have noted this point
for future reference

24th September 2018
8.

ICT Systems and Strategy

Page 11
9.

Commercialisation and Income
Generation

10.

Resources Directorate Quarterly
Performance Report (Quarter 1
- 2018/19)

Johanna Holmes

Due to the full agenda at the
next Commission meeting, the
Chair has agreed to discuss this
separately with Legal Services
in the first instance.

Page 12

11

Resources Directorate Risk
Register Update

12

2018/19 Period 3 Forecast
Outturn Report – Resources
Extract

ACTION: Officers to provide both the full set of
indicators and a shortened summary at the next
opportunity.

Performance
Improvement Officer

Officers have confirmed they
will do this when a report is
next brought to the
commission
Chair to confirm

ACTION: Cllr Clarke and Cllr Stephens said they
would approach the HR Committee about the
possibility of providing an update report on
‘workforce’ to scrutiny at the end of the year.
ACTION: A report on Brexit contingencies plans
to come to the next meeting.

Councillors Clarke and
Stevens

Director of Policy and
Strategy

A report will be brought to the
December Scrutiny
Commission meeting

ACTION: the role of the scrutiny commission to
be defined with regards to scrutinising
Corporate Finances or the Resources
Directorate finances only.

Scrutiny Advisor / Chair
of the Commission

Lead Members to discuss and
confirm

Scrutiny Work Programme 2018 / 2019
Adults, Children and
Education Scrutiny
Commission

Communities Scrutiny
Commission

Growth and
Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission

Resources Scrutiny
Commission

Overview & Scrutiny
Management Board

July 2018
26th July, 6pm
Annual Business Report
Joint Local Transport Plan
Bristol Transport Strategy
Cllr Threlfall Q&A / discussion
session
Trusts and Mutualisation
Report
Air Quality

August 2018

Page 13

13th August, 9.30 am
Housing Company (closed
briefing and Q&A session for
Commission Members and
OSMB)

September 2018
24th September, 3pm
ICT Systems and Strategy

3rd September
Arena Cabinet Paper

Commercialisation and
Income Generation
Annual Business Report

Companies Governance
Review – information only
Creation of the Housing
Company – information only
Bristol Energy Operational
Plan

Finance Report
Directorate Performance
Report (KPI’s)

Agenda Item 5

10th September, 10am
Waste:
 Bristol Waste Company
 Cleanliness of city / clean
streets campaign –
update
 Enforcement
Community Safety statistics
(Safer Bristol)
Directorate Performance
Report (KPIs)

Adults, Children and
Education Scrutiny
Commission

Communities Scrutiny
Commission

Growth and
Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission

Resources Scrutiny
Commission

Overview & Scrutiny
Management Board

Risk Register (Corporate)

October 2018
25th October 4pm MQT &
5pm OSMB
Equalities Policy & Strategy

Thurs, 18th October, 5pm
Strengthening Families
Programme and Adverse
Childhood Experiences
Children’s Centres

Corporate Performance
Report

Page 14

Suicide (University) Clusters
Directorate Performance
Report (KPIs)
Directorate Risk Register

Corporate Risk Register
Standing item – Chair’s
Updates

November 2018
19th November, 2pm

12th November 10.00 am

29th November, 5pm

Better Lives Programme
 Implementation
 Delayed Transfers of Care
 Recommendations from
the Adult Social Care
Scrutiny Task Group
Female Genital Mutilation
(FGM)
Public Health

Housing:
 Private rented sector /
HMO regulation
 Tackling housing crisis
 Vehicle Dwellers

Highways Scheme Delivery
Report

Community Safety Statistics
(Safer Bristol)
Risk Register

Harbour Review
City Leap Project

Directorate Performance
Report (KPI’s)

Directorate Performance
Report (KPI’s)

Directorate Risk Register
(TBC)

Risk Register

Tues 27th November
(4pm MQT / 5pm OSMB)
Libraries – Positioning Paper

Local High Streets –
Positioning Paper
Standing item – Chair’s
Updates
Information only item Household Waste Recycling
Centre planned at Hartcliffe
Way
Bristol Waste Company
Business Plan (part exempt)
Bristol Energy Company

Adults, Children and
Education Scrutiny
Commission

Communities Scrutiny
Commission

Growth and
Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission

Resources Scrutiny
Commission

Overview & Scrutiny
Management Board
Trading Position (exempt)

December 2018

Page 15

4pm, 6th December 2018
Commercialisation & Income
Generation - Update
 Plus: Commercialisation &
Innovation Working
Group – Up-date
ICT Systems and Strategy
Verbal up-date (possible
exempt item)
Council Tax Base Report
Collection Fund
Surplus/Deficit Report
Brexit Impact Assessment
Report
Global Parliament of Mayors
Resources Period 6 Finance
Information – Standing Item
Q2 Risk Register
Q2 Performance Report

January 2019
28th January, 2pm

14th January, 10 am

January (Budget Scrutiny)

Thrive mental health – annual
review
Mental Health
Recommissioning and
Supporting People Services

CIL (update/review of new CIL
committee arrangements)
Customer services
update/review




Winter resilience update

Public Toilets

4pm, 10th January
4pm, 14th January

Thurs 17th January
(4pm MQT / 5pm OSMB)
Provisional item - Companies
Business Plans
Provisional Item - Corporate
Performance Report

Provisional Item - Corporate
Risk Register

Adults, Children and
Education Scrutiny
Commission
Directorate Performance
Report (KPI’s)

Directorate Risk Register
(TBC)

Communities Scrutiny
Commission

Growth and
Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission

Resources Scrutiny
Commission

Standing Items TBC:
 Community Safety
statistics (Safer Bristol)
 Directorate Performance
Report (KPIs)
 Directorate Risk Register
Housing Allocations / Home
Choice Review

Overview & Scrutiny
Management Board
Standing item – Chair’s
Updates

Provisional item – One City
Plan

February 2019

Page 16
March 2019
25th (tbc) March, 4pm
School Places – Provision,
Expansion and Admissions
Bristol Hospital Education
Services
School readiness risks and
action plans
Learning City update
Care Leavers
SEND Scrutiny task group
update report
Directorate Performance

21st February, 5pm

28th February, 4pm

Harbourside Regeneration
and Flood Strategy

Workforce (TBC)

Cumberland Basin / Weston
Harbour
Innovative Housing Methods
(TBC)

February TBC (13th Feb to 4th
March)
Provisional Item – Energy
Company Business Plan

Report (KPI’s)
Directorate Risk Register
(TBC)

April 2019
April TBC
Provisional Item - Corporate
Performance Report

Provisional Item - Corporate
Risk Register
Standing item – Chair’s
Updates

Items to be Scheduled
Quality Accounts

Cross-Border Planning Issues
(provisional – TBC)

Risk Register

Page 17

Climate Change / Resilience
ID (TBC)
Local Plan (TBC possible
Planning Led Meeting in next
municipal year)
BTS (TBC)

Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(Bristol, North Somerset and South Gloucestershire (BNSSG) : Sustainable Transformation Partnership)
26th September , 2pm (Hosted by South Gloucestershire)
Items in respect of the ‘Healthier Together’ Programme (to be confirmed)

Progress Report on
Implementation of the
Equality and Inclusion
Strategy. Summer 2019.

Agenda Item 8
Resources Scrutiny Commission – Report

Resources Scrutiny
Commission
6th December 2018
Report of:

Director: Commercialisation and Citizens

Title:

New Commercialisation Strategy for Bristol City Council

Ward:

N/A

Officer Presenting Report: Penelope Fell, Director: Commercialisation and Citizens
Contact Telephone Number: 0117

Recommendation
That the Resources and Scrutiny Commission note:
1. Progress on the development, implementation and evaluation of the council’s New
Commercialisation Strategy and Programme requested at Resources Scrutiny Commission (RSC) on 24
September 2018.
The Report addresses four significant issues, as follows:
1. Reference is made to the Director: Commercialisation and Citizens scoping and assessment of
previous council activity to commercialise service provision.
2. Provides detail on how the outcomes of the Director’s scoping and assessment exercises were
considered by attendees at a Commercialisation Summit held on 7 November 2018 and sets out the
Summit’s recommended actions to make the council more business-like through a New
Commercialisation Strategy and Programme.
3. Outlines the resulting New Commercialisation Strategy and Programme to both support council
commercialisation development needs and build commercialisation capability, capacity, and
competency.
4. Recommends the next steps needed to implement New Commercialisation Strategy and Programme.

1 18
Page

Resources Scrutiny Commission – Report

1. SUMMARY
This Report sets out further progress on the development, implementation and evaluation of the council’s
New Commercialisation Strategy and Programme as requested at Resources Scrutiny Commission (RSC)
held 24 September 2018.
2. BACKGROUND
The RSC will recall discussion at their meeting on 24 September 2018 when the Director: Commercialisation
and Citizens reported progress on her scoping and assessment phases of a 100-Day Action Plan to reshape
and commercialise council services together with the steps needed to begin to implement corporate
Commercialisation plans that meet the Mayor’s and Council’s objectives.
At that meeting the Director presented an evidence base that concluded:
 first, the council should tackle internal capability, capacity and competencies that were either
impeding commercialisation efficiency savings or were preventing the council fully exploiting the
external opportunities that exist to secure income growth through a council-wide
Commercialisation Strategy and Programme;
 second, the New Commercialisation Strategy and Programme should have a limited number of
strategic aims to replace the plethora of commercial aspirations, innovations, methodologies and
ideas that have appeared inside the council;
 third, each aim needs to be supported by SMART objectives and activities: each objective and
activity needs to have ascribed to it individual officer responsibility for delivery and the date that is
to be achieved; and future approval of business case development and submission should depend
on a direct ‘read-across’ to these aims, objectives and activities;
 fourth, the New Commercialisation Strategy and Programme could not address all BCC efficiency
saving and income growth needs. But instead it would be a three year rolling programme that
would work on three levels to provide a positive platform for outsourced services, create
sustainable best value services, support entrepreneurs and business start-ups, and boost key
economic sectors in the City;
 finally, a Commercialisation Summit dedicated to delivering the Mayor and Council’s
commercialisation priorities be held in Autumn 2018. The Summit would be designed to both
reshape the council’s existing approach to commercialising service provision and introduce a New
Commercialisation Strategy and Programme.
Bristol Council Leadership Forum
To both build on her scoping and assessment exercises and to begin to secure buy-in across the council, the
RSC should note that the Director: Commercialisation and Citizens gave a presentation at the council’s
Leadership Forum on 24 October 2018 and held a workshop dedicated to examining over 130
commercialisation proposals previously considered by the council in September 2017.
Attendees at the Leadership Forum were told that their conclusions would then form part of the
Commercialisation Summit agenda.
3. BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL COMMERCIALISATION SUMMIT
The Commercialisation Summit was held on 7 November 2018. Attendees included Cllrs Pearce, Negus,
Weston, Gollop, Alexander, and Kent (with apologies received from Deputy Mayors Cheney and Craig, and
RSC Chair Cllr Clarke), the Executive Director of Growth and Regeneration, and the Interim Director:
Education.
The Agenda for the Commercialisation Summit was as follows
 first, to agree new commercialisation vision and values for the Council as:
“To commercialise council services and optimize council assets so that Directorates achieve efficiency
savings and income growth, and meet the Mayor and council’s economic, social and environmental
priorities.”
2 19
Page

Resources Scrutiny Commission – Report






second, to spell out the aims of a New Commercialisation Strategy and Programme necessary to meet
the Council’s likely service delivery and spending priorities over the next 3 years;
third, to carry out small group exercises on the council’s commercialisation cycle, SMART business
objectives and commercialisation ‘drivers’ and ‘barriers’;
fourth, to learn how to build better business cases to assist decision-makers in their consideration,
evaluation and monitoring of commercialisation spending proposals; and,
finally, to evaluate the current list of commercialisation opportunities reviewed by the Leadership
Forum.

Recommended Action
Attendees at the Commercialisation Summit said that concrete action was needed that:
1. Simplified commercialisation decision making structures and provided opportunities for
Directorates with viable commercial projects to be part of a New Commercialisation Strategy that
would make the council more business-like.
2. Ensured the council adopted the (3 year) New Commercialisation Strategy to meet the council’s
economic, social and environmental priorities.
3. Delivered the New Commercialisation Strategy through a three year Commercialisation
Programme made up of major, medium level and ‘micro’ commercialisation projects to be properly
resourced, professionally supported using the council’s pivotal role in the local economy to work in
partnership with both the private sector and other Core City councils.
4. Applied SMART objectives to the commercialisation of council services projects so that the council
approach to commercial development became not only up-to-date but also fit-for-purpose.
5. Improved business case preparation, evaluation, approval, monitoring and scrutiny by the
introduction of a council-wide commercialisation training programme to up-grade officer skills and
knowledge in presenting projects for consideration.
6. Included, as appropriate, as commercialisation development priorities (as identified by attendees
at the BCC Leadership Forum on 24 October 2018):
 Event Space - effectively and cohesively utilising our unique spaces as one service
 Gritting privately owned areas
 Examine the potential to expand the telecare service
 Examine the potential to expand the existing cash in transit service
 Fully explore the potential to expand the Translating and Interpretation service
 Fully explore the potential to expand services at Exmouth Camp.
7. The Director: Commercialisation and Citizens to report accordingly on the above to the RSC and
CIWG.
4. NEW COMMERCIALISATION STRATEGY AND PROGRAMME
The New Commercialisation Strategy and Programme that deliver the Mayor’s and Council
commercialisation objectives, support council commercialisation development needs, and build
commercialisation capability, capacity, and competency, will comprise:
 first, commercialisation vision and values agreed at the Summit as follows:
“To commercialise council services and optimise assets so that Directorates achieve efficiency savings
and income growth, and meet the Mayor and council’s economic, social and environmental priorities”;
 second, a three year commercialisation strategy with governance, service delivery, financial, human
resource and communication and consultation aims;
 third, annual SMART objectives and activities that will underpin each of the above aims;
 fourth, a three year Commercialisation Programme with priorities arising from proposals identified by
attendees at the 24 November Leadership Forum comprising:
o a major 3-year service spin-out,
o up to 3 annual mid-range commercialisation projects, and
o a rolling programme of commercialisation micro-projects; and,
 finally, a phased training programme to help Directorates build commercialisation proposals based on
best practice case study, feasibility study and business case development presentation and evaluation.
3 20
Page

Resources Scrutiny Commission – Report

Commissioning Case Studies Feasibility Studies and Preparing Business Cases
In partnership with Directorates, it is intended some of the monies referred to below will be allocated to:
 first, commissioning case studies via the Commercialisation Programme of successful
commercialisation projects introduced by peer local authorities (such as Birmingham, Plymouth and
Oxford City Councils, and Norfolk County Council, and other comparator bodies);
 second, commissioning feasibility studies to determine the objective economic, social and
environmental conditions required to ‘green light’ full business case preparation for a
commercialisation project in particular economic sectors; and,
 third, full business case preparation using the above principles of;
o why should BCC do the project?
 how will it improve customer service quality?
 how will it make efficiency savings, and/or increase income?
o what is the project, scope, impact, independencies and are there alternative delivery options?
o what are the SMART business plan activities?
 how will they be delivered?
 who will deliver them? and,
 when will they be delivered?
o how will the project be financed? And, what other resources are required?
o what does a market assessment show (e.g. a PEST)?
o what does a risk assessment show (e.g. managing risk and opportunity)? and,
o how will the project be organised (e.g. governance, decision-making, day-to-day management
and reporting).
Following the Commercialisation Summit, the Director: Commercialisation and Citizens met the Director of
Finance to agree the final steps necessary to apportion monies from the council revenue and capital
budgets for the development and implementation of her Directorate’s commercialisation programme. It
was agreed that:
 a budget allocation of £200k would be made for the remainder of the financial year 2018/19, to
cover both staffing and non-staffing resources in that year;
 staff would be supported to bring forward projects complying with the principles stated above;
 these projects would be screened using the process detailed above; and,
 there would be an investment ‘pot’ of £2M made available from reserves to pump prime agreed
projects as appropriate.
The Resources Scrutiny Commission and the Commercialisation and Innovation Working Group
One of the key recommendations made by those attending the Commercialisation Summit was that an
appropriate decision making structure would need to be considered to focus commercialisation resources
more effectively and efficiently, ‘green light’ business case development, monitor progress, evaluate
success and replace (where appropriate) the ad-hoc commercialisation approaches that currently exist.
Previously, RSC Chair Councillor Steve Clarke had also asked on 24 September 2018 that in future the
Commercialisation and Innovation Working Group (CIWG) report regularly to the RSC on the development,
implementation, and monitoring of the Directorate Commercialisation Strategy and Programme, and that
the Terms of Reference of both bodies be amended as appropriate to show this.
To help both the RSC and CIWG carry these evaluation responsibilities and roles it will be seen that the
Recommendations that follow propose:
 first, the Commercialisation and Innovation Working Group (CIWG) report regularly to the RSC on the
development implementation and monitoring of the Directorate Commercialisation Strategy and
Programme; and,
4 21
Page

Resources Scrutiny Commission – Report



second, the Commercialisation Strategic Plan 2018/22 and Business Plan 2018/19 become a standing
information item on the Agendas of both bodies with exception reporting at the direction of both
meetings.

5. NEW COMMERCIALISATION STRATEGY - NEXT STEPS
The following next steps are recommended to implement the New Commercialisation Strategy and
Programme:
1. That the council adopt the (3 year) New Commercialisation Strategy to meet the council’s economic,
social and environmental priorities.
2. That the council deliver the New Commercialisation Strategy through a three year Commercialisation
Programme made up of major, medium level and ‘micro’ commercialisation projects to be properly
resourced and professionally supported, using the council’s pivotal role in the local economy to work
in partnership with both the private sector and other Core City councils.
3. That the council apply SMART objectives to the commercialisation of council services projects so that
the council approach to commercial development becomes not only up-to-date but also fit-forpurpose.
4. That the council introduce improved business case preparation, evaluation, approval, monitoring
and scrutiny by the introduction of a council-wide commercialisation training programme to upgrade officer skills and knowledge in presenting projects for consideration.
5. That the council include the following projects, as appropriate, as commercialisation development
priorities arising from proposals identified by attendees at the BCC Leadership Forum on 24 October
2018:
 Event Space - effectively and cohesively utilising our unique spaces as one service
 Gritting privately owned areas
 Examine the potential to expand the existing telecare service
 Examine the potential to expand the existing cash in transit service
 Examine the potential to expand the existing Translating and Interpretation service
 Fully explore the potential to expand services at Exmouth Camp.
6. That the council adopt simplified commercialisation decision-making structures to provide
opportunities for other Directorates with viable commercial projects to be part of a New
Commercialisation Strategy that would make the wider council more business-like.
7. That the Commercialisation and Innovation Working Group (CIWG) report regularly to the RSC on
the development implementation and monitoring of the Directorate New Commercialisation
Strategy and Programme.
8. That the Commercialisation Strategic Plan 2018/22 and Business Plan 2018/19 become a standing
information item on the Agendas of both bodies with exception reporting at the direction of both
meetings.

5 22
Page

Resources Scrutiny Commission – Report

3. Policy
<Where relevant, insert brief statement showing how the recommendation relates to existing Council policy or
type “not applicable”>
4. Consultation
a) Internal
Elected members including CIWG members, BCC Head of Paid Service, BCC s151 Officer, Resources EDM.
b)External
Not applicable
5. Public Sector Equality Duties
5a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker considers
the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected characteristics”: age, disability,
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each
decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the need to:
i)

Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under the
Equality Act 2010.

ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to --

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic that are
different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled people, this
includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons' disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in any
other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and those
who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.
5b)
Appendices:
None
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
None

6 23
Page

Agenda Item 9

Summit report produced in association with
Bristol City Council and Mott MacDonald

Empowering
cities as drivers
of change
Global Parliament of Mayors
Annual Summit 2018, Bristol, UK

Page 24

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 3

Empowering
cities as drivers
of change
Page 25
Contents
City power on the global stage 4
Global Parliament of Mayors history and aims 6
Dr Benjamin Barber Global Cities Award 8
Introduction to the three summit declarations 10
Declaration theme 1: Harnessing the power of migration for an inclusive city 12
Declaration theme 2: Strengthening urban security through city leadership 16
Declaration theme 3: Driving good population health to strengthen city resilience 20
Women in leadership 24
Entrepreneurship and talent 26
Introducing city challenges and solutions 28
Challenges and solutions:
Gaining greatest benefit from business 30
Challenges and solutions: Innovative finance 32
Challenges and solutions: Digital, innovation and high tech 36 
Challenges and solutions: Low carbon and energy 40
Challenges and solutions: Housing and transport 44
Challenges and solutions: Healthier cities 48
Cities at Mott MacDonald: improving people’s lives 52
Closing statement 54

“In our interdependent world,
cities have not only the obligation
but the right to achieve solutions
to global issues,” said the
Global Parliament of Mayors'
founder, Dr Benjamin Barber.
More than half the world’s population lives in cities
and by mid-century it is expected that more than
two thirds will. Our urbanising world means that
cities make an ever-increasing contribution to
national and regional economies, and so, in turn,
city leaders need to have an increasing voice in
national, regional and international processes.
The Global Parliament of Mayors (GPM) is an
unapologetic champion for city leaders across
the globe, their issues, their agendas and
their voice. Directly elected mayoral members
represent cities large and small, developed
and emerging, from all points on the globe.
Only three years old, the organisation was founded
on the belief that mayors can drive solutions to the
challenges they face, that are more progressive,
more targeted and faster-acting than those
delivered at national and international levels.
By creating an active platform our aim is to support
mayors to create a safer, sustainable and inclusive world.

“Mayors are the drivers of change, the agents
responsible for bringing about transformation in
our cities. The GPM strengthens mayors’ leadership
to advocate for solutions to critical global issues at
the international level. I encourage more cities to
become members, for the benefit of their citizens.”
Mayor Patricia de Lille
Chair

“The voices of cities matter, especially in this day
and age where mayors tackle issues as varied as
urban security, migration and health, on a daily
and increasingly urgent basis. The GPM welcomed
nearly 70 mayors from around the world to its 2018
summit in Bristol. The interest in participation is a
clear sign that the principles of the GPM respond
to the needs of mayors all around the world.”
Mayor Peter Kurz
Vice chair

“The GPM fosters innovation, collaboration and
unity between mayors. By working together
strategically, we’re helping the voice of city
leaders to be heard at international level.”
Mayor Marvin Rees
Treasurer

GPM Summit 2018
The third annual GPM Summit, the biggest yet, took
place in Bristol, UK, in October 2018. Sixty seven
mayors from 36 countries joined leaders from 12
global city networks and experts from international
organisations and UN agencies. The summit led to
the first formal meeting of all UK city leaders, plus
community events with over 500 Bristol citizens.

4 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Focus of the ‘specific 61%’

Network membership

20

Page 26

Most of the challenges, crises,
and opportunities of this century
will occur in cities. A growing
number of city networks have
been established with the aim of
impacting international policymaking. Georgetown University,
Washington USA, has reviewed 99
global city networks – the majority
of those active internationally –
to understand what sway they
hold, the focus of their efforts
and where the gaps are.

Today’s international political and legal system was
established in the post-war years which placed nationstates at the centre of global governance. Cities have
been absent and are power-light. But that is beginning
to change as cities band together in networks to
pierce, participate in and transcend the current
political world order. Their growing success and profile
is being described as ‘municipal internationalism’,
‘transnational municipal networking’, ‘municipal foreign
policy’ and the ‘International Municipal Movement’.
Neglected themes
Nearly every major threat defies national boundaries,
requiring global and local solutions. Some of these are
well recognised and city networks are participating in
efforts to address them – for example climate change.

55%

5

Health

Education

Migration

Security

Regeneration

Environment encompasses: climate change (4 networks),
energy (2 networks), climate and energy (2 networks), green
infrastructure and transportation (2 networks), and environmental
sustainability/sustainable development (10 networks).

99

45%

0

Environment

City power on
the global stage

10

Economic, property, IT

Number of networks

15

45%
Cities plus a variety of other members: private
and non-profit organisations, academic
institutions, NGOs and regional governments
55%
Cities only

global city networks

What they’re interested in

39%

61%

61%
Specific or very narrow focus, eg climate
resilience and regeneration
Act as subject experts and lobbyists
39%
Broad/general agenda, eg governance,
sustainable development and inclusive growth
Promote inter-city solidarity and knowledge sharing

But cities are excluded from international discussions
on migration and the global refugee crisis, despite cities
being the destination for 60% of refugees and 80% of
internally displaced persons. Yet mayors are on the front
line in addressing related challenges around housing,
assimilation and protection, employment, education,
and nutrition and health. Mayors consequently
also have unmatched expertise in these issues.
Education and health are other obvious gaps
in the focus of current city networks.
Only 32 of the 99 city networks attempt to access
global policy-making. And only a handful are successful:
C40, UCLG, and its affiliates UCLG Regions and UCLG
Metropolis. The GPM should create alliances with
these organisations and work towards different but
complimentary goals – notably migration, health
and education.
The GPM is emerging at an exciting time in international
politics, when the influence of sub-state actors is
increasing. Cities have a record of getting important
governance work done at local level, even when their
national governments are incapable or unwilling.
As one of the only global coalitions of mayors, the GPM
has the potential to make a significant and lasting impact.
Sheila Foster and Chrystie Swiney for Georgetown University

The rise of city networks signals a potentially historic
shift in global governance. In a time of growing
dissatisfaction with supranational institutions, allowing
local governments to have a seat at the table could
revitalise and re-legitimise global governance by
ensuring that representation at the highest level includes
leaders who are closely connected to their citizens.
Summit participants reflected on the challenges
of realising this aim. Which city networks could be
formally incorporated into global institutions and
co-ordinate to change the international system?
They recognised that consolidating the voice of
cities will require careful strategic navigation.
Susan Parnell and Sean Fox, Cabot Institute for
the Environment, University of Bristol

6 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 7

Global Parliament
of Mayors: making
a real difference
Page 27

Established in 2016 as a
governance body of, by and for
mayors, the Global Parliament
of Mayors (GPM) cultivates local
knowledge, facilitates city-tocity partnerships, and amplifies
practical, action-oriented solutions.
Latest United Nations figures show that 55% of
the world’s population lives in urban areas and
is set to increase to near 70% by 2050.
Rapid urbanisation places huge demands on
a city’s ability to provide security, health care,
services and employment for its citizens, as well
as affecting the environment and climate.

GPM governance
The GPM is governed through its eightmember executive committee. Board members
are elected for a three-year term.
Co- chairs: Mayor Peter Kurz (Mannheim, Germany)
and Mayor Marvin Rees (Bristol, UK)
Executive committee members:
Mayor Stephen Benjamin (Columbia, USA)
Mayor Christine Sagen Helgo (Stavanger, Norway)
Mayor Jefferson Koijee (Monrovia, Liberia)
Mayor Grace Mary Mugasa (Hoima, Uganda)
Mayor Baikuntha Neupane (Vyas, Nepal)
Mayor Leoluca Orlando (Palermo, Italy)

Join us
Join and help influence global policy. Membership
will enable you to:

•

Strengthen your leadership and advocate for
issues at an international level
Communicate directly with fellow mayors –
give and receive support, skills, information
and knowledge
Get involved in city-to-city partnerships to
enhance co-operation and connectivity
Access the Virtual Platform for mayors

Mayors of the world want to create a safer, more
inclusive and sustainable world by strengthening the
rights of cities. The GPM is about local government
addressing critical global challenges. Promoting
collective city decision-making across borders, GPM is
here to foster collaboration to achieve those goals.

•

In support of the United Nations' Sustainable
Development Goals, the GPM:
1. Builds an active, impactful and structured
network of, by and for mayors.
2. Amplifies a united global voice for
cities and their residents.
3. Enhances co-operation, connectivity and
solidarity between city leaders.
4. global agendas by mobilising
regional and local action.

Becoming a member requires commitment
to the GPM's values and mission statement
and acting as an ambassador for the GPM
and its united action policy. The annual
membership fee is based on the gross national
income and the population of your city.

•
•

Applications at gpm@denhaag.nl
Visit us at www.globalparliamentofmayors.org

“Individually we have the power to act
locally, when we know something
impacts the lives of our residents. But
by acting collectively and speaking
with one voice, we can make a
difference to global governance.”
Mayor Patricia de Lille
Chair of the Executive Committee

8 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 9

Outstanding city leaders

Mayors Zandile Gumede
and Daviz Simango
During the summit, the Global
Parliament of Mayors announced
Mayors Zandile Gumede of
eThekwini (Durban), South
Africa, and Daviz Simango of
Beira, Mozambique, as winners
of the Dr Benjamin Barber
Global Cities Award 2018.
Page 28

Since 2016 Mayor Gumede has been promoting basic
human rights on health, safety, water and sanitation in
eThekwini.
She is best known for her pioneering Mama Zandile
Gumede Foundation, recently relaunched as the Light
of Ubuntu, which is focused on empowering women
and youth through education and skills development,
and promoting greater humanity in social, political and
economic discourse, and in domestic and community
environments.
Mayor Gumede has championed investment in improved
health information and treatment with the ambition to
raise a generation free from the scourge of AIDS.
Mayor Simango’s background as a civil engineer has
seen him focus infrastructure projects to improve
the quality of life for Beira’s citizens and protect its
surrounding environment.
Since his election in 2003, Mayor Simango has defied
Mozambique’s complicated political landscape to promote
public health and provide economic and recreational
opportunities. Beira has a history of cholera outbreaks
linked to poor drainage and sanitation and its oceanside
outskirts are prone to flooding from rising sea levels.
In response, Mayor Simango has introduced schemes
including the ‘Mozambique cities and climate change
project’ that will protect more than 300,000 residents
from climate-related impacts. Improved drainage, green
infrastructure, tree planting and mangrove restoration
are reducing flood risk by 70%, providing natural cooling
for the city, improving biodiversity and offering economic
and recreational opportunities for the city’s population.

Honouring our founder

Our annual award honours the
GPM’s founder, Dr Benjamin Barber.
It recognises and celebrates
outstanding city leadership and
is awarded to the candidate who
has best represented the values
and principles set out in the GPM’s
constitution during the past year.

10 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Issues of
our time

Page 29

Migration, urban security and
health are headline issues for
mayors and citizens alike. As
the research by Georgetown
University on page 4 reveals
they are relatively ‘neglected’
by existing city networks.
As reported in the following pages, the Global
Parliament of Mayors debated the issues and voted
on recommended actions to address them.
The votes result in the GPM Summit 2018
declarations, which will be enacted over
the coming two years and beyond.

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 11

12 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 13

Declaration theme 1

Harnessing the power
of migration for an
inclusive city

Page 30

Migration between towns, cities
and countries has presented
challenges and opportunities
throughout human civilisation,
but is occurring today on a
systemically challenging scale.
Latest figures suggest there are more than one
billion migrants in the world – voluntary and
forced – the majority of whom end up in cities.
As well as bringing talent, energy and cultural
diversity, migrants also challenge city leaders
to address issues of integration.
City responses to this challenge have been
characterised by the theme of inclusion. Mayors
and civic leaders have designed and implemented
policies that allow newcomers to contribute to
and benefit from their new communities. This local
perspective has never been more important.

City networks and initiatives are developing solutions to
the key challenges brought by migration – education,
housing, economic growth and development, public
service delivery and urban planning, among others.
Systems for sharing innovation and best practice are
being established, yet traditional institutional responses
are unequal to the pace and scale of migration.
Cities are under-represented on the global stage when it
comes to key decision-making on refugee and migration
issues. This summit took place at a key point in the
development of the UN Global Compacts on Migration
and Refugees, a process which the GPM had already
been actively engaged with. Without such action, there
is real danger that diplomatic processes could bypass
cities and leave them without representation during the
review and implementation of these key global initiatives.
Migration is one of the most high-profile political
challenges of our time and, with its members, the GPM
has an opportunity to amplify the voice of city leaders
in international discussion on migrants and refugees.

14 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 15

Mayors’ debate
and commitments

Migration

A stimulating debate highlighted
some of the issues cities face
when dealing with the mass
movement of people.

Page 31

On the panel: OECD’s Claire Charbit, Mayor Yvonne
Aki-Sawyerr of Freetown, Sierra Leone, Mayor Leoluca
Orlando of Palermo, and Mayor Christopher Calbadon
of West Sacramento, USA, with contributions from
Karen Gulick of UNHCR, Laura Healy of UNICEF,
and David Lubell of Welcoming International
The narrative about migrants must be focused on their
humanity and the potential benefits they bring to their
destination cities. Speakers stressed how collaboration
between cities and urban districts is vital if migrants –
national and international – are to reach their potential.
They underlined the point by addressing the challenges
that source cities face and emphasised that some
migrants could be dissuaded from leaving if cities could
create greater opportunity through stronger interregional, national and international co-ordination.
Recognising skills, personal safety, inclusion, opportunity,
employment and trust can help migrants unlock their
full potential. Working with migrants to equip them with
the tools to shape their own destiny was seen as key.
The panel heard from 16-year-old Stiven Bregu who
settled in Bristol after being trafficked to the UK aged 13.
Stiven took part in Bristol City Council’s City Leadership
Programme which identifies and invests in the lives of
high-ability, high-aspiration students from disadvantaged
backgrounds. He has pushed himself to achieve
excellent exam grades at school and is now looking
towards further study. He has achieved this despite
speaking little English when he arrived in the UK in 2015.
Stiven called on the GPM to recognise and support
young migrants. “I know the City of Bristol has had
confidence in me. Please fight for us,” he said.

Declaration pledges
1. Implement the Global Compact for Migration 		
and the Global Compact on Refugees in our cities.
2. Emphasise the benefits of migration in our work
and use the language of inclusion, welcome
and belonging.
3. Call on National governments to:
• End the use of dehumanising language in relation
to migrants and refugees.
• Collaborate with city leaders in developing and
implementing migration-related policy.
• Allocate migration related resources and
powers at local level.
4. Call on International institutions to:
• Include cities when developing and
implementing international agreements on
migration and refugees.
• Collaborate with cities to develop innovative
ways to manage migration for the benefit of both
departure and arrival cities.
5. Commit the GPM to work in the following
partnerships:
• UN High Commissioner for Refugees (UNHCR)
to promote the #withrefugees cities pledge
and the Cities of Solidarity initiative.
• United Nations Children’s Fund and UNHCR to
champion the rights of migrant and displaced
children and youth in the implementation
of the Global Compact for Migration and
the Global Compact on Refugees.
• Brookings Institute, the OECD, Welcoming
International and others to create city-level
indicators for integration which are aligned
with the Global Compact for Migration and
the Global Compact on Refugees.
• Mayors Migration Council to advocate on behalf
of cities in relation to the implementation and
review of the Global Compact for Migration
and the Global Compact on Refugees.

16 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 17

Declaration theme 2

Strengthening urban
security through
city leadership
Latest international studies
indicate that violent and traditional
crime rates are falling globally.
Page 32

Homicide and other violent crime rates have
decreased as have property crimes such as burglary
and vehicle theft, but there are significant variations.
Some city populations are particularly vulnerable.
Segregation, economic inequality and poor social
cohesion are primary drivers for higher violence rates.
To combat crime and its causes, tackle radicalisation
and counter extremism, cities are using innovative
approaches. Those claiming the most success
address both human and technological factors
– community outreach, strengthened policing,
intelligence gathering, and new security technologies
– and mayors have recognised their impact.
Advances in technology and computing power enable
teams to sift through crime and terrorism-related data.

However, every effort must be made to prevent civil
liberties being infringed. If citizens lose confidence
in law enforcement, then it undermines the ability
to protect them. Therefore municipal governments
and their police must set out clear guidelines for
accessing and retaining personal data. They should
consult with residents to discuss the motives and
implications of introducing new technologies.
There are several GPM partners focused on public safety
and security. But there are none operating at a global
scale that provide advocacy for locally-drive urban
security. The GPM is ideally suited to taking the lead.
It could play a constructive role in:
• establishing local-global strategies for promoting
urban security
• building robust partnerships with existing intercity
networks
• harmonising advocacy activities
• leading mayoral representation in international
debates on public security and counter-extremism

18 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 19

Mayors’ debate
and commitments

Urban Security

Page 33

The summit debate on
strengthening security focused
on traditional and cyber-crime
and the challenges that cities
face in dealing with it.

Declaration pledges
1. Foster urban safety and security through policies
and practices that engage residents, leading to
social cohesion and a better quality of life for all.

On the panel: Alice Charles of the World Economic
Forum, Mayor Zandile Gumede, Durban, South Africa,
Rudy Salles, deputy mayor of Nice, France, Mayor
Hubert Bruls, of Nijmegen, The Netherlands, and
contributions by Robert Muggah of security thinktank the Igarapé Institute, Rebecca Skellett, Strong
Cities Network and Juma Assiago, UN-Habitat

3. Call on national governments to:
• Emphasise problem-orientated and
community-based approaches to policing.
• Oppose the militarisation of urban police forces.
• Promote multi-stakeholder partnerships for crime
prevention as a more effective public security
strategy.

Many of the causes of crime are interlinked with other
difficulties faced by city populations. Addressing
those issues could be a key to reducing crime.

4. Call on international institutions to:
• Adopt evidence-based, resident-centred
global standards for urban security.
• Advocate for transparent, open and data-driven
approaches to enhance urban security.
• Strengthen strategic partnerships with international
organisations to reinforce the global voice of cities
on urban security.

It is imperative that mayors and city leaders look
at ways to improve education, housing and work
opportunities for citizens. These are ways in which
citizens can be properly integrated into society, reducing
the risk of radicalisation or criminal offending.
Through help from stakeholders to develop
educational programmes, cities and urban areas
can counter extremism and radicalisation. Both
issues are fundamentally about dominance and
a lack of respect for differing viewpoints. Aware
and agile governance can help protect citizens.
However, data collected through technology must be
used with great care by municipalities. The intention of
protecting citizens could easily morph into overzealous
use of technology and impact civil liberties.
But the opportunity for mayors and civic leaders to
debate and swap information through the GPM is
real: “The Global Parliament of Mayors must engage
in these debates about urban security. I would
encourage the GPM to take the lead and encourage
information exchange,” said Robert Muggah.

2. Design and build inclusive urban infrastructure
to promote safety and security.

5. Commit the GPM to work in the following
partnerships:
• With UN-Habitat to advance the UN Systemwide Guidelines on Safer Cities.
• With the World Economic Forum to support the
development of evidence-based approaches
• With Strong Cities Network and European Forum for
Urban Security (EFUS) to reinforce the global voice
of cities on urban safety and security priorities.

20 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Declaration theme 3

Driving good
population health
to strengthen
city resilience

Page 34

The world’s swelling urban
population means that the future
of global health is inextricably
linked with that of city dwellers.
Good population health is key to a city’s resilience
and it is vital that administrations are proactive in
ensuring the health needs of citizens are met. The
range of threats to public health is growing – climate
change, poor housing and infrastructure, new
infectious diseases, antimicrobial resistance – with
potentially severe economic and social implications.
International air travel between cities threatens
the risk of more rapid, and geographically diverse
infection, while urban density and congestion
brings people into ever closer contact.
Although city mayors often play significant roles
in response and recovery, they have not been
engaged in pandemic preparation or disease
resilience initiatives at global or national levels.
But city leaders may find that the most pertinent
guidance comes from other municipal governments
around the world.
The GPM can act as a conduit for mayors to build
partnerships and collaborate toward meeting
local challenges from global problems.

It will engage with key international stakeholders such
as the World Health Organisation, the World Bank
and the World Economic Forum, which are working
to improve international governance of disease.
Similarly, it will support frameworks including
the International Health Regulations, the Sendai
Framework for Disaster Risk Reduction and
the Global Health Security Agenda that frame
efforts at national and international levels.
With cities likely to bear a disproportionate burden
from future infectious disease outbreaks, it is
time to involve mayors in pandemic preparation
initiatives. The GPM could bring important local
insight and leadership to these efforts.
By forming networks and partnerships to
implement initiatives, mayors could make a
meaningful impact on health security across
local, national and international boundaries.

22 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 23

Mayors’ debate
and commitments

Health

Page 35

Cities are on the frontline of
global health challenges. There
is an inextricable link between
future global health and that of
urban areas, with focus required
on mental health, antimicrobial
resistance and pandemic response.
On the panel: Dr Rebecca Katz of Georgetown
University, Mayor Grace Mary Mugasa of Hoima,
Uganda, Mayor Jefferson Tamba Koijee of
Monrovia, Liberia, Mayor Delroy Williams of
Kingston, Jamaica, with contributions from Ryan
Morhard of the World Economic Forum and Sylvie
Briand of the World Health Organisation
The spread of disease respects no national
boundaries and so it is imperative that information,
aid, and responses to pandemics is collated and
disseminated at international, national and municipal
levels. The rapid loss of antibiotic effectiveness is
of huge concern – causes and effects are closely
lined with poor quality sanitation, housing and diet.
They noted that municipal experience in managing
some health issues can inform and guide national
government policy, planning and funding allocation.

Declaration pledges
1. Prioritise pandemic preparedness as a key 		
component of urban health planning.
2. Collaborate with researchers and consultants to
generate data to implement practical initiatives
to improve urban health planning and pandemic
preparedness.
3. Develop an intra-city mechanism to 			
efficiently share information and experiences
to facilitate emergency responses.
4. Call on national governments to:
• Stimulate strong collaboration with
mayors to develop health-related policy
through communication, stakeholder
consultation and financing.
• Support research to estimate the costs of
pandemic preparedness in cities, acknowledging
the economic and political importance of
resilient urban environments.
5. Call on international institutions to:
• Advocate for financial and technical support to
strengthen international strategic partnerships
and one common global voice on urban health.
• Collaborate with city leaders before,
during and after pandemics.
• Include city leaders in international frameworks
of urban health. In particular, they called on
the World Health Organisation to include city
leaders in the World Health Assembly.

24 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Women in
leadership

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 25

Being a woman can bring additional
challenges and opportunities
to the role of city leadership. In
an animated debate, attendees
heard from a panel of women
mayors about their experience,
and discussed ways to encourage
more women into leadership roles.

Hosted by Bristol Deputy Mayor Asher Craig and
moderated by Christine Bamford of Women’s
Coin Foundation, with panellists Mayor Célestine
Ketcha Courtés OBE of Bangangté, Cameroon,
Mayor Zandie Gumede, Durban, South Africa,
Mayor Nan Whaley, Dayton, USA, Mayor Yvonne
Aki-Sawyer, Freetown, Sierra Leone, Penny Gane,
chair of Bristol Women’s Commission and Bristol
Women’s Voice Network and Caroline Hubbard
of the Women Mayors’ Network (WoMN).
With small local variances, the genders are balanced
globally. Yet fewer than 5% of city leadership roles
are held by women – both a symptom of and a
contributor to the significant underrepresentation
of women’s perspectives in city policymaking.

Page 36

Cities need policies and institutions that are conducive
to and supportive of gender inclusion – and women
mayors and leaders have been effective in achieving
that, for the benefit of all citizens. The session
highlighted the value of women already in leadership
roles mentoring those climbing the career ladder
and the importance of offering help and advice.
During the debate the delegates presented more
than 50 actions that the GPM must act on if it is
serious about ensuring an increased representation
of women in leadership roles. These include:

•

For mayors and cities to support existing
networks such as the Women Mayors’ Network
to expand the opportunity for mentorship,
capacity building and solidarity.

•

To join the Cities for CEDAW initiative which
provides a policy framework for cities through
applying the UN Convention on the Elimination
of All Forms of Discrimination Against Women.

•

To establish exchanges and joint working
groups that tackle wider issues preventing
women taking on leadership roles – for example
the gender pay gap and underlying genderbased social and cultural barriers – and the
creation of programmes to overcome them.

•

To ensure that men are present in forums on women’s
leadership, so they can understand the constraints and
opportunities opened through women in leadership.

•

To engage young women through mentoring schemes,
with existing women leaders as role models.

GPM is exploring collaboration with the Women
Mayors’ Network (WoMN) as a result of the summit.

26 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 27

Enabling cities

Page 37

Social and creative economies
Entrepreneurs can be the life-blood of a city. They
create new businesses, employment, and opportunities.
Alongside business and technical innovators, social and
creative entrepreneurs are essential. Their motivation
to create beauty, social value and environmental
benefit complements the development of economic
wealth to build a better city and a better world.
A recent report, The Creative and Social Economy
Solution, by the British Council and Social Enterprise
UK, outlines the potential for strong city leadership to
unlock the entrepreneurial abilities of its citizens.
It concluded that a city economy rooted in social and
creative enterprise would be capable of creating
powerful, multidimensional solutions to challenges.
It highlights Porto Digital, a technological innovation
initiative based in Recife, Brazil, and Middelgrunden,
a co-operatively owned windfarm in Copenhagen,
Denmark, showing that bold city leadership can unlock
the entrepreneurial abilities of citizens to tackle the
challenges of today and build resilience for tomorrow.
Porto Digital has transformed Recife by creating new
jobs and training facilities in the information and
software technologies sector and the wider creative
industries. In 18 years the park has grown from three
companies to 230, employing around 7100 people and
generating a yearly revenue of over R$1bn (US$429M).
Middelgrunden windfarm boasts 20 turbines. It is 50%
owned by the 8650 investors in the Middelgrunden
Wind Turbine Co-operative and 50% by the
municipal utility company, Copenhagen Energy.
Read the report: www.socialenterprise.
org.uk/global-city-challenges-the-creativeand-social-economy-solution

Talent cities
Across the world strong city leaders are building
robust partnerships to promote the development
of the talent and skills of their citizens.
These partnerships are being introduced by the Global
Parliament of Mayors’ Talent Cities Network in the cities
of Hoima, Uganda and Kandahar, Afghanistan following
successful pilots in San Diego County, California.
They help to bridge between education and
employment, creating better jobs and opportunities
for citizens, and identifying barriers to professional
development. It benefits people, businesses and
cities alike.
The Talent Cities Network is designed to
provide GPM mayors with the benefits of city
interconnectivity around this important issue of
talent management. The value of the network grows
exponentially as each new city joins the initiative.
For further information about participating in
the GPM Talent Cities Network, contact Gerri
Burton: gsburton@newlearningventures.com

28 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

City challenges
and solutions
City Hall is where much of the
decision-making affecting people’s
day-to-day lives takes place.
Municipal leaders have the task
of bridging between central
government budget allocations
and policy, and the needs of
citizens and businesses.
Page 38

In the run-up to the GPM 2018 Summit, mayors
said they would welcome the opportunity to
engage with business around pressing challenges,
with the aim of better understanding the root
issues, and discussing potential solutions.
The following pages present ‘briefing papers’ prepared
for the event to prime discussion, plus headline
insights from a series of breakout sessions with
mayors from around the world and business leaders.

•
•
•
•
•
•

Gaining greatest benefit from business
Innovative finance
Digital innovation and high tech
Low energy and carbon
Housing and transport
Healthier cities

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 29

30 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Challenges and
solutions

Gaining greatest
benefit from
business

Page 39

Investment, innovation and
entrepreneurship rapidly take
root when there is opportunity.
City leaders have considerable
power to create the right
conditions by ‘tuning the market’.

Clear and consistent goals and policy encourage
business to address city needs and work
towards mutually beneficial outcomes. The skill
is in creating common interest and constructive
tension between public and private interests.
Coming together for the common good
Private organisations are effective at working in voluntary
coalition to address important issues. In the infrastructure
sector there are currently ‘task groups’ tackling all of
the issues being addressed by the Global Parliament
of Mayors – energy and carbon, health, security,
migration, housing and transport, digital, innovation
and high tech and investment – among many more.
Leadership is often provided by individual
companies, but also comes from professional
institutions and academia. They recognise
that they have collective power to change
behaviours, set targets, and drive change.
The contribution of business task-groups can be
substantially improved when given encouragement,
direction and support by major influencers
and procurers, including city government.
Risk and opportunity
For public and private sector alike, the acid test
for any urban initiative is its bankability: Does
the benefit of investing outweigh the risk?
As a city leader, describe your vision, aims and priorities
to business. Their appetite will tell you whether ideas
have potential; and business will be able to help
turn an interesting idea into a workable proposal.

That is because risk and reward are fundamental
to business decision-making. Monetising nonfinancial risks can help to shine a light on issues
that need attention. City leaders can benefit from
specialist skills in advising on risk management
and reduction – technical, environmental, social,
regulatory and legal, as well as financial – and
on achieving the greatest value for money.
Open dialogue
City leaders must set agendas which balance business
benefit with outcomes for citizens and safeguard
social resilience. While consistency is important,
it is also necessary to recognise that achieving
long-term goals often requires flexible strategy and
tactics. Open and honest dialogue between mayor,
business and citizens is essential so that, as insight
and understanding of key issues develops over
time, adaptation can take place without jeopardy.
Five key principles for progress
For mayors and the businesses they work with,
there are a number of key guiding principles.
Advancing an agenda is harder when any of them
are absent. Applying them enables progress,
helping to deliver better outcomes for all.
1. Leadership
Vision: Describe what you want to achieve and provide
the highest-level sponsorship and commitment
Values: Embed goals in your organisation’s DNA
Policy: Deliver clear and consistent
policies to support those goals

2. Culture and communication
Behaviour: Be clear what behaviours
are wanted and reward them
Communication: Share knowledge effectively
within your organisation, your supply chain,
the wider industry and citizens
Skills: Develop skills through training at
all levels within your organisation and
within key parts of your supply chain
3. Metrics and governance
Baseline: Establish your starting point and
measure performance against it
Targets: Set stretching goals and strive to beat them
Tools: Give tools to those that need them
Visibility: Shine a light on performance, understanding
and explaining successes and failures alike
Governance: Build control into the delivery process
4. Innovation and standards
Innovation: Demand, enable, incentivise and
reward innovation across your supply chain
Standards: Enable existing standards and specifications
to be challenged and set new standards for best practice
5. Commercial solutions
Procurement: Embed your goals in contractual solutions
Reward: Align supply chain objectives with your goals,
provide long-term incentives, and share risks and
rewards equitably
Integration: Remove blockers in your supply chain
Clare Wildfire for Mott MacDonald

32 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Challenges
and solutions

Innovative
finance

Page 40

Private wealth creation, choice,
competition, stability and solid
governance are key characteristics
of a free market economy. Yet
the efficiencies and innovation
that often flow can produce
unwanted consequences, such as
unsustainable wealth inequality,
social unrest, human suffering
and environmental harm.
Most high-income countries operate some form
of social market economy system to care for
those who are at an inherent disadvantage, such
as deprived communities, the elderly, children and
people with a disability. It takes advantage of free
market benefits, including innovation, efficiency
and wealth, to provide for those unable to work.
Financial and professional services form a key part of
the diverse skill set needed, if this economic model
is to be successfully developed by the increasingly
powerful cities and city-regions around the world.

Creating the right conditions
To deliver sustainable development and bring
the magic ingredients of diversity, vibrancy and
enterprise, as well as a thriving social market
economy, cities need to secure three goals:
• Equal access to good education.
• No extreme income inequality.
• Affordable and livable housing.
Education and labour market policies are key. Public
authorities, businesses and education institutions must
co-operate to ensure an agile and accessible education
system, and implement employment policies that
combine flexibility with social protection. At the same
time, intervention in the social safety net is crucial. A
basic income for every adult, irrespective of whether
they are in paid work, will to an extent alleviate income
inequality, making city living affordable and avoiding
some of the worst consequences of the market system.
But there’s little point in introducing a universal
basic income (UBI) if rents are too high. Identifying
solutions to an unbalanced housing market are the
final piece of the social market puzzle. Building more
houses, rent controls, subsidising landlords to help
them improve housing stock and working to remove
rogue landlords will all drive change in this area.

Diverse cities are successful cities
For policymakers, the dilemma is what these
interventions should look like and who pays.
The risks of inaction are potentially huge. Cities that
reject diversity, operate inefficient labour markets and
become monocultures with banal cultural and living
experiences will become undesirable or frightening
places. Global experience has repeatedly shown that
when inclusion fails and disparity is rife, talent and
investment leave, growth slows and poverty increases.
The penalty for poor policy making is a spiral of
decline, and vice versa for cities that get it right.
A social market economy is not a choice, it’s a
necessity and should, with the right leadership
and vision, eventually pay for itself.
James Beard, Paul Hammond, Frances Parrott
for Mott MacDonald

34 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

9.
2.

Insights

Innovative
finance
Key questions

Innovative financial models:
who pays for public
services and infrastructure
development in support of
inclusive economic growth?
The shape of the future
city economy: how can we
include local people in the
benefits of growth and what
role can businesses play?

Page 41

Migration, diversity and
cohesion: how can we realize the
economic benefits of diversity
and migration, and secure
cohesive urban communities?

Chaired by Councillor Jon Collins, leader of
Nottingham City Council and Deputy Mayor
Pordis Loa Porhallsdottir of Reykjavik, Iceland
Sponsored by Deloitte and Cordant Group
Moderated by James Beard, Mott MacDonald

1.

Some services – housing,
transport, energy, water –
should not be left wholly
to the market; profit to
private shareholders
should be limited, with
a share reinvested for
the public good.

Cities should delineate
between public and private
delivery with the view
that public ownership of
services ensures the best
outcomes for citizens.

7.
5.

3.

There is a generational
divide in many cities: the
needs of millennials are
not being catered for,
leading some to leave
in pursuit of better job
opportunities or improved
access to housing
and other amenities in
other locations. Cities
are therefore losing
their ‘future stars’.

4.

6.

Public and private sectors
in partnership should
exercise the principle
of ‘stewardship’ in the
delivery and operation
of infrastructure and
services, to ensure
benefits are delivered,
value is fairly shared and
profit is reinvested locally.

City hall and businesses
should partner to gain
the greatest value
from corporate social
responsibility and
sustainability activities.
City leaders should set out
focussed objectives for
an area and encourage
businesses to ‘pool’
their CSR activities.
Doing so would enable
bolder targets to be set
to meet local needs.

City-specific currencies
can help ensure money
is spent locally benefiting
local traders and SMEs –
one such is the successful
‘Bristol Pound’ used
by some independent
businesses in the city.

Smaller local SMEs are
often innovative and
socially minded but can
be undermined by larger
operations that stifle
disruptive change. City
leaders should assist
the SMEs to compete
with larger firms through
supplying contracts.

It is important to create
a positive narrative
when dealing with
local community fears
in which the value and
contribution of all are
appreciated – newcomer
and longstanding
resident alike.

10.

The city economy
must enable people to
benefit and to shape
it, requiring creative
collaboration between
civic leaders, employers,
product and service
providers, and different
generations. There is
opportunity for them all.

8.

Although immigration
brings economic stimulus
and benefit, established
communities in receiving
cities are often concerned
about perceived and
real impacts, which
must be recognised.

36 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Challenges and
solutions

Digital, innovation
and high tech

Page 42

Whether it is a heat map that
shows citizens the location, type
and frequency of crimes, or realtime information about where
and when it is safe to swim in
locations affected by wastewater
contamination, data is already
being used in ways that give
people new insights into the
working of their city, allowing
them to make better decisions.

We live in an age of data. Exponential capability
growth in capability and reduction in the cost
of data collection, storage, transmission and
analysis is transforming how we live and work.
The challenge facing city leaders is how to guide
this age of data – how to ensure that data-driven
use of digital technology will genuinely improve
the daily lives of citizens and contribute to the
achievement of their cities’ strategic goals without
undermining human rights and personal privacy.

However, there is a widening gap between the way
citizens and organisations receive goods transact and
communicate with data-driven businesses and how they
interact with public bodies such as schools, hospitals,
transport and waste management authorities.

Considerations for city leaders
1. Do you have the right people? If you have a
chief digital officer, are they sufficiently skilled to
implement a service transformation strategy? Is your
chief digital officer supported by a delivery team?

Citizen expectations about the quality, speed and
simplicity of essential urban operations and services
are changing. Frustrations about the gap between
Amazon-style efficiency and ‘last century’ public
sector service delivery need to be addressed.

2. Are staff with data and digital skills empowered to
propose, design and deliver service transformation?
Or are they obstructed from creating change?

Today’s city leaders must recognise that data is one
of the most valuable resources they can deploy. The
primary question is not which digital technology to
adopt; this is a secondary question. First and foremost,
the issue for cities is: what data do we have and how
can we use it to deliver better public services for all?

The opportunity is clear: cities that use data
to transform their own operations and public
services have the potential to offer their citizens
improvements – including the functioning of
democratic processes – at a far greater scale and
speed than in the past. The question is how?

Data is a resource. Digital technology is a tool.

City-based data leadership: taking the right steps
Using data to transform public services and strengthen
transparency and citizen engagement requires a
different set of skills and a new approach. This is
why so many cities that are leading the way in data
innovation are focusing on the appointment of chief
digital officers and/or on building new, agile teams
capable of identifying and unlocking opportunities.

Cities need to decide what they want to achieve using
specific datasets, then select digital technologies that
have been designed to deliver these required outcomes.
Transforming services: cities must lead
A growing number of private sector organisations are
transforming their own operations and the delivery
of goods and services through data. Amazon is the
largest and most extreme example of a company
whose business model is founded on the successful
use of data. As Amazon and others reap the rewards
of growing rapidly through data they are transforming
the customer experience and fundamentally changing
expectations about daily lives and working practices
at an individual, household and organisational level.

3. Does your city understand the quality of its
existing public services? Digitising core operations
and services will not, on its own, deliver quality
improvements. If public service delivery is weak
this must be acknowledged; data should be used to
understand the weaknesses and opportunities, with
digital solutions contributing to quality improvement.
4. Are you ready to have a more involved conversation
with citizens about city challenges and the cocreation with citizens of new solutions? One of
the most powerful opportunities offered by the
age of data is that of sharing data responsibly and
being open to the spontaneous co-creation of new
approaches to everything from essential public
services to the design of new infrastructure.
Mayoral action
Mayors that establish city-wide cultures where
data is valued and viewed as a public good, and
that adopt common standards for managing it,
will be amongst the leaders in this digital age.

38 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 39

3.

Insights

Digital, innovation
and high tech
Key questions

What steps could you
take as a city leader to
encourage and progress
digital service transformation
to business and citizens?
Do cities have the digital vision,
strategy and skills to shape and
participate in the data revolution?

Page 43

How can city leaders use
data and digital solutions to
improve services, strengthen
transparency and encourage
greater citizen engagement
and trust, while recognising the
need for greater security around
the use of personal data?

Chaired by Mayor Tim Bowles of the West
of England Combined Authority and Mayor
Brian Barnett of Rochester Hills, USA
Sponsored by Arup and Ramboll
Moderated by Richard Shennan, Mott MacDonald

1.

‘Smart city’ technology can
be used to influence policy,
improve decision-making,
drive better outcomes for
business, city and citizen
and improve value for
money – and monitor
the success of each.

6.

The West of England
Combined Authority is
committed to open data
and is helping young
people learn coding
skills with which they can
entrepreneurially develop
new insights and solutions
for the benefit of the city
economy, population
and environment.

It is essential that city
leaders work in partnership
with businesses to create
data and technology
strategies that will benefit
all areas of the community.

4.
2.

The US Conference of
Mayors has adopted the
‘3i Strategy’ which
focuses on infrastructure,
innovation and inclusion
to empower city leaders
seeking to stay at
the forefront of the
technological boom.

Improving the collection
and management of
data could help city
leaders connect with their
communities, improving
the lines of communication
to provide more focussed
services more efficiently.

5.

Open data sharing
will allow individuals,
researchers, local
businesses, scientists and
SMEs to develop systems
to support, enrich and
improve communities.

40 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 41

Challenges
and solutions

Beware of risk
The G20’s Financial Stability Board has created the
Taskforce for Climate-related Financial Disclosure (TCFD),
the supporters of which include systemically important
lenders, banks, insurers and credit rating agencies.
Collectively they control one third of global wealth.

Low carbon
and energy

Page 44
More than half the world’s
population lives in urban areas.
Cities consume more than two
thirds of global energy and
account for 70% of carbon
emissions. With more people
migrating to cities, their carbon
footprint will rise further unless
the world successfully transitions
to a low-carbon economy.

TCFD members are starting to ask businesses to
disclose and manage their climate-related financial risks:
• Ability to transition to a zero-carbon economy
that will prevent global temperatures rising more
than 2°C above the pre-industrial average.
• Physical resilience to the effects of climate change
still to come.
They say they will withdraw services from
organisations that fail to disclose and manage
their risks effectively, and favour those that do.
Action is expected as early as 2019 – and
TCFD supporters emphasise that, as users of
financial services, public sector organisations
are as much in their sights as private ones.

Fourteen of the world’s 17 largest cities and 40% of
those with populations of between 1M and 10M are near
the coast. Factor in rising sea levels and an increased
incidence of storms resulting from climate change
and the risk to people and infrastructure becomes
clear. By the mid-2030s US$200bn of investment
each year will be needed globally to combat losses
from climate effects. Cutting carbon emissions rapidly
will help to limit the extent and severity of climate
change over this century. Moreover, immediate
action will be more cost-effective in the long run.
But low-carbon investment can also make cities more
livable. For example, efficient and accessible low-or
zero-emission public transport results in better quality
of life, cleaner air and improved health thanks to more
journeys by bike or foot. Since decarbonisation demands
innovation, it also opens business opportunities.
Regional difference and opportunity
There will be no ‘one size fits all’ solution due to
geographic, cultural and political differences. However,
innovators will be able to export their expertise
to developing cities, while they in turn have the
opportunity to leapfrog present low-carbon leaders –
something already happening in the energy sector.

Mayors should beware of the importance of de-risking
their own operations and those of their agencies
and service providers. They should also emphasise
the importance of action to major employers, which
stand to lose or gain depending on their response.
Show strong leadership
Worldwide, more than 9000 cities have committed
to reduce emissions in line with the Paris Agreement.
Low-carbon city strategies should focus on
identifying and quantifying the benefits of lowcarbon infrastructure on the local economy, and the
mechanisms and enablers to realise the advantages.
Decarbonising the economy involves a combination
of wholesale transition to renewable energy and
energy storage, deferring investment in new physical
infrastructure by meeting social and economic
needs with digital solutions, behavioural change,
radical efficiency in new assets and services,
and low-carbon retrofits to existing ones.
In the infrastructure sector, embodied carbon
savings of more than 60% leading clients are
achieving, delivering cost savings of up to 30%.
The methods used by those organisations at the
cutting edge have been codified in an international

standard for managing carbon, PAS 2080. As
important clients for infrastructure and services, city
mayors can demand action by their supply chains.
Join up thinking
The scale and population density of cities allow
energy and resource flows to be used more efficiently
by taking a system level approach and integrating
energy, heating and cooling, transport and waste in a
way not possible at low population densities. As cities
increasingly compete and collaborate across national
boundaries and seek to attract investment, skilled
employees, students, start-up communities, establishing
low-carbon credentials can be an important pull factor.
The data and digital revolution is creating opportunities
to consider systemic solutions. City leaders are
well placed to drive joined-up solutions across
previously siloed city operations and services.
Catalyse investment
Significant low-carbon solutions will require
private investment and business buy-in.
Leadership is needed to bring together diverse
stakeholders to create bankable solutions.
A resilient new world energy
By mid-century an additional 2.5bn people will
inhabit our planet. Two-thirds of the 9.5bn global
population will live in urban areas. Mayors must take
centre stage in acting to combat climate change.
Maria Manidaki, Mark Crouch and Clare Wildfire for Mott MacDonald

42 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 43

1.

Insights

Low carbon
and energy
Key questions

What can cities do to optimise
the interaction between energy
supply and energy demand?

Chaired by Mayor Hubert Bruls of Nijmegen and
Councillor Huw Thomas, Leader of Cardiff City Council
Sponsored by NEC and YTL
Moderated by Clare Wildfire, Mott MacDonald

Successful low carbon
solutions must have a
strong business case –
they should outcompete
conventional solutions
on whole life value
and deliver a stronger
return on investment.

What can city leadership do to
encourage business investment
and buy-in to the new low
carbon energy landscape?

3.

Page 45

2.

Business can bring the
‘know how’ but the public
sector holds many of
the assets businesses
need – roofs for solar
panels, landholdings for
other forms of renewable
energy, and waste
streams that can be
converted to energy.

Investment in low carbon
and alternative energy
methods should be
encouraged through
the supply chain as well
as investment through
pension funds and
procurement methods.

4.

Carbon reduction
should be seen as a an
essential part of local
and national responses
to climate change,
helping to minimise the
frequency and severity
of climate impacts.

5.

Mayors and city leaders
have an important role in
promoting buildings and
city-scale energy solutions
such as micro-generation,
battery storage, thermal
energy storage and
vehicle-to-grid technology.

6.

Local businesses and
citizens must work
together to develop
a new standard for
energy solutions.

44 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 45

Challenges
and solutions

Plan a livable city
Planning of integrated sustainable developments
can be aided by digital technologies to analyse the
accessibility of employment and essential services, such
as schools and hospitals, from potential housing land.

Housing and
transport

A land-use plan to ensure housing is near essential
services can help to create a ‘short-distance city’ where
walking and cycling become transport modes of choice.
City leaders must be aware that in the absence
of high-quality public transport, private cars often
meet the need for connectivity, with consequences
for the environment and public health.

Page 46

The growth in our cities is
relentless, creating demand for
more and better housing, and
parallel demand for connectivity.

Lack of connectivity restricts access to work,
health, education and leisure activities, which
can contribute to economic underperformance,
social isolation and instability.
Mayors face the challenge of planning, funding
and delivering inclusive growth in the face of rapid
change and significant uncertainty. As well as the
impacts of migration and ongoing financial constraint,
digital technologies are transforming work, leisure
and retail behaviours, while social equality and
inclusion demands significant work to improve
access to quality transport and housing for all.

Respond rapidly
Coping with migration and the influx of refugees
presents a housing issue for which municipalities
can prepare. Digital project delivery methods
including building information modelling (BIM) and
design for manufacture and assembly (DfMA) make
it possible to deliver many thousands of housing
units – plus supporting infrastructure – faster
and at lower cost than conventional construction.
Using BIM, a standardised set of designs can be
drawn up for buildings and infrastructure that can
be delivered rapidly in response to a crisis.
Designs should cover housing units and communal
buildings such as clinics and schools, as well as
infrastructure. There is also a need for generic
urban plans that can direct spatial zoning within
settlements, organise utilities and govern growth.
Industry is developing such techniques for speed
and efficiency in developed nations. The challenge
for the GPM is how to create the conditions for such
benefits to be directed towards those in most need.
Unlock funding
Providing robust, efficient, affordable public transport
has an ‘uplift’ effect on land value – a well-serviced
bus interchange typically raises value by 5%-15%,
and a commuter rail hub by 10%-20%, over a radial
area of up to 1.5km. In addition, the density and value
of property within this area will also be higher. This
provides an opportunity for city administrations to
generate revenue through direct and indirect levies
or contributions in kind, or to mandate the inclusion
of housing and affordable public amenities.
Mayors can also progress much-needed housing and
transport improvements by challenging conventional
cost-benefit analysis methods to prove there is a

business case that will justify investment. Traditional
economic appraisal models highlight, for example,
reduced journey times as the primary benefit. To
unlock investment, a wider economic assessment
is needed to identify and capture the potential local
social and economic benefits, and quantify their
contribution to the regional or national economy.
Embrace the new
New housing models such as shared living and
intergenerational homes, or even micro-homes, may
become viable, some of which may come from disruptive
new market entrants. As well as bringing much needed
space and cost efficiency, they will address other critical
city issues such as social isolation and energy demand.
In many cities, rapid urban development is the norm,
using modular solutions, BIM-based catalogues
of ready designed construction products and
DfMA. All offer time, cost and carbon savings,
improve safety during construction, and enable
easier adaptation as city needs change.
Mayors have a critical role to play in encouraging,
enabling and gaining acceptance for innovations
that will optimise their spend to meet today’s needs
while being prepared for tomorrow’s pressures.
Support synergies
In affluent cities, private car ownership is likely to
remain common, but in the next 10 years there will
be a large-scale shift from internal combustion to
electric power. Electric vehicles can store power and
release it back to the grid when parked, contributing
to energy efficiency and resilience of supply for
homeowners and the area power provider alike.
Mayors can play an important role by supporting
the development of smart grids and vehicle
charging infrastructure in their cities.
The introduction of autonomous vehicles into cities
is an uncertainty that is essential to consider, not
just due to the impact on city planning but also on
energy use. Steering a solution based on shared
rides rather than single use will help to curtail
the potential increase in energy demand that
autonomous vehicles could inadvertently generate.
Jo Baker and Clare Wildfire for Mott MacDonald

46 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 47

1.

Insights

Housing
and transport
Key questions

How can city leaders stimulate
business, and particularly SMEs,
to innovate with the aim of
improving whole life service and
cost, and close funding gaps?

Chaired by Mayor Bima Arya of Bogor, Indonesia
and Mayor Joe Anderson of Liverpool, UK
Sponsored by Womble Bond Dickinson and Arcadis
Moderated by Joe Baker, Mott MacDonald

Housing and transport are
major influences on the
quality of life for citizens,
population health and
economic prosperity, not
just in the city itself but
in the wider region.

Page 47

How should city leadership and
business collaborate, fund and
innovate to deliver housing,
transport and connected
infrastructure rapidly. Mayors
should take in to consideration
changes from technology
innovation and national and
international migration.
How can city leaders best
drive and benefit from uplift in
land value for their citizens?

3.
2.

The pace of change in
transport is fast. Cities are
being asked to respond
to issues in which few are
experienced, underlining
the importance of mayors
and city leaders working
with business experts to
‘plan for uncertainty’.

Cities need a strong plan
to prevent businesses
from gaining undue and
unbalanced influence/
control over service
provision, revenue and
spending. Housing and
transport must meet
social and economic
needs, not just serve
financial interests.

4.

Cities should work
together and share
learning on new
technology experiences
and applications to
help improve delivery
of transport and
housing solutions.

5.

Properties lying empty
when there is a crushing
need for affordable
housing is a concern. In
developed economies
city authorities have an
important role to play in
identifying and managing
vacant properties. This
can be done by working
with businesses to monitor
consumption of water
and energy. Targeted
taxation may be a way of
pressuring owners to put
empty buildings into use.

6.

Developed countries
should pass on knowledge
to developing nations
to improve housing
and transport, assisting
‘leapfrog’ advances in
efficiency, performance
and value and delivering
a better standard of living.
This would play a part in
reducing emigration. The
GPM should organise
an event in West Africa
to promote this.

Challenges
and solutions
Page 48

Healthier cities

A thriving urban economy has
obvious advantages for the
health of city dwellers – it affects
everything from diet and access
to medical care to air quality,
sanitation and worker safety.
The relationship between city governments and
business is a crucial one. City leaders must be aware
of potential tensions between the pursuit of shortterm profit and long-term improvements in health, for
example pollution from industry and vehicles, unsafe
working environments, poor sanitation and mental
stress. Several responses should be considered.
1. Stand firm against vested interests
Tobacco growing, manufacture and sales can be
important sources of employment and taxation
revenue. But tobacco kills more than 7M people
each year worldwide; half of those who use tobacco
die of it.1 A UK local government Declaration on
Tobacco Control commits councils to “protect our
tobacco control work from the commercial and
vested interests of the tobacco industry by not
accepting any partnerships or payments.”2
2. Challenge the status quo
Car use tends to increase with economic growth.
However, in most cities that monitor air quality, pollution
exceeds World Health Organization (WHO) thresholds
for safety. Half the urban population monitored is
exposed to air pollution at least 2.5 times higher

than the recommended maximum, putting people at
added risk of chronic health problems. Contributing
factors include social aspirations to car ownership,
transport and planning policies oriented towards use
of private cars, and economic reliance on fossil fuels.3
City leaders have significant control over transport
and can implement integrated rapid public transport
to take cars off the road. In many locations the
automotive industry is a major employer. Mayors
can play a part in sustaining this while reducing
pollution by promoting travel by autonomous electric
vehicles and working with the private sector to
install charging points and smart infrastructure.
3. Intervene for the public good
Fatty and sugary foods can be tasty and cheap.
About 13% of the world’s adult population are obese,
and the number of people with diabetes has risen
from 108M in 1980 to almost 500M today. Diabetes
is a major cause of blindness, kidney failure, heart
attacks, stroke and lower limb amputation.
Healthy diet, regular physical activity,
maintaining a normal body weight and avoiding
tobacco use prevent or delay the onset of
(the most common) type two diabetes.4
Policies that play a part in assisting the population to
maintain a healthy weight span health, agriculture,
transport, urban planning, environment, food
processing, distribution, marketing, and education.5
Through transport, policy makers can promote
walking and cycling. Through planning and the
discretion over business rates levied, they can
encourage neighbourhood stores to sell healthy

foods at affordable prices. And they can promote
healthier school meals, while regulating the
number and type of food outlets near schools.
Be prepared
With intercontinental air travel and mass migration,
no city can expect to fully isolate itself from infectious
diseases and global pandemics. However a city that
invests in initiatives and infrastructure to improve public
health will be more resilient to health crises. As with
other aspects of healthcare, relationships with the private
sector are crucial to prevent or manage pandemics.
Most mayoral responsibilities include public health,
and awareness of this should inform masterplans
and policy making. The physical environment,
social connectedness and public safety act as
barometers of the health of a city, guiding mayors
where to take action and prioritise investment.
Set the example
Municipal governments are large employers, often
the biggest in the city. They can set an example by
implementing working practices that encourage their
workforces to adopt healthy lifestyles – and encouraging
organisations in their supply chains to do likewise.
Together, mayors, local government and business can
improve the health of citizens. It involves recognising
the benefits business brings and constructively
challenging business practices that endanger health.
Dr Catriona Waddington for Mott MacDonald

www.who.int/en/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/tobacco
smokefreeaction.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/06/Declaration.pdf
www.who.int/news-room/detail/07-05-2014-air-quality-deteriorating-in-many-of-the-world-s-cities
4
www.who.int/en/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/diabetes
5
www.who.int/en/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/obesity-and-overweight
1

2
3

50 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 51

1.

Insights

Healthier cities
Key questions

How can city leaders balance
political and economic growth
issues to achieve healthier cities?
What is the role of business
and employers?

Chaired by Mayor Jefferson Koijee of
Monrovia, Liberia and Councillor Nick Forbes,
leader of Newcastle City Council
Sponsored by UWE, Bristol and Georgetown University
Moderated by Catriona Waddington, Mott MacDonald

City leaders have
significant influence
over the health of
the population but it
is principally through
‘soft power’ rather
than direct control.

Scenarios to consider
A tobacco company wants
to sponsor a city-owned
green space near its factory,
providing funding for
playground maintenance
and improved gardens.

3.

•

Page 49

• School pupils consume high
fat, high sugar lunchtime
meals because fast food
outlets are located nearby,
providing cheap, tasty
but unhealthy food.

• A major new employer plans
to build premises in the
suburbs with a huge parking
area for its employees.

2.

Health is closely
intertwined with influences
such as poor sanitation,
substandard housing,
job insecurity and low
standards of living.

All sections of the
community have a role
to play in achieving
improvements, not just
experts, mayors and health
professionals. Strategies
should be developed that
enable communities to
take some control and
responsibility for their
own health, including
diet, street cleanliness,
sanitation and drug use.

4.

Experience and best
practice in tackling
health issues can be
transferable from city to
city. Practical ideas and
solutions to improve
health and wellbeing
are best shared through
networks such as the WHO
Healthy Cities Network.

52 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 53

Cities at
Mott MacDonald

Page 50

If you don’t know Mott MacDonald, the headline
facts are we’re a 16,000-strong, global engineering,
management and development consultancy. For
150 years we’ve been working with city leaders to
finance, design, deliver and manage infrastructure
and services for the benefit of citizens and business.
Our multisector, multiskilled makeup, allows us to
look at issues holistically, identifying potential risks,
opportunities and synergies. We care about the
aspirations of those we work with – but we also like to
challenge assumptions, look at problems from different
angles and question the status quo. We’re about:

7.

Improving
people’s lives
Partnering with metropolitan authorities,
infrastructure owners and operators,
investors, businesses and communities,
we work to achieve transformative
results that improve people’s lives.

Providing opportunity
Successful cities
provide opportunity and
amenity – from which
stem innovation and
entrepreneurship, jobs
and economic vitality,
learning, recreation, social
care, artistic creativity
and cultural richness.

Integrating systems
These benefits are
enabled by social and
physical infrastructure
systems that are
closely integrated and
interdependent – a joinedup system of systems.

Making connections
Achieving ever-better
social, economic
and environmental
outcomes requires
in-depth knowledge
of each system – and
also of the connections
between them all.

Creating value
Through insight and
understanding, synergies
can be achieved,
efficiencies realised,
performance optimised,
wellbeing advanced and
new value created.

We believe that successful
cities should be:

1.

Diverse
Culturally, socially and
economically, because
that’s what makes cities
stimulating, rewarding
and sustainable.

2.

The product of their
environment
Meeting local needs while
respecting local issues
such as climatic conditions,
availability of resources
and environmental
and social impacts.

4.

Flexible and responsive
Capable of
accommodating
unexpected changes
required by social,
environmental, economic
or technological factors.

5.
3.

For people
Promoting wellbeing
through social inclusion,
creation of economic
opportunity and
providing access to
essential services.

User-friendly and
convenient
Providing employment and
amenity ‘on the doorstep’.

6.

Efficient
Providing convenient,
affordable, high-quality
service while satisfying
growing social and
environmental standards.

8.

Durable, adaptable
and resilient
Built to last,
accommodating
expansions and renewals
when required, and
designed to withstand
or recover swiftly from
events associated with
climate change.

9.

Joined up
Realising synergies
between linked systems
and cycles so that
everything works better.

Intelligent
Meeting new needs and
addressing old ones in
new ways, seizing the
potential of emerging
technologies and
testing the validity of
conventional solutions.
Search
Cities Mott Macdonald

54 I Empowering cities as drivers of change

Closing statement

Energy, creativity,
ingenuity

Page 51

It’s been a great pleasure to moderate the GPM Summit
2018, and it is clear to me from the discussions we have
had that cities are at the front line in facing many of the
world’s most pressing global challenges, from migration
and urban security to global health and climate,
and that city leaders are increasingly called upon to
respond to these challenges on a day-to-day basis.
This experience shows mayors and their teams are
uniquely well-placed to offer their insights into the
international frameworks that are trying to solve
these critical issues. I have been very impressed
by the energy, creativity and ingenuity which city
leaders bring to these issues, and their dedication
to ensuring that the citizens they represent are
heard and understood in international forums.
The resolutions adopted in the GPM represent a bold
new vision for the role of cities – one I very much
hope we continue to see develop in the future.
Sharmila Nebhrajani OBE, chief executive, Wilton
Park and GPM Summit 2018 moderator

Empowering cities as drivers of change I 55

One line
When the overwhelming tide
of things threatens to drown me,
sink pincers into my skin
hold these shoulders hostage,
I remember the small graces
from which all change takes subtle cues
For example: there is often a line in a poem,
A scatter of letters, the humblest image
that sets the forest of the mind alight.
This is what truly makes the poem sing
Not just a frivolous gathering of words
But a living thing demanding our hearts
to take on braver shapes
One line can pull the reader out
from the mouth of despair
Perhaps make the world
sit a little softer in its cradle
Suddenly we feel less alone
Part of a picture of clashing colour
A chaos that somehow finds unity at its core
Much like that one line in that one poem
There is often one person in one city
A figure of hope and steady purpose
Who must somehow weave the magic
of doing the best for the most
An intricate dance of balance and bargain
When pulled in fifty different directions,
You make an oath to all of us
A contract in concrete, sweat and ink
But there will always be
An endless web of voices
Sprawling out to no man’s land
Many leaders shout to be heard and heeded
Countless native tongues colliding
A constant clash of splintered Esperanto
We all know that feeling
Being stuck in a crowded room
Thinking we might disappear — our voices
Unacknowledged in a sea of noise
The fear that we will be the line
Carelessly cut from the poem

For the cities make up the countries
which make up the nations,
And our nations are sick and splitting,
Not just over one law or one war
But the sickening rush of uncertainty
The rumble of a changing world
Ripping fissures beneath us
Yet the more our shared problems bind us together,
The more we make borders of land and language
Sealing off our tongues
Reaching for the brute
Slang of violence
But surely,
great cities are built like beautiful verse
Each detail matters, every paving stone and playground
the regal churches and neglected alley ways
Every person that walks its streets
An essential part of the terror and beauty
That tussle for dominance under one kaleidoscopic sky
We have been starved of leaders
who listen to those on the ground
These are the humble streets you represent
The hoarse voices that trust you
with their myriad griefs and dreams
We are the lost sentences of this city’s story
Full and fair and unvarnished
Offer us up as a precious contribution
Not much by ourselves
But without us, the poem that speaks
Of this whole world could not be complete
Vanessa Kisuule
writer, artist and performer

vanessakisuule.com

Page 52

Global Parliament of Mayors Annual Summit 2018
Declaration
23rd October 2018

We, as mayors of the Global Parliament of Mayors, convened in Bristol, UK, have voted with a majority of the GPM Mayors on the following:

1. City leadership
From migration to climate change, from inequality to population health, global and national institutions are not delivering to the fullest. Citizens of the
world need global governance to evolve, seeing cities and international networks sit alongside national and international leaders as equal partners in
shaping global policy.

2. Migration
We commit to
-implementing the Global Compact for Migration and the Global Compact on Refugees in our cities.
-emphasizing the benefits of migration in our work and using the language of inclusion, welcome and belonging.
We call on national governments to
-end the use of dehumanising language in relation to migrants and refugees.
-collaborate with city leaders in developing and implementing migration-related policy.
-allocate migration-related resources and powers at local level.
We call on international institutions to
-include cities when developing and implementing international agreements on migration and refugees.
-collaborate with cities to develop innovative ways to manage migration for the benefit of both departure and arrival cities.
We commit the GPM to work in the following partnerships:
-with the UN High Commissioner for Refugees (UNHCR) to promote the #withrefugees cities pledge and the Cities of Solidarity initiative.
-with the United Nations Children's Fund and UNHCR to champion the rights of migrant and displaced children and youth in the implementation of the
Global Compact for Migration and the Global Compact on Refugees.
-with the Brookings Institute, the OECD, Welcoming International and others to help create city-level indicators for integration which are aligned with
the Global Compact for Migration and the Global Compact on Refugees.
-with the Mayors Migration Council to advocate on behalf of cities in relation to the implementation and review of the Global Compact for Migration
and the Global Compact on Refugees.
The GPM Declaration on Migration is also supported by the cities of:
Beira, Mozambique - Durban, South Africa - Ellembelle District, Ghana - Hannover, Germany - Iganga, Uganda - Kabale, Uganda - Lahore, Pakistan
Puerto Morazon, Nicaragua - Sydney, Australia - Tamale, Ghana - Thessaloniki, Greece - Viano de Castelo, Portugal

3. Urban security
We commit to
-foster urban safety and security through policies and practices that engage residents, lead to social cohesion, and a better quality of life for all.
-design and build inclusive urban infrastructure to promote safety and security.
We call on national governments to
-emphasize problem-oriented and community-based approaches to policing.
-oppose the militarisation of urban police forces.
-promote multi-stakeholder partnerships for crime prevention as a more effective public security strategy
We call on international institutions to
-adopt evidence-based, resident-centered global standards for urban security.
-advocate for transparent, open and data-driven approaches to enhance urban security.
-strengthen strategic partnerships with international organizations to reinforce the global voice of cities on urban security.

We commit the GPM to work in the following partnerships:
-with UN-Habitat to advance the UN System-wide Guidelines on Safer Cities.
-with the World Economic Forum to support the development of evidence based approaches.
-with Strong Cities Network and European Forum for Urban Security (EFUS) to reinforce the global voice of cities on urban safety and security
priorities.
The GPM Declaration on Urban Security is also supported by the cities of:
Bangangte, Cameroon - Beira, Mozambique - Durban, South Africa - Ellembelle District, Ghana - Iganga, Uganda - Kabale, Uganda - Lahore, Pakistan - Nice, France Puerto Morazon, Nicaragua - Viano de Castelo, Portugal

4. Health
We commit to
-prioritise pandemic preparedness as a key component of urban health planning.
-collaborate with researchers and consultants to generate valid data to implement practical initiatives to improve urban health planning and pandemic
preparedness.
-develop an intra-city mechanism to efficiently share information and experiences to facilitate emergency response.
We call on national governments to
-stimulate strong collaboration with mayors to develop health-related policy through communication, stakeholder consultation and financing
-support research to estimate the costs of pandemic preparedness in cities, acknowledging the economic and political importance of resilient urban
environments.

Page 53

We call on international institutions to
-advocate for financial and technical support to strengthen international strategic partnerships and one common global voice on Urban Health
-collaborate with city leaders before, during and after pandemics.
-include city leaders in international frameworks of urban health. In particular, we call on the WHO to include city leaders in the World Health
Assembly.
The GPM Declaration on Health is also supported by the cities of:
Beira, Mozambique – Durban, South Africa - Ellembelle District, Ghana - Hannover, Germany - Iganga, Uganda - Kabale, Uganda - Lahore, Pakistan - Nice, France - Puerto
Morazon, Nicaragua - Sydney, Australia - Tamale, Ghana - Viano de Castelo, Portugal

GPM Executive Committee

Peter Kurz, mayor of Mannheim, Germany
Marvin Rees, mayor of Bristol, UK
Leoluca Orlando, mayor of Palermo, Italy
Grace Mary Mugasa, mayor of Hoima, Uganda
Christine Sagen Helgo, mayor of Stavanger, Norway
Stephen K. Benjamin, mayor of Columbia, USA
Jefferson Tamba Koijee, mayor of Monrovia, Liberia
Baikuntha Nath Neupane, mayor of Vyas, Nepal

Page 54

Resources Scrutiny Commission

Resources Scrutiny
Commission
6 December 2018

Report of:

Tim Borrett, Director: Policy, Strategy and Partnerships

Title:

Global Parliament of Mayors Annual Summit – post-event report

Ward:

N/A

Officer Presenting Report: Tim Borrett, Director: Policy, Strategy and Partnerships
Contact Telephone Number: 0117 922 3332

Recommendation
That Resources Scrutiny:
1. Notes the report
2. Provides feedback to inform any future event planning
The significant issues in the report are:
- Bristol hosted 67 mayors from 36 countries, along with representatives from 12 international
networks. The summit and its fringe events directly included over 2,500 local citizens in various
engagement activities.
- The estimated economic value to the city of this was approximately £330,000
- The event budget was £291,212 and, of this, Bristol City Council contributed £40,754
- Bristol City Council’s contribution predominantly paid for additional staff time and appropriate
security of the event. All hospitality was covered by external private funding
- The event produced a formal Declaration to which Bristol is a signatory, along with a Summit
report and video which both showcase the city
- Several new collaborations and partnerships were catalysed through arranging and hosting the
event

Page 55

Resources Scrutiny Commission

1. Summary
On 21 – 23 October 2018 Bristol hosted the Global Parliament of Mayors (GPM) Annual
Summit. The council acted as primary organiser of the event and underwrote costs up to a
value of £150,000.
The city delivered the GPM’s largest and most successful summit to date, with an
ambitious event programme which cost £291,212. Of this, the city council’s contribution
(subject to final confirmation) is £40,754. The balance was funded through private
sponsorship (£155,990), grant funding (£66,257) and underwriting from the West of
England Combined Authority (£28,211). This funding was sourced and secured by the city
council, working with a local contractor on the private sponsorship element.
Event management was undertaken by local firm Richmond Event Management working in
partnership with BCC and Focal Point Event Management.
The Summit attracted 67 mayors from 36 countries, along with representatives from 12
international networks and various industry partners, experts and guests. There were a
total of approximately 200 visitors to Bristol. This is worth an estimated £330,000 to the
city’s economy, based local supplier spend and estimates from Visit Britain that visiting
delegates spend an average of £856 per head on a single conference-based international
visit.
The event programme was formed in partnership with the GPM Secretariat in The Hague,
focusing on migration, urban security and health. Declarations on these topics were
passed by voting member mayor’s during the summit.
2. The GPM Annual Summit in detail
The GPM Declaration
These are developed each year, and in 2018 Bristol put in extensive work ensuring the
content was progressive on the key topics (migration, urban security and health). The final
Declaration is available at Appendix B and https://globalparliamentofmayors.org/globalparliament-mayors-gather-bristol-declaration-2018/
Engagement and involvement
City partners were involved from the beginning, with an ‘Action Board’ set up in November
2017 to explore varied opportunities for the summit to bring benefit to the whole city. The
International Strategy Board received a full debrief on the Summit on 21st November 2018,
and fed back their own experience, which was overall very supportive of the event taking
place in Bristol.
Through various strands of engagement 2,580 local citizens were involved in some
capacity. In terms of partner and city engagement:
• 39 student ambassadors from University of Bristol and University of the West of
England chaperoned mayors and ran a ‘Mock Parliament’ on the final summit day
• Community events were run by Bristol-based groups and community leaders
including the African Voices Forum, Pakistan Association Bristol and
representatives from the Bristol Jamaican diaspora. These brought relevant mayors
to meet Bristol communities on the final summit evening
• Bristol Museum held a World in Bristol day focused on migration and partly funded
by a GPM-related grant from Open Societies Foundation

Page 56

Resources Scrutiny Commission

•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

•
•
•

Circomedia performed at the Sunday night opening reception, which was funded by
a grant from British Council
Three GPM-related Festival of Ideas events were run on topics around democracy
and populism, funded by a GPM-related grant
Bristol’s City Poet wrote and performed a poem written for the summit on the
opening night. This is reproduced on page 29 of the summit report (Appendix A)
Bristol Women’s Commission co-delivered a Women in Leadership session open to
60 Bristol guests
Two dinners were organised by Mouthful, involving mayors and young people from
disadvantaged backgrounds in Bristol
Tours took place to showcase the city and region:
o Innovation Tour (with EngineShed/SetSquared, Watershed)
o Harbourside Tour focusing on harbourside regeneration (organised by
Business West and including SS Great Britain)
o Roman Baths visit, Bath (organised by Bath and North East Somerset
Council)
o Bristol Housing Festival visit
o Clifton Suspension Bridge and Visitor Centre
Bristol Airport provided complementary VIP treatment for mayors travelling through
the airport as in-kind support to the summit
Industry partners and supporters with a Bristol presence included Womble Bond
Dickinson, University of Bristol, University of the West of England, Arup, Wessex
Water, Mott MacDonald, Deloitte, Bristol Port Company, Ramboll, Arcadis and
Business West. Local partners and businesses were also involved in five industry
roundtable sessions during the summit
Bristol Aerospace Museum hosted the formal dinner to showcase the region’s
aerospace and engineering expertise
Ten local firms showcased the city and region’s innovation and trade sectors at the
formal dinner as part of an exhibition co-hosted with the city’s universities.
First Bus branded the No.1 bus for the Summit days and sponsored Summit
transport

Financial
• The closing budget for the entire summit and all tertiary events totalled £291,212
• Of this:
o the direct event management costs of the summit were £147,900
o a working partnership on migration was formed with the OECD and included
an agreement to support summit work and showcase the OECD Champion
Mayors Network, costing £62,528. This cost was underwritten by the West of
England Combined Authority and from this £28,211 is being drawn upon, with
the remainder covered by a grant monies from Open Society Foundations
o A total of £155,990 was raised in private sponsorship
o Additional value of £17,750 was delivered as ‘in-kind’ and ‘value added’
support from private partners, including Mott Macdonald producing the official
Summit Report and First Group branding a bus.
o A total of £66,257 grant monies were applied from the British Council and
Open Society Foundations
o All hospitality costs such as catering, venue hire, transport and welcomeevening entertainment were covered by private sponsorship and grants
contracted for those specific purposes
o The residual balance of £40,754 was covered by the council’s underwriting.

Page 57

Resources Scrutiny Commission

This sum is subject to the processing of final sponsorship and grant monies,
and may vary slightly from the time of writing due to issues such as payments
being made in foreign currencies and subject to fluctuating exchange rates.
However any variance is anticipated to be minimal
•

All sponsorship was sought through a professional agency with a tender awarded to
a local SME, Brightelm Ltd. Sponsorship was subject to formal sponsorship
agreements, ensuring a strict code of conduct applied and that no benefits other
than those specifically contracted for the summit were conferred.

•

The sponsors and supporters which financially contributed were:
Arcadis LLP
Arup
Bird
Bristol Airport
British Council
Bristol Port Company
Business West
Cordant Group PLC
Deloitte
Mott MacDonald
NEC Europe Ltd
Ramboll
University of Bristol
University of the West
of England
Wessex Water
Womble Bond
Dickinson LLP

£2,000
£12,000
£35,000
£2,000
£10,000
£490
£1,000
£5,000
£10,000
£20,000
£10,000
£5,000
£10,000
£15,000
£15,000
£15,000

Media
Media and communications work was a joint effort with other partners including the GPM
Secretariat in The Hague.
Post-event analysis shows that Bristol City Council activity drove the majority of
mainstream media coverage. In summary:
•
•
•
•
•

•

83 individual pieces of media coverage were secured
32 international media outlets from 15 countries covered the summit
The total potential reach of UK media coverage (based on outlet circulation/viewer
statistics) was over 150 million ‘opportunities to see’. International reach cannot be
calculated due to limits on council monitoring systems
Tonal analysis of mainstream media coverage showed that it was 99% positive in
tone
Approaching the summit there was a 269% increase in GPM’s Twitter followers
(from 158 to 583) and #Bristol was the predominant hashtag used in related posts
over the three days of the summit across 560 posts from 279 users globally,
predominantly in the UK and United States.
#GPMSummit became a Bristol ‘trend’ during the event meaning it was one of the

Page 58

Resources Scrutiny Commission

•

most talked about things on Twitter in the city at the time.
There were just under 2,500 active engagements (such as post-sharing and clicking
links in Tweets) with the @GPMayors account.

Outputs and Outcomes to date
As previously noted the primary outputs of the summit were the formal declaration
(Appendix B) and summit report (Appendix A). Two videos were also produced, one
focusing on documenting the summit to increase its transparency and engagement
(https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=QqEK1EYkVVc), the other on the impacts for Bristol in
hosting the event (https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Py3F8VYDdkk).
Whilst typically international relations focuses on long-term outcomes, there are several
immediate outcomes from the summit:
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

Cities were recognised as a valuable influence on international agreements by
bodies including the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees regarding
migration and the World Health Organisation regarding health policy
Bristol was approached by credible and influential international bodies including the
British Council and Wilton Park, building ongoing relationships with the possibility of
skills exchanges and externally funded hosting of future roundtable events on key
issues. The Summit was moderated by the Chief Executive of Wilton Park
Bristol has been invited to join key international networks of strategic value: OECD
Champions Mayors and Mayors’ Migration Council
Strengthened links with US Conference of Mayors, including the potential to develop
a Bristol-US Business Forum
Undertaking ongoing work with Open Society Foundation and OECD on Bristol’s
approach to migration and inclusivity
Opportunities for professional development and knowledge-exchange with OECD
on housing, inclusive growth and transport
Alongside other UK city leaders (who met together for the first time ever as a sidemeeting to the summit), Bristol committed to enhanced joint working with Core City
and Combined Authority partners on engagement in national policy relating to air
quality, skills and the Comprehensive Spending Review
Several proposals have come forward for city-to-city skills exchanges, including with
Hannover, Bilbao and Bogor City
Momentum created from community events to strengthen links between Bristol and
cities overseas, including a proposal to work on a Strategic Agreement with
Kingston, Jamaica
Commitments from partners for the summit outcomes to feed in to future Bristol
events, such as the 2019 Festival of Ideas
Improved local understanding to potential access to new funding grants, including
British Council Creative and Social Economies Funds
Bristol Mayor Marvin Rees was elected as co-chair of the GPM Executive
Committee

Lessons learned and experience gained
The learning below was gathered from colleagues and partners following the summit,
considering what went well and what could be improved. In summary, the GPM Project
Board concluded that there are many benefits to the city from delivery of such events, but
that the resources and skills required are extensive and external resources or partners are

Page 59

Resources Scrutiny Commission

likely to be necessary in order to deliver them.
Early planning and engagement is crucial and decisions to run such events should be
supported with strong business cases which demonstrate a return on investment.
It should be noted that these reflections and those below do not necessarily indicate that
the threat or issues manifested during planning and delivery of the GPM Summit. In many
cases they are based on learning from successful approaches taken.
With this in mind, the GPM Project Board proposes that the council notes the following
suggestions for running successful similar events:
Process and Governance
Before confirmation of hosting:
• Ensure there is a single point of ownership from a Director within the council and a
council team resourced to deliver the project, including formalise project
management support
• Ensure there is a clear, realistic and timely approach to raising sponsorship and
hiring an event management company. The council does not have internal capacity
(and, in some limited areas, expertise) to deliver an international level summit
without external support. These costs must be understood and factored in to the
business case, with an allowance for optimism bias
• Ensure any event has a clearly defined programme and scope which is mutually
understood and agreed by all parties
After confirmation:
• Agree governance structure and Project Board straight away, with agreed Terms of
Reference and the ability to expand membership as required
• Assign dedicated Project Management support
• Ensure any procurement processes are undertaken in good time and with
appropriate advice and support
• Agree minimal viable project based on pre-agreed event specification and clearly
communicate this. Identify any ‘nice to haves’ and ‘additional opportunities’ as
quickly as possible. Ensure decisions about these are taken by the Project Board.
• Any Project Board should clearly identify delegated authority within its Terms of
Reference, providing clarity on everyone’s ability to make decisions and act
• Key issues such as safety and security require robust early assessment and the
ability to respond to any changing circumstances (particularly those outside the
council’s control)
Funding and budget
• The council should not assume any international summit or major event can
necessarily be delivered at nil cost to the public purse. The business case should
articulate threats and opportunities in this regard and provide a full assessment
before a decision is made to run an event
• Agree an approach to sponsorship as early as possible, with an 18-month lead-in
time being preferable to ensure approaches are made before potential funders set
annual budgets
• Develop a sponsorship prospectus as early as possible and be sure that any event
partners are well sighted about sponsorship proposals and the packages offered.

Page 60

Resources Scrutiny Commission

•
•
•

These should be based on a mutual-value proposition, not simply a request for
funding
Approach sponsors in a joined-up way which is cognisant of any other requests
those bodies may have received (or may receive in future) from the council
Ensure an open-book approach to budget management is designed in to the event,
enabling transparency and accountability
Ensure cost forecasts are based on a realistic assessment of requirements,
including that for major events things such as design, wayfinding, catering and more
needs to be of a certain quality to attract investment and attendance

Partners
• Engage partners early, but be realistic of their capacity to directly contribute time,
expertise or funding. Set out agreed roles and responsibilities in writing, and allow
that the council will need to commit staff resource to coordinating and overseeing
partner contributions
• Work with trusted partners and, if there is no previous relationship, be sure to
consider risk appetite before making any commitment
• Clearly agree invitation and registration process with partners, ensuring clear lines
of responsibility and that there is a single database as a ‘source of truth’
3. Policy
Hosting the summit accorded with the council’s approved International Strategy under
‘Outcome 4: city leadership’. It also accorded with principles of the council’s Corporate
Strategy 2018 – 23 to i) Maximise opportunities to work with partners and other
stakeholders locally, nationally and globally; and ii) Build city resilience, improving our
ability to cope with environmental, economic or social ‘shocks and stresses’.
Hosting the summit was agreed by Cabinet on 7th November 2017 and was noted in the
council’s Business Plan 2018/19.
By voting in favour of the Summit’s declarations the council has indicated that it will
consider these in its future policy development and collaborative efforts, though any
specific actions will be subject to formal decision making through the council’s normal
channels.
Appendices:
• Appendix A – Global Parliament of Mayors Summit Report
• Appendix B – Global Parliament of Mayors – Bristol Declaration
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
Bristol City Council – Corporate Strategy 2018 – 23 (https://www.bristol.gov.uk/policies-plansstrategies/corporate-strategy)
Bristol City Council Business Plan 2018/19 (https://www.bristol.gov.uk/policies-plansstrategies/corporate-strategy)
Bristol City Council Cabinet paper – 7th November 2017
(https://democracy.bristol.gov.uk/documents/g2840/Public%20reports%20pack%2007th-Nov2017%2016.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10)

Page 61

Agenda Item 10
Resources Scrutiny - Bristol City Council’s Draft Brexit ‘No Deal’ Scenario Assessment

Resources Scrutiny
Commission
Date 6 December 2018

Report of: Director: Policy, Strategy & Partnerships
Title: Bristol City Council Draft Brexit No Deal Scenario Assessment
Ward: All
Officer Presenting Report: Tim Borrett, Director: Policy, Strategy & Partnerships
Contact Telephone Number: 0117 922 3332
Recommendation
That the Resources & Scrutiny Commission:
•

Note and comment on the draft Brexit No Deal Scenario Assessment to help inform
further development of the assessment.

The significant issues in the report are:
Resources Scrutiny is asked to comment on a working draft of a high level assessment of the
potential implications for Bristol City Council of a No Deal Brexit. The draft assesses high-level
threats and opportunities associated with seven areas of business focus; Finance & Funding,
Civil Contingencies, Workforce, Legal & Regulatory, Supply Chain, Key Operations and the City
Economy (in the context of its direct relation to BCC).
The draft assessment outlines steps the council has taken, or may wish to consider taking, to
ensure that any potential negative impacts of Brexit on citizens and key services are minimized,
while any potential opportunities are maximized.
The draft assessment focuses on a No Deal Brexit, but this is not an indication of the council’s
anticipated outcome. It reflects prudence in planning, because we consider this to be the
scenario with the most variables and the most significant short term organisational impact.
The highest scored areas of threat which the commission may wish to focus are: i) The potential
impact on council income and inward investment, ii) Potential effects on Social Care workforce,
iii) Issues relating to civil contingencies, and iv) impacts on the city economy.

Page 62

Resources Scrutiny - Bristol City Council’s Draft Brexit ‘No Deal’ Scenario Assessment

1. Summary
Bristol City Council is taking steps to ensure that it is prepared for Brexit. This report considers
the potential implications for the council of a No Deal Brexit and some of the wider
organisational consequences of the UK’s withdrawal from the EU. Threats and opportunities
are considered against the following seven workstreams:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Workforce
Legal & Regulatory
Supply Chain
Key Operations
City Economy
Funding & Finance
Civil Contingencies

At this stage the assessment is a working draft and the council is engaging with various
stakeholders, including this scrutiny commission, to seek feedback and input.
Subject to finalising the assessment and to any decision by the council’s Corporate
Leadership Board, the proposed actions would be incorporated into service plans and,
ultimately, the council’s annual Business Plan 2019/20.
The draft currently identifies the most impactful threats and opportunities of a No Deal
scenario as:
Opportunities:
1. To strengthen the case for devolution of powers and money to city regions, including
shaping the development of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund so that it is complementary to
devolution and local priorities
2. Maintaining the existing strong focus on recruiting to care jobs in Bristol
3. Provide reassurance to EU citizens in the council’s workforce through pro-active
communication, offering advice and guidance on residency and employment rights – and how
to access the Mayor’s commitment to fund the cost of Settled Status applications
Threats:
1. Potential impact on inward investment and council income, loss of EU grant funding and
inflationary pressures caused by fluctuations in the value of sterling
2. Pressures on workforce and supply chain in the social care sector could lead to disruption
to services and failure to meet statutory duties
3. Those outlined in the Avon & Somerset Local Resilience Forum (A&SLRF) community risk
register, including disruption to food and fuel supplies
4. A period of negative or restricted economic growth, impacting upon trade, investment,
business confidence, council funding and finance, the labour market and key sectors of the
city economy

The commission should note, however, that threats and opportunities are not limited to those
noted above. The draft scoring is indicative and applies to a No Deal scenario, so it is not a
current assessment of risk of the Brexit process. This is an important distinction to make when
considering the contents.

Page 63

Resources Scrutiny - Bristol City Council’s Draft Brexit ‘No Deal’ Scenario Assessment

2. Context
On 23 June 2016 the United Kingdom voted to leave the European Union.
Whilst nationally 52% of voters opted to leave, in Bristol there was a 62% vote to remain
The UK Government invoked Article 50 of the Treaty of the European Union in March 2017,
triggering a two year process, culminating in the UK formally leaving the EU on 29 March
2019, or at the end of any agreed transition period.
Negotiations on terms of the UK’s withdrawal are now drawing to a close. At time of
publication the EU and the UK had reached agreement on a draft Withdrawal Agreement.
However, if this agreement is not approved by the UK Parliament the UK could still leave
without a deal.
3. Consultation
a) Internal
This assessment has been compiled with input from colleagues in Adult Social Care,
Children and Families Services, the Civil Contingencies Unit, Economic Development,
Legal, Finance, International, Policy, Strategy & Partnerships, Procurement, Risk &
Insurance and Workforce & Change. It has been shared informally with the Mayor,
Deputy Mayor (Finance, Governance and Performance), Corporate Leadership Board
and Extended Leadership Team (Directors).
b) External
This draft assessment focuses primarily on the council’s organisational preparedness
and began with engagement with Grant Thornton, who ran a ‘Brexit Room’ workshop for
workstream leads and provided external input and assurance on some of the issues and
factors which should be considered.
The draft has been shared with city partners, including the Bristol-Brexit Response
Group and neighbouring authorities. Their feedback will help inform further joint work and
the continuous development of the council’s and the city’s Brexit planning.

5. Public Sector Equality Duties
As this report is a hypothetical scenario assessment, rather than a formal policy or
proposal, a full Equality Impact Assessment is not applicable.
However, as more becomes clear about the status of Brexit and the potential Withdrawal
Agreement the council will use this assessment to help inform its planning and decide
what actions are necessary and proportionate. Any policy or key decisions arising as a
result would require individual Equality Impact Relevance Checks and full Equality
Impact Assessments where necessary.
The council will also consider the overarching potential impact of Brexit on people with
protected characteristics in Bristol and use the outcomes to inform these Equality Impact

Page 64

Resources Scrutiny - Bristol City Council’s Draft Brexit ‘No Deal’ Scenario Assessment

assessments.

Appendices:
a) Working draft: Bristol City Council - Brexit ‘No Deal’ Scenario Assessment
b) Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit (Grant Thornton output)
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
a) Bristol Brexit Response Group Initial Report
b) Housing, Communities and Local Government Committee Brexit and Local Government
Inquiry
c) UK Government Technical Notices – How to prepare if the UK leaves the EU with No
Deal
d) Bristol City Council Business Continuity Report
e) Local Government Association – The future relationship between the UK and the EU
f) Local Government Association – No Deal – Key changes for councils
g) Local Government Association – European Union Bill Briefing
h) Office for Budget Responsibility – Economic and Fiscal Outlook October 2018
i) Centre for Cities – Cities Outlook 2017
j) Bristol City Council – Economic Briefing September 2018
k) Bristol City Council – State of Bristol 2017-2018

Page 65

Draft Document for Consultation
This document is a working draft which
does not represent the final view of
the council. Any quotation from this
document should be strictly caveated as
being taken from a ‘working draft’ and
must not be presented as stating the
council’s concerted view on any issue
within.

www.bristol.gov.uk

Page 66

Photograph: courtesy Destination Bristol

Bristol City Council
Brexit No Deal
Scenario Assessment

Brexit Impact Assessment

Contents
•

Introduction

3

•

Background

4

•

In detail – Implications for Bristol City Council:
1. Finance & Funding

6

2. Civil Contingencies

10

3. Workforce

15

4. Legal & Regulatory

19

5. Supply Chain

23

6. Key Operations

26

7. City Economy

29

DR AFT
Page 67
2

Brexit Impact Assessment

Introduction

Brexit introduces many potential changes
which could feasibly affect council services for
better or worse.

This report assesses risk and identifies highlevel threats and opportunities associated with
each of these workstreams. It summarises
what the council is doing, or could do, to
ensure any potential adverse effects on our
citizens and services are minimized whilst any
opportunities are maximised.

This report considers the potential implications
for Bristol City Council, focusing specifically
on a ‘Hard’ or ‘No Deal’ Brexit. This is not an
indication of the council’s anticipated outcome
of Brexit negotiations. It is a reflection of
prudence in planning, because this is the
scenario with the most variables.

Subject to finalising this report and decision
by the council’s Corporate Leadership Board,
any urgent actions which have been identified
will be progressed. All other actions will
be incorporated into the forward plans of
individual council service areas and, ultimately,
the council’s annual Business Plan, which is
published each April. An itemised list of risks
and opportunities is detailed in the appendix to
this report.

DR AFT

In keeping with HM Government advice1, we
recognise that it is sensible to plan at this level
with the ability to remove or scale actions
back, rather than risk experiencing unplanned
impacts should a ‘No Deal’ scenario emerge.
The assessment is grouped according to the
following seven areas of business focus:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

This assessment looks specifically at threats
and opportunities to council services. It does
not seek to offer commentary or opinion on
Brexit.

Finance & Funding
Civil Contingencies
Workforce
Legal & Regulatory
Supply Chain
Key Operations
City Economy

By necessity this written assessment captures
a point in time, but it should be noted that
forward planning will continue as a live,
dynamic process which responds to the latest
information available to the council.

1

Page 68

http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-governments-preparations-for-a-no-deal-scenario

3

Brexit Impact Assessment

Background

On 23 June 2016 the United Kingdom voted to
leave the European Union.

The BBRG’s initial report2, published shortly
after the referendum outlined the issues at
stake to Bristol, including:

Nationally 52% of voters opted to leave. In
Bristol there was a 62% vote to remain.

•
•
•
•

The UK Government invoked Article 50 of the
Treaty of the European Union in March 2017,
triggering a two year process, culminating in
the UK formally leaving the EU on 29 March
2019 or at the end of any agreed transition
period.

Citizens’ rights
Loss of European funding
Community cohesion
The impact on businesses and key sectors of
the city economy.

DR AFT

City leaders called on the government to
respond to these concerns by moving to
guarantee the rights of EU citizens, prioritise
continued access to the single market and
clarify the post-Brexit funding environment to
ensure continued access to EU international
cooperation projects and local growth and skills
funds.

Negotiations on the terms of the UK’s
withdrawal have now concluded. The UK
and the EU have agreed a draft Withdrawal
Agreement but if this is not approved by the UK
Parliament, the UK may feasibly leave the EU
without a deal.

In February 2018 the Mayor of Bristol along
with other Core Cities leaders met with Michel
Barnier, the EU’s chief negotiator, to outline the
potential effect of Brexit on their cities and to
discuss how the shared interests of their cities,
communities and businesses can best be met
in the approach to – and following - Brexit.

Since the referendum, Bristol City Council has
been working to understand the social and
economic impact of Brexit and to communicate
the city’s needs to central government. The
Mayor of Bristol, Marvin Rees, established the
Bristol Brexit Response Group (BBRG), made
up of city leaders from the business, academic,
voluntary, community and faith sectors
immediately after the referendum.

2

Page 69

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/0/Bristol+and+Brexit/14d0424f-9e6e-4adc-8577-0b74e6274d0e

4

Brexit Impact Assessment

Bristol City Council continues to engage with
national government, submitting a response
to the Communities and Local Government
Committee’s ‘Brexit and Local Government
Inquiry’3 and participating in Ministry of
Housing, Communities and Local Government’s
EU Exit Advisory Panel.

To date, the Government has published over
one hundred technical notices4 on a wide
variety of subjects. The Council has examined
the relevant papers and used them to inform
its ongoing assessment of the potential
implications of a No Deal scenario.

Current Status of Negotiations
At the time of writing a draft Withdrawal
Agreement between the UK and EU has been
agreed. This relates solely to the terms of the
UK’s exit, not the future relationship between
the UK and the EU.

• Governance arrangements that provide legal
certainty and clarity to citizens, businesses
and organisations and respects the
autonomy and integrity of both the UK’s and
the EU’s legal orders.

The Withdrawal Agreement provides for5:

• A ‘backstop’ arrangement to avoid a hard
border between Northern Ireland and
Ireland. This includes the continuation of the
Common Travel Area arrangements and the
ongoing protection of rights of individuals in
Northern Ireland.

• A deal on citizens’ rights that protects
the rights of EU citizens in the UK and UK
nationals in the EU, “ensuring they can live
their lives broadly as now. Non-EU family
members living lawfully in the UK with their
EU citizen relative are also protected.”

DR AFT

• A time-limited implementation period
that provides certainty to businesses and
individuals and ensures they only have to
adjust to one set of changes in line with the
future relationship with the EU.
• Arrangements on the financial settlement
that “represent a fair settlement of the
UK’s rights and obligations as a departing
Member State in accordance with its legal
commitments and in the spirit of the UK’s
continuing partnership with the EU.”

3
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/
commons-select/communities-and-local-government-committee/
inquiries/parliament-2017/brexit-local-authority-inquiry-17-19/
4

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/
how-to-prepare-if-the-uk-leaves-the-eu-with-no-deal

Government Explainer for the agreement on the withdrawal of
Page5theHM
70
United Kingdom from the European Union, p.2

5

Brexit Impact Assessment

1. Finance & funding

Risk Title:
Finance & funding
Risk description:
The potential implications
of a No Deal Brexit on the
council’s finances and
funding streams.

Likelihood

Impact

Risk Rating

Threat Risk Rating
4

5

20

Opportunity Risk Rating
2

5

10

DR AFT
Tolerance Rating

1

5

5

Preparedness
Medium

Key threat risks:

1. Potential impact on inward investment and council income.

2. Inflationary pressures caused by fluctuations in sterling value.
3. Loss of EU grant funding.

Key opportunity risks:
1. To shape the development of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund so that it is complimentary
to devolution and local priorities.
2. Strengthen the case for devolution of powers and money to city regions in order to
address regional inequalities and promote economic growth.
3. The UK may still have the ability to ‘buy-in’ to EU grant funding programmes.

Page 71
6

Brexit Impact Assessment

Actions and performance:
Actions and performance
1

2

3

4

5

Engage with UK government to highlight the importance of ongoing access to core
EU funding such as Horizon 2020, as well as appropriate successor regeneration and
investment funding programmes.
Provide the government with the requested information to ensure it is able to put in
place arrangements for underwriting existing EU funded projects, should a No Deal
Brexit happen.
Develop partnerships bilaterally and via networks such as EUROCITIES to identify
and bid for selected existing funding opportunities that are relevant to the corporate
objectives of Bristol City Council.
Conduct a modelling exercise to best understand the level of the council’s exposure
and impact of changes to business rates income which could increase the council’s
resilience in the face of any potential changes to our funding base resulting
from Brexit.
Work with partners to continue to support calls for devolved fiscal powers to local
and combined authorities which could help address Brexit related risks to the
council’s finances.

DR AFT

Overview
Funding

From 2005 to 2017, Bristol City Council secured
over £27m of funding across the different
streams and partnered with over 100 European
cities. Bristol’s Universities have also been
awarded over 300 research grants, totalling
over £150 million.

Membership of the EU currently allows
UK actors, including the Council, to fully
participate in a range of funded programmes.
This is broadly split into three categories:
• Those that come from the EU via national
government, such as the European
Structural and Investment Funds (ESIF).

By accessing around £5.5 million worth of the
ESIF European Regional Development Fund
(ERDF), the council was for example, able to
support the development of Filwood Green
Business Park. The council’s largest current
Horizon 2020 funded project, REPLICATE, is
worth approximately £3m over a three year
period and enables the deployment of smart
city solutions in selected districts.

• Those that are delivered at the EU level
including grant funding for research
and innovation via Horizon 2020 and for
transnational cooperation via programmes
such as URBACT, Erasmus + and Interreg
and;
• Strategic investment funding and support
delivered via the European Investment Bank
(EIB).

Page 72
7

Brexit Impact Assessment

Any higher trade costs between the EU and
UK will result in reduced economic output in
cities, and the Centre for Cities have identified
that southern cities with large shares of
employment in private-sector knowledgeintensive-services are predicted to be most
negatively affected by increased trade costs.

The £2 million European Local Energy
Assistance (ELENA) has also been instrumental
in enabling the council to develop its Energy
Programme of grant funding received through
the EIB’s European Local Energy Assistance
Programme.
The city’s universities have contributed
to discussion and planning via their own
networks, primarily Universities UK around the
impacts of Brexit on funding arrangements, as
well as on student and workforce access.

These and other relevant factors are discussed
in more detail in the other workstreams
including City Economy, Key Operations, Supply
Chain, as well as in the Funding section of this
workstream, but it is clear that any impact on
the national and city economy will also affect
the City Council’s finances.

Finance
This part of the workstream is particularly
unpredictable as the specific financial impacts
on Bristol City Council will depend on changes
in the national economy as well as the city/
regional economy, the likely extent of which is
not fully known.

Mechanisms for how this will occur include
through effects on business rates income,
demand pressures, investments and borrowing,
and pension funding – discussed in more detail
below.

DR AFT

In Detail - Threats & Opportunities
Funding

Despite the existence of a UK government
guarantee to underwrite the funding for all
successful bids for competitive EU funding
made by UK participants until the end of the
current programming period, additional threats
include the potential for Brexit to reduce
the opportunities for the council to partner
in consortia for currently available funding
opportunities.

The key threat around funding is that the UK
will not be able to access successor funding
arrangements, including the future ESIF,
Horizon Europe (replacing Horizon 2020)
and transnational cooperation funds, and
EIB investments in the next EU multiannual
financial framework, which will run from 20212027. This threat increases if the UK does not
have the ability to domestically replicate the
range and opportunities created by the existing
funding mechanisms available.

An opportunity around funding is the chance
to develop the proposed Shared Prosperity
Fund (SPF), a new regeneration funding
In addition, Horizon 2020 in particular acts as
programme, as the UK successor to ESIF, so
a facilitator of collaboration with European
that it is complementary to devolution and
counterparts, leading to the exchange of best
local priorities and better funds those areas
practice and knowledge, driving innovation
that are most in need. It is also an opportunity
in the council and helping to secure new UK
research grants or other follow-on funding. This to make the future funding programme more
streamlined, devolved, more easily accessible
is at risk.
and to address the issue of match funding (ESIF
Pagehas73a 50% match funding requirement).
8

Brexit Impact Assessment

The unpredictable effect of Brexit on
demand for council services (as discussed
in other workstreams) may complicate the
management of necessary spending reductions
in the years ahead. The longer term impact on
demand will depend on the city’s economic
performance, but other factors may have
impacts too: for example a temporary increase
in reported hate crimes following the Brexit
referendum necessitated a response from the
council and our partners.

Even as a non-EU Member State, the UK may
also still have the ability to ‘buy-in’ to EU
grant funding programmes for research and
innovation and for transnational cooperation,
enabling UK actors to continue to apply to
participate and capitalise on the benefits they
provide. A number of mechanisms exist to
facilitate this for Horizon 2020, for example,
including ‘associated’ status.
In addition, calls for a successor to the
investment funding provided by the EIB should
be enhanced.

There is also a possible opportunity if devolved
fiscal powers are released to local authorities
and Combined Authorities. Although a
significant next step, it would appear to be in
line with Government priorities and progress
made so far in devolving powers and money
to city regions in order to address regional
inequalities and promote economic growth
and productivity across the UK. The ability to
raise local taxes has been championed by many
local authorities and would allow for increased
funding sources for the council.

Finance
Reform to local authority funding in England
has placed increasing importance on the
revenue raised from locally retained business
rates. Accordingly, all councils’ financial
sustainability and the funding of service
delivery will increasingly depend on their ability
to retain and grow rate-paying businesses.
This in turn makes councils more financially
vulnerable to macroeconomic conditions, with
any economic downturn likely to lead to an
increase in empty units and a slowdown in
development. The resulting decrease in council
income would place further pressure on already
stretched resources.

DR AFT
Notwithstanding the risks discussed above,
Bristol City Council remains in a relatively
strong financial position when compared
with many other local authorities. This
should provide the council with resilience
and flexibility to enable us to respond to both
threats and opportunities post-Brexit.

Downgrades in the UK’s credit rating have not
yet led to higher borrowing costs, but this is
a significant cost risk. It is also necessary to
keep a close eye on the credit ratings of the
limited number of deposit takers who meet
the council’s stringent investment criteria.
Brexit also poses a threat of a downgrade to
the council’s own AAA credit rating, which
could have an adverse impact on the council’s
pension fund.

Page 74
9

Brexit Impact Assessment

2. Civil Contingencies

Risk Title:
Civil Contingencies
Risk description:
Brexit preparations are
being undertaken as a
multi-agency response
via the Local Resilience
Forum (LRF). As with all the
council’s civil contingencies
work, the LRF is working
to coordinate and plan for
potential emergencies and
disruptions.

Likelihood

Impact

Risk Rating

Threat Risk Rating
2

7

14

Opportunity Risk Rating
4

3

12

DR AFT
Tolerance Rating

2

5

10

Preparedness
Medium

Key threat risks:

1. Those outlined in the Avon & Somerset Local Resilience Forum (A&SLRF) community risk
register, including disruption to food and fuel supplies.
2. Failure of critical or essential services due to a lack of staff.

3. Port congestion leading to delays in the processing of goods and increased road traffic.

Key opportunity risks:
1. Civil Contingencies will take full part in A&SLRF Tactical and Strategic Coordinating Group
meetings in the run up to 29 March.
2. Possibility of trade displaced from channel ports coming to Avonmouth / Portbury.

Page 75
10

Brexit Impact Assessment

Actions and performance:
Actions and performance
1

2

3
4

5

6

Avon and Somerset Local Resilience Forum (A&SLRF) is likely to produce both a Brexit
‘Threat and Risk Assessment’ assessing the impact of Brexit on risks listed on the
Community Risk Register and any new, relevant risks identified.
Civil Contingencies to work with Avon & Somerset Local Resilience Forum (A&SLRF)
and central government partners to understand the work that has taken place with
ports of entry; Avonmouth, Royal Portbury Docks and Bristol International Airport.
Civil Contingencies to work with the A&SLRF partners to engage local ports of entry
to ensure port plans and LRF plans are coordinated.
Public Health and Trading Standards teams to understand what BCC’s options are
should demand increase in these service areas as a result of a change in the
customs regime.
Take part in the A&SLRF table-top scenario planning exercise planned for
January 2019.
In order to make the most robust plans possible, Bristol City Council will work
with the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government ‘Resilience and
Emergencies Directorate’ (RED) teams to understand the national work undertaken
with ports of entry.

DR AFT
7

Liaise with North Somerset Council regarding the possible impact on Bristol Airport
and the Royal Portbury Docks and possible congestion around these sites.

Overview

• Establishing command and control
arrangements for the lead up to and
following Brexit to manage any incidents
that may occur.

As with all of the council’s civil contingencies
work, Brexit preparations are being
undertaken as a multi-agency response under
the auspices of the Local Resilience Forum
(LRF). The LRF is the multi-agency vehicle for
Category 1 and Category 2 Responders (as
defined under the Civil Contingencies Act)
to coordinate and plan for emergencies and
disruptions.

There is an LRF for every police force area in
England (arrangements differ slightly for the
UK devolved administrations). Bristol City
Council is part of the Avon and Somerset LRF
(A&SLRF), which is chaired by Assistant Chief
Constable Nikki Watson. Bristol City Council
is represented on the Executive Group of the
A&SLRF at an Executive Director level.

This work is focussed on:
• Identifying civil contingency threats that
may increase as a result of Brexit.
• Taking action to mitigate increased risks.
• Making plans for high and very high risks.Page
11

76

Brexit Impact Assessment

In Detail - Threats & Opportunities
The National Risk Register and Avon &
Somerset Community Risk Register

New risks associated with a
No Deal Brexit

The A&SLRF maintains a Community Risk
Register, based on the Cabinet Office National
Risk Register. A number of risks that appear
on the National Risk Register and the A&SLRF
Community Risk Register that may be affected
by a No Deal Brexit have been identified. These
are:

The LRF is also identifying new risks that may
arise as a result of a ‘no-deal’ Brexit. Primarily,
these are:
• Workforce risks – the risk that a critical or
essential service will fail due to a lack of staff
following a No Deal Brexit. The sectors most
at risk in the A&SLRF area are the health and
social care sector, agriculture & tourism.

• Emerging infectious diseases
(due to changes in port controls).

• Port congestion – the significant immediate
impact of a No Deal Brexit is likely to be
congestions around Ports of entry.

• Food supply contamination (due to changes
in food inspection regimes at ports).
• Fuel supply.

A&SLRF Engagement with Ports in
Avon & Somerset

• High consequence dangerous goods /
transport accident (due to changes and likely
congestion at ports).

Significant central and local government
resource and effort has gone into
understanding the likely impact on the UK’s
big cross channel ports, such as Dover and
Folkestone. This has included understanding
how inspection regimes will change, the
impact likely delays will have on supply chains
and the subsequent traffic congestion around
ports. The learning from this work has been
shared with LRFs.

DR AFT

• Influx of British nationals.

• Local accident on motorways and major
trunk roads (due to congestion around
ports).

• Major outbreak of exotic notifiable disease
in animals including birds (due to changes in
port inspection regimes).
• Public Disorder.

The Civil Protection Unit Manager attended
a workshop in London with the senior police
officer based at Bristol International Airport
(BIA) to understand more about this work
and how relevant it is to ports in Avon and
Somerset. BCC Port Health teams have
also been involved in meetings with DEFRA
regarding the implications for Port Health
inspection regimes.

Re-assessment of risks in light of a
No Deal Brexit
Initial re-assessment of these risks suggests
that none currently will change significantly.
This fits with similar re-assessments being
undertaken by other LRFs across the country.
However, the risks will be kept under review
and changes may be made as understanding of
the implications of a No Deal Brexit develops.

Page 77
12

Brexit Impact Assessment

A&SLRF have begun a process of engaging
ports in Avon and Somerset; the Bristol Port
Company (Avonmouth & Portbury) and BIA.
The Civil Protection Unit Manager has been
involved in this engagement. Initial assessment
of the trade passing through the ports suggests
exposure to any potential negative impacts of
Brexit is relatively small:

LRF Plans
The LRF is likely to produce both a Brexit ‘Threat
and Risk Assessment’ assessing the impact of
Brexit on risks listed on the Community Risk
Register and any new, relevant risks identified;
and a multi-agency Brexit plan, detailing how
the multi-agency community will manage any
additional risks and how Command, Control
and Coordination will be managed in the buildup to and following 29 March 2019.

Water ports:
• Low quantity of perishable goods.
• Main goods: fuel, animal feed, aggregate,
cars, road salt, Hinkley supply materials, fuel
pellets.

Command, Control and Coordination
The Cabinet Office have stated their
expectation that LRFs will ‘stand up’ their
command, control and coordination systems in
the build up to and following 29 March 2019.
This will involve a regular meeting of a multiagency ‘Strategic Coordinating Group’ (SCG)
from January 2019.

• Proportion of goods from EU comparatively
little.
• Plentiful storage space if goods get stuck,
so effect on the road network should
be minimal but may grow if disruption
continues.

DR AFT

It is currently expected that the SCG will meet
weekly from January, with meetings becoming
more regular as required. Meetings are
expected to continue beyond 29 March, with
the Cabinet Office advising LRFs to plan for up
to 12 weeks of additional meetings from exit
day, possibly longer.

• Possibility of trade displaced from channel
ports coming to Avonmouth / Portbury.
Airport:
• Almost zero freight

• Issues around stranded passengers are not
considered a new risk for the airport which
has successfully managed ‘no fly’ issues in
the past

Brexit Table-top Exercise

Currently, the risk profile of Avon & Somerset
ports is significantly lower that the big cross
channel ports. However, the LRF is trying to
establish the likelihood of ‘displaced’ trade
increasing through A&S ports, increasing the
risk of highway disruption.

An A&SLRF table-top exercise is planned for
January 2019. The exercise will use scenarios
developed by the Ministry of Housing
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)
Resilience and Emergencies Directorate (RED).
These scenarios will be used by all LRFs in
the UK. The exercise is aimed at the strategic
officers likely to make up the Brexit Strategic
Coordinating Group.

Page 78
13

Brexit Impact Assessment

MHCLG ‘RED’ Teams

Business Continuity Plans

The Resilience and Emergencies Directorate
of the Ministry of Housing Communities and
Local Government has regional ‘RED’ advisers
across the UK. The RED teams have recruited
additional resilience advisers to support LRFs
and Category 1 and 2 Responders to prepare
for a No Deal Brexit. The RED team that covers
Avon and Somerset are based in Bristol. The
CPU Manager has been in close contact with
RED Advisers to ensure both the A&SLRF and
the council are aware of their advice. RED
advisers are available to answer technical
questions or escalate queries and concerns to
relevant central government departments.

An update on the business continuity work
undertaken by the council over the previous
18 months has just been submitted to the
council’s Audit Committee6. It sets out the
processes in place to prevent disruptive events,
including Brexit, from affecting the delivery of
services. In summary:
• Following work undertaken with the
Emergency Planning College, business
continuity planning was extended from
limited number of identified ‘critical services’
to all service areas within the authority. As
part of a review of planning, services are
now required to identify ‘critical activities’
the service will seek to maintain during
disruptions.
• They must also set ‘Recovery Time Objectives’
– the time after which critical activities must
be recovered. This information informs the
planning of cross-cutting business support
services such as IT and workplace support.

DR AFT

• Services must identify key staff, consider how
disruptions would be managed and make
plans for four headline scenarios:
•
•
•
•

Loss of staff
Loss of workspace
Disruption to IT services and systems
Loss of contracted / commissioned
providers and suppliers

6
Page
79
https://democracy.bristol.gov.uk/documents/g3199/Public%20reports%20

pack%2026th-Nov-2018%2014.30%20Audit%20Committee.pdf?T=10

14

Brexit Impact Assessment

3. Workforce

Risk Title:
Workforce
Risk description:
The potential implications
of a No Deal Brexit on the
council’s workforce.

Likelihood

Impact

Risk Rating

Threat Risk Rating
2

3

6

Opportunity Risk Rating
2

3

6

DR AFT
Tolerance Rating

1

3

3

Preparedness
Medium

Key threat risks:

1. Negative effect on the council’s ability to recruit and retain EU citizens to its workforce.
2. A No Deal Brexit could create or exacerbate skills shortages.

3. A tightening labour market could result in an upward pressure on wages, bringing about
additional costs to the council.

Key opportunity risks:
1. Provide reassurance to EU citizens in the council’s workforce through pro-active
communication, offering advice and guidance on residency and employment rights in the
event of No Deal.
2. Deliver targeted training opportunities to upskill existing staff.
3. Develop a more complete profile of the council’s EU citizen workforce.

Page 80
15

Brexit Impact Assessment

Actions and performance:
Actions and performance
1

Implement the Mayor’s commitment to fund the cost of any council employees who
wish to seek EU settled status.

2

Ensure that long-term hiring strategies and workforce planning are aligned with
business priorities.
Initiate a regular programme of communication to our EU workforce to make sure
they are aware of their rights and understand how to access help and guidance.

3

Overview
An important consideration for Bristol City
Council is how a No Deal Brexit could affect the
council’s ability to recruit and retain staff.

and study and the same access to benefits and
public services.
An application fee of £65 for adults and £32.50
for children will apply, with the fee for children
in local authority care to be refunded by the
Home Office. A soft launch has been scheduled
for late 2018 through a dedicated website and
app, which are expected to be live in March
2019.

The Confederation of British Industry (CBI) has
warned that businesses and large organisations
have been experiencing increasing difficulties
since the referendum, with 41% of surveyed
firms saying recruitment had been negatively
impacted 7.

DR AFT

This has been attributed to the fall in the value
of the pound making the UK less attractive
in comparison to other countries. Firms also
report anecdotally of EU citizens working in the
UK feeling less welcome because of Brexit, and
being unsettled by the lack of clarity over their
rights to remain.

In the State of the City Address 2018, the Mayor
announced that the council would fund the
cost of any council employees who wish to seek
EU settled status.

Residency Rights - No Deal

If approved, the draft Withdrawal Agreement
would guarantee the existing EU residence and
social security rights of the 3m EU citizens in
the UK, and the 1m UK citizens living on the
continent.

Residency Rights - Draft Withdrawal
Agreement

The post-Brexit rights of EU citizens living in
the UK and those of UK citizens living in the EU
has been one of the key issues at stake in the
negotiations over the UK’s withdrawal from the
EU.

Under the agreement the 19,000 EU citizens
who live in Bristol, as well as their family
members, would be able to continue residing,
working or studying as they do at the end of
the transition period, for the rest of their lives.

In June 2018 the Home Office confirmed that
it would implement a ‘settled status’ regime
for EU citizens in the UK, whether there is a
Withdrawal Agreement or not. Those with
settled status would have same rights to work
7

Page 81

http://www.cbi.org.uk/cbi-prod/assets/File/FINAL-Brexit-preparedness-survey-write-up.pdf

16

Brexit Impact Assessment

The agreement would also enable family
members who do not yet live in the same host
state to join them in future. These individuals
would have the right to the same treatment as
host state citizens set out by EU law.

Bristol City Council has a workforce of 6,300
employees. 92 employees have identified
themselves as being from European Economic
Area (EEA) countries (excluding Irish Citizens).
Of these, 69 have less than five years’ service.
In Adult and Children’s Social Care of a total
workforce of 1700, so far we have identified 43
employees who are EU citizens and therefore
eligible for the council’s Settled Status offer.

The Labour Market
Data from the 2011 Census suggests 15% of
people living in Bristol were born outside the
UK and of these, 4.6% (19,686) were born in
the EU. Bristol’s EU population is higher than
both the England and Wales average (3.6%)
and the South West region as a whole (2.8%). In
England, only London and Nottingham have a
higher proportion of EU residents.

Extrapolating 2011 census data would indicate
that approximately 280 directly-employed
council staff are EEA citizens.

In Detail - Threats and Opportunities
Our current assessment is that the impact
of a No Deal Brexit on our directly employed
workforce and service delivery are not
significant at this stage.

Insurance Number registrations for EU
citizens down by 29% in the region since
the referendum. According to the Chartered
Institute of Personnel and Development (CIPD),
firms expect the biggest changes in the next
three years to be tougher competition for wellqualified talent and the increasing difficulty in
recruiting senior and skilled employees8 .

DR AFT

However, the council will take steps to improve
our monitoring systems so that if there is an
adverse impact on our EU citizens we will be
in a position to respond to it. As part of this
process, all employees will be asked to ensure
that their personal information on the council’s
HR systems is fully up to date.

As well as creating a more challenging
recruitment environment, a tightening labour
market could also result in an upward pressure
on wages, bringing about additional costs to
the council.

We will also start a pro-active programme
of communication with employees who are
EU citizens to ensure that they are aware of
their rights and the Mayor’s offer in relation to
application costs. They will also be signposted
to relevant official guidance – including the
process for applying for settled status.

However, this could also present an opportunity
to deliver targeted training opportunities to
help upskill existing staff.
It will be important to ensure that long-term
hiring strategies and workforce planning are
aligned with business priorities. The council
will continue to monitor the impact of Brexit
so that it can inform its workforce forward
planning and recruitment processes so that
talent is hired not just for the skills that the
council currently needs, but also for the skills
that the council thinks it will need in six to 12

One of the key workforce threats is the
potential for Brexit to create or exacerbate skills
shortages. In the South West the employment
rate of EU citizens, at 79.5%, is around 5%
higher than UK-born residents. Government
statistics suggest Brexit is already having an
effect on the labour market, with National

Page 82
8

https://www.cipd.co.uk/news-views/brexit-hub/workforce-trends

17

Brexit Impact Assessment

months. There should also be a focus on the
development of current staff for succession.

Overall, the reliance on EU citizen employees
in the health and social care sector
will exacerbate the acute problems of
recruitment and retention that already exist.
Commissioners of Adult Social Care services
are already working with providers to seek
to mitigate these risks but there is a high
probability that the council’s ability to ensure
citizens receive the services they need could be
adversely affected.

The most significant workforce implications
relate to the council’s supply chain and in
particular health and social care commissioned
services (as outlined later in this assessment).
It should be noted that Bristol, North Somerset
and South Gloucestershire CCG (BNSSG) has
the highest vacancy rates across social care in
the South West – at 10.9%. Current estimates
indicate 19% of all care worker roles across
BNSSG were non UK born, with 9% born in
the EEA (non-UK). This sector is therefore
particularly vulnerable to any fall in net-inward
migration in the event of a No Deal Brexit.

DR AFT
Page 83
18

Brexit Impact Assessment

4. Legal and Regulatory

Risk Title:
Legal & Regulatory
Risk description:
The potential legal and
regulatory implications of a
No Deal Brexit

Likelihood

Impact

Risk Rating

Threat Risk Rating
3

5

15

Opportunity Risk Rating
3

5

15

DR AFT
Tolerance Rating

2

5

10

Preparedness
Medium

Key threat risks:

1. Failure to meet statutory duties due to providers of social care services being unable to
recruit and/or retain sufficient staff due to immigration restrictions for EEA national or
EEA nationals choosing to leave the UK.

2. Contract failure due to contractors / delivery partners being unable to recruit/retain
sufficient staff due to immigration restrictions for EEA national or EEA nationals choosing
to leave the UK.
3. Statutory powers and duties to EU nationals in relation to homelessness, housing
allocation, social care are unclear- risk vulnerable people’s needs not being met and of
legal challenge.

Key opportunity risks:
1. Opportunities to make changes to new contract terms and conditions.
2. Opportunity to consider innovative ways to deliver statutory duties.

Page 84
19

Brexit Impact Assessment

Actions and performance:
Actions and performance
1

2
3
4

Identify relevant legal duties and plan contingencies to meet these if there is provider
failure – be clear as to the baseline duty below which there will be a risk of challenge
e.g. Care Act statutory duties.
Seek legal/data protection advice on the risks of data transfer outside UK and take
action as a result.
Identify key contracts at risk from provider failure and review relevant contract
provisions. Plan contingencies and assess cost.
Seek further clarity from government and legal view on duties to EU Nationals and
the position of EU nationals working in the UK if no deal and share with affected
providers.

5

Meetings between Procurement and Legal teams to look at new contract terms.

6

Consider if specific contract terms required for new contracts running beyond
April 2019.

7

Seek detailed guidance on implications of No Deal for state aid and data transfer.

DR AFT

Overview

Many local government activities are affected
by EU rules and regulations, including waste
management, environmental standards,
trading standards and procurement.

Non-regression requirements in the agreement
will also prevent the UK from bringing in lower
standards on social, environmental and labour
regulations. (This reflects one of the demands
made by the Bristol Brexit Response Group,
which called for certain EU-derived laws,
including non-discrimination and equal pay,
occupational health and safety, fair working
conditions and employment standards to be
protected)9.

The EU Withdrawal Act 2018 ensures that there
is legal certainty as both EU Derived Laws (ie
UK legislation giving effect to EU laws) and
Direct EU Legislation (ie EU rules having direct
effect on UK without being subject to UK
legislation) will continue to apply even under
“No Deal”.
Under the terms of the draft Withdrawal
Agreement, the UK would continue to
be bound by the EU legal and regulatory
framework (including the ECJ) until the end of
the transition period – 31 December 2020.

9

Page 85

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/0/Bristol+and+Brexit/14d0424f-9e6e-4adc-8577-0b74e6274d0e

20

Brexit Impact Assessment

In Detail - Threats and Opportunities
This will not affect the requirement for
relevant contracts to be advertised on domestic
platforms such as ‘Contract Finder’ and
‘Sell2Wales’ which will continue.

Statutory Duties
There are numerous statutory duties placed
on local government, set out in various Acts,
Regulations and statutory guidance. In the
context of a No Deal Brexit the key legal risk
to the council is the failure to meet these
statutory duties – for example, as a result of
supplier/provider failure.

State Aid
The UK committed to continuing the control
of anti-competitive subsidies by creating
a UK-wide subsidy control framework. The
government has already stated that the
Competition and Markets Authority (CMA) will
take on the role of UK state aid regulator.

As set out later in the report, a key risk is in
the area of Adult Social Care. If the council or
its providers cannot recruit or retain sufficient
staff or if providers simply fail, the council may
fail to meet its statutory duties, creating the
risk of legal challenge alongside the failure to
meet the needs of our city’s most vulnerable
people. There is an emerging risk in respect
of our statutory duties towards looked after
children and this is still being quantified. This is
in respect of retention of foster carers.

The UK proposes maintain a robust state aid
regime into its future economic relationship
with the EU, with an upfront commitment to
maintain a common rulebook with the EU on
state aid, enforced by the CMA.

Competition

DR AFT
After the UK leaves the EU, the CMA will
want to continue to work together with EU’s
Directorate General Competition, “building
on their existing highly effective relationship”.
The Government’s EU White Paper notes that
there are currently no strict requirements
that apply to national competition regimes
or requirements to have the same procedural
rules. The UK has, however, kept in step with
the EU’s competition regime, and has gone
further than EU minimum standards. The
government notes that it will be important
to ensure that competition decisions are
compatible.

Procurement

Procurement rules will continue to apply. The
Public Contracts Regulations 2015 require
the publication of electronic versions of
procurement documents for above threshold
procurements on the Official Journal of the
European Union (OJEU), via Tenders Electronic
Daily. However if the UK withdraws from the
EU without a deal, it is highly likely that UK
public sector businesses will lose access to this
platform.

Transparency of procurement opportunities
is a key part of the government agenda. The
government has confirmed that a UK-specific
e-notification service will be made available to
UK businesses and individuals if OJEU access
arrangements are not finalised before the 29
March 2019. For those public sector bodies who
place contracts on OJEU directly, they will be
contacted closer to 29 March 2019 with further
information about the new UK system.

Employment law implications

The government proposes to maintain current
UK employment laws, so that existing workers’
rights enjoyed under EU derived law will
continue to be available under UK law on the
day of withdrawal. Much of UK employment
law derives from EU Directives, including
TUPE, collective consultation requirements,
Pageworking
86 time requirements (including holiday
21

Brexit Impact Assessment

and time off), agency worker protection and
discrimination.

The government’s No Deal technical notices
on ‘labelling products and making them safe12’
contain detailed advice on the implications of
No Deal for local authorities.

The Withdrawal Agreement would commit
the government to the non-regression of
employment law standards.

The government’s Technical Notices state that
there would be no change to food standards,
but after a six month grace period minor
labelling changes will be required. Tobacco
labelling regulations will also remain the same
– and will continue to be the responsibility of
Bristol City Council’s Trading Standards officers.
In the event of No Deal Bristol City Council
will ensure that relevant teams are briefed on
the government’s Technical Notices so they
understand the implications for enforcement
and other regulatory activities.

Data protection
The government’s official guidance on data
protection if there is a No Deal Brexit says that
there will be no immediate changes to data
protection standards. This is because the Data
Protection Act 2018 would remain in place and
the EU Withdrawal Act would incorporate the
GDPR into UK law to sit alongside it. The legal
framework governing transfers of personal
data from organisations established in the EU
to organisations established in the UK would
change.
Organisations have been advised to monitor
the government’s discussions with the EU
on their adequacy decision to allow the flow
of personal data from the EU to the UK. If
this decision is not made, or the timeline is
unfavourable, the government’s advice is for
organisations ‘to consider assisting your EU
partners in identifying a legal basis for those
transfers10’. The implications for councils are
uncertain11 and further work is needed to
clarify this.

DR AFT

Product safety and consumer protection

The government has confirmed its
commitment to maintain a robust programme
of risk-based market surveillance to ensure that
dangerous products do not reach consumers.
To that end, it proposes the establishment of
co-operation arrangements between UK and
EU regulators complemented by exchange of
information.
10

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/
data-protection-if-theres-no-brexit-deal

11
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Appendix%20
-%20No%20Deal%20-%20Key%20Changes%20for%20Councils%202.pdf p14

Page1287
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/how-to-prepare-if-the-ukleaves-the-eu-with-no-deal#labelling-products-and-making-them-safe

22

Brexit Impact Assessment

5. Supply Chain

Risk Title:
Supply Chain
Risk description:
The potential impact of
a No Deal Brexit on the
council’s supply chain.

Likelihood

Impact

Risk Rating

Threat Risk Rating
2

2

4

Opportunity Risk Rating
2

3

6

DR AFT
Tolerance Rating

2

2

Preparedness
Medium

Key threat risks:

1. Impact of cost pressures on key suppliers / delivery partners.
2. Delays to the delivery of capital programmes.

3. Increased cost of dollar-denominated IT products and services.

Key opportunity risks:
1. Proposed changes to import VAT could drive down prices.

Page 88
23

4

Brexit Impact Assessment

Actions and performance:
Actions and performance
1

2

3
4

5

Liaise with key suppliers to ensure that they are taking a managed approach to
business continuity and ensuring plans are in place to deal with the potential impact
of No Deal.
Devise a map of the supply chain in order to develop a clearer understanding of
the key suppliers to the council, focusing on contract value and the criticality of the
service provided.
Seek legal advice to deal with contractors seeking to vary contracts.
Explore option to insert a provision within ICT and other relevant contracts to cover
currency fluctuation and the council will also identify which current suppliers are
non-UK businesses.
Consult with their legal colleagues to ensure any changes in legislative requirements
post-Brexit reflect any changes in the finance industry and that these are captured in
new contracts and / or in any variations to existing contracts.

Overview

DR AFT

Bristol City Council spends around £350m per
year on goods and services from around 10,000
suppliers. Whilst it is impossible to understand
the impact of a No Deal Brexit across the full
extent of the council’s supply chain, we are
taking steps to assess the preparedness of key
suppliers.

In line with existing policy and practice, the
council will continue to liaise with its key
suppliers to ensure they are taking a managed
approach to business continuity in the event
of a No Deal Brexit. Specifically, the council will
seek assurances that;
• Risks to continuity have been assessed.

As part of existing supply chain management
processes, the council is in regular dialogue
with around 20 key suppliers – defined as those
who deliver support to vulnerable residents,
provide essential frontline services or those
with the highest contract value.

• Dependencies and potential points of failure
have been identified.
• The impact of disruption on service users
drives the response.
• Planning is embedded in the organisation
(staff are trained / aware, plans tested,
regular reviews).

Page 89
24

Brexit Impact Assessment

In Detail - Threats and Opportunities
In relation to service delivery in the face of a
No Deal Brexit, any impact on the council’s
supply chain could have a knock-on effect on
the council’s ability to sustain the delivery of
both statutory and non-statutory services.

Post-Brexit, if the pound’s recovery takes
longer it would make dollar-denominated IT
products and services in the UK relatively more
expensive for an extended period. This has
already been seen with announcements of
price hikes for PCs, mobile phones and servers.
Moving forward, Bristol City Council should
ensure that there is provision within contracts
to cover currency fluctuation and the council
should also identify which current suppliers are
non-UK businesses.

A No Deal Brexit could result in cost pressures
to the council. In areas such as construction,
social care, education, facilities management,
repairs and maintenance there could be delays
to the supply of component parts. A loss of
product availability due to changes in the
supply chain means that wholesale system
changes could be needed which would come at
a further financial cost.

There is the potential for reputational and
financial threats due to delays in capital
programmes. In relation to transport and
construction, consultation will be needed with
affected contractors in order to understand
how they will support services going forward
as well as how they will cover the loss of
personnel. Specifically in relation to transport,
more emphasis will have to be placed on the
use of energy efficient vehicles as part of future
contracts.

A No Deal Brexit would mean the introduction
of customs checks at the border, potentially
creating delays in the processing of goods.
There is also a threat that ‘front loading’
by suppliers may result in a lag in delivery
timescales which could come at financial and
operational costs to the council.

DR AFT

In relation to ICT, post-Brexit impact upon
the technology and innovation sector largely
depends upon what model the UK adopts for
its relationship with the EU. If the UK remains
in the EEA, the changes may be minimal. If the
UK joins the European Free Trade Association,
the landscape depends on the exact nature
of that relationship. If the UK distances itself
further from the EU, the changes may be more
extensive.

There are potential opportunities in relation to
changes to import VAT; there are proposals that
a government import delay on VAT could come
into place. This could have a huge financial
impact on cash flows of suppliers, as VAT will
not have to be paid up front, potentially driving
down prices.

Page 90
25

Brexit Impact Assessment

6. Key Operations – Social Care

Risk Title:
Social Care
Risk description:
The potential impact
of a No Deal Brexit on
the council’s social care
services.

Likelihood

Impact

Risk Rating

Threat Risk Rating
4

5

20

Opportunity Risk Rating
3

3

9

DR AFT
Tolerance Rating

3

3

9

Preparedness
Medium

Key threat risks:

1. Pressures on workforce and supply chain could lead to disruption to services.

2. Impact on the timeliness / quality of care delivered in different settings (e.g. hospital
discharge, residential and nursing homes, homecare, children’s residential care, foster
care) due to shortages of care staff/ carers.
3. A tightening labour market leading to increased wage demands could lead to further
cost pressures on providers.

Key opportunity risks:
1. Maintaining the existing strong focus on recruiting to care jobs in Bristol.

Page 91
26

Brexit Impact Assessment

Actions and performance:
Actions and performance
1

2

3
4

5

Work with commissioned and in-house care provision to better understand risk/
contingency/ opportunity plans for Brexit.
Maintain the existing strong focus on recruiting to care roles in Bristol - this is already
high priority in the ACE Directorate as it underpins BCC’s ability to ensure sufficiency
of supply of care and to meet statutory duties.
Map exposure to EU loans underpinning strategic new build plans in the Adult Social
Care sector.
Support the LGA’s calls for a secure and sustainable Adult Social care workforce
and excellent care skills to be a priority for the Government in drafting a future
Immigration Bill13.
Continual focus on Delayed Transfers of Care (DTOCs) from hospital and how a lack of
care staff plays into this.

6

Work closely with fostering households concerned about deportation. There may
be a reduction in foster carers and potential foster carers if they consider their living
situation to be precarious. Discuss with prospective foster carers at application stage /
fostering panel and similarly for prospective adopters at assessment and panel stages.

7

In line with the commitment made in the Mayor’s State of the City address the
council will consider extending its offer of assistance with Settled Status application
costs to commissioned providers to help stabilise their workforce.

DR AFT

Overview

The Adult Social Care sector is already facing
difficulties due to reductions in overall funding,
whilst the challenge in delivery is already
recognised at the national level. It is also a
sector considered most vulnerable to changes
in migration, thus exiting from the EU is adding
an additional layer of risk to an already fragile
sector.

The council foresees a proportionately higher
impact for frontline care workforce, such as
home care, given this is generally a lower level
entry sector and the impact of changes to
people’s status will therefore have a greater
impact.
The council is already seeing challenges in
regard to recruitment for nursing roles within
its care homes where a significant number
of nursing staff are from the EU and in the
ability of commissioned providers to recruit to
homecare roles. These predicted pressures for
the provider supply chain will adversely affect
areas such as delayed transfers of care from
hospitals out to social care provision.

In the Bristol, North Somerset and South
Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group
area 19% of all care workers are non-UK born
– 2,130 people. Of those 9% (1,206 employees)
are EEA citizens.

13

Page 92

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/12062018_EuropeanUnionBill_LGABriefing_v3.pdf

27

Brexit Impact Assessment

Commissioned providers may yet not be clear
on the implications of No Deal on their own
organisations and staff, whilst a tightening
labour market could result in increased wages,
adding further cost pressures to the sector.
It therefore remains vital that the council’s
commissioned and in-house services are
futureproofing their workforce plans for the
coming period.

In Detail - Threats and Opportunities
As a result of pressures on its workforce and
supply chain, there is a significant threat that
council services could fail to be delivered and
that the council would therefore be unable
to deliver its statutory duties, impacting on
service users, families and citizens.

More broadly, exiting the EU could offer the
opportunity to take innovation approaches to
delivery of services. However when this relates
to statutory services, there is an increased
legal risk for the council associated with this.
Collaboration across sectors is also a further
opportunity; in particularly between local
authorities and other local partners such as
the Acute Trusts in the City and commissioned
providers as organisations prepare to leave
the EU.

This could have a knock-on effect on other
services as the council is forced to dedicate less
resource to discretionary services.

DR AFT

The extent of risk for council providers in regard
to loans from the EU that underpin new builds
and investments continues to be investigated,
including the potential impact on strategic new
build plans in Adult Social Care. This mapping
exercise will continue in the coming weeks.
Challenges in nursing recruitment, for example,
would be an additional threat to Adult Social
Care and providers’ ability to deliver statutory
requirements on placing service users in
nursing care.

Page 93
28

Brexit Impact Assessment

7. City Economy

Risk Title:
City Economy
Risk description:
Considers the potential
impact of a No Deal Brexit
on the city economy.

Likelihood

Impact

Risk Rating

Threat Risk Rating
3

5

15

Opportunity Risk Rating
3

3

9

DR AFT
Tolerance Rating

3

3

9

Preparedness
Medium

Key threat risks:

A period of negative or restricted economic growth, impacting upon trade, investment,
business confidence, council funding and finance, the labour market and key sectors of the
local economy.

Key opportunity risks:
Increased opportunities for UK-born workforce.

Page 94
29

Brexit Impact Assessment

Actions and performance:
Actions and performance
1

2

3

4

Robust data analysis, shared amongst key partners and stakeholders to reach a
common understanding of local economic conditions, leading to early identification
of real threats and opportunities.
Achieving consensus with partners and stakeholders on strategic objectives for
inclusive and sustainable economic growth, with effective action planning and
monitoring, to avoid becoming distracted by poorly evidenced instinctive short-term
measures.
Increased investment in skills training and ‘inclusion infrastructure’, directed at both
employer and resident needs, to exploit potential for job insertion for residents in the
wake of vacancies created by shortage of migrant workers.
Continue to make the case to Central Government to devolve more skills funding to
local level.

Overview

DR AFT

Bristol is one of the most successful cities
in the UK, with a higher employment rate
than other Core Cities and an economy that
contributes approximately £14bn to the
Treasury (ONS 2016 figures) every year. The
West of England Local Enterprise Partnership
(LEP) has the highest annual growth rate of
the Core City LEP areas and Bristol has the
third highest number of business start-ups14.
However, Bristol’s prosperity is not shared
by all its citizens and many areas experience
multiple deprivation.

• Import and export growth will slow over a
10 year period as new trading negotiations
are negotiated.
• The UK will experience lower net inward
migration.

• Uncertainty over investment returns would
cause some investment to be  postponed or
cancelled.
The 2018 Autumn Budget saw a revised set
of growth forecasts, with GDP revised up
slightly and unemployment forecasts lowered.
However, all these forecasts are based on
a Brexit deal. Should the UK leave without
a Withdrawal Agreement and therefore a
transition period – the OBR states that:

Economic Forecasts

In November 2016, the Office for Budget
Responsibility (OBR) made a number of
judgements about how the vote to leave would
A disorderly Brexit could have severe short-term
affect the economy. The OBR noted that this
implications for the economy, the exchange rate,
was not straightforward, given that the nature
asset prices and the public finances15 .
of the future trading relationship is unknown
and the terms of exit are yet to be agreed.
However, the OBR retained the same broad14
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/32947/
brush assumptions regarding Brexit that have
State+of+Bristol+Key+Facts+2017-18/94b14c82-b664-0f5f-4487underpinned previous forecasts, specifically
8623f4be9ae6
Page 95 15
that:
https://obr.uk/efo/economic-fiscal-outlook-october-2018/
30

Brexit Impact Assessment

(OECD) countries for literacy and numeracy
among 16-24 year olds. CIPD warn that
underinvestment compared to other EU
countries in skills and training means the UK
is “sleepwalking into a low-value, low-skills
economy post-Brexit”.

Offical government estimates, suggest that a
No Deal Brexit could see GDP growing by 8%
less than would be expected were the UK to
remain in the EU.

Impact of negative or restricted growth

While the available data makes it difficult
to quantify Bristol’s vulnerability to skills
shortages, it should be noted that the city has
an above average number of residents qualified
to degree level (48.5%) – with Bristol residents
more highly qualified than all other Core Cities.
However, at the other end of the scale over
15,000 working age residents of Bristol had
no qualification and a further 25,000 were
only qualified to the NVQ1 level, meaning
over 40,000 residents are classed as ‘poorly
qualified’.

In addition to recessionary pressures, or those
of stagnant or very slow growth, a No Deal
Brexit is likely to bring with it specific impacts
upon the UK labour market, representing both
threats and opportunities.
As described earlier, a reduction in the number
of foreign-born workers – both EU and nonEU – has the potential for a range of impacts.
This could include skills shortages, with the
CIPD pointing, out over a year ago16, that the
UK ranks in the bottom four Organisation
for Economic Cooperation and Development

In Detail - Threats and Opportunities

DR AFT

Any negative or restricted economic growth as
a result of No Deal is likely to have a negative
impact upon investment, trade, business
confidence and council finances (particularly
lost business rate income). Work commissioned
by Core Cities suggests in the event of a No
Deal Brexit, Bristol’s GVA (Gross Value Added)
will fall by over 2.5% relative to the previously
projected growth forecast (based on a ‘Remain’
2030 baseline).

There are 22,175 business units across the
city. Any reduced level of development and
an increase in empty retail units would see a
further challenge for the local economy and
council finances. There is a threat that if large
companies reduced or ceased production in the
UK, it would impact Bristol’s economy through
lost jobs and flow down impact on supply
chain. The city’s business landscape includes
34 EU head quartered corporates and 2,639
foreign-owned businesses. Amongst the 24
businesses that have a £100m turnover, nine of
these are foreign-owned.

Increased unemployment, reduced household
income and rising personal debt are common
features of a weakening economy. Each has
the potential for increased demand upon local
authority services and impact upon council
revenue streams through council tax and rent.
Social costs, for example in respect of advice
services, are also likely to increase. Reduced
economic activity will have wider implications
for a range of council income streams, from
planning fees to Community Infrastructure
Levy and parking fees.
16

Nearly two thirds of businesses have not
prepared for a No Deal Brexit, according to the
British Chamber of Commerce. Their survey
of over 2,500 firms across the UK found that
62% of firms have not done a risk assessment
of the impact of Brexit to their business.
The figures reveal a disparity between the
preparedness of the largest companies and
their smaller counterparts; 69% of micro firms
have not completed an assessment, compared
24% of firms with over 240 employees.
Pageto96

https://www.cipd.co.uk/about/media/press/170419-uk-skills-crisis

31

Brexit Impact Assessment

The withdrawal of EU citizen workers carries
both threats and opportunities. Some threats,
with direct relevance to the council’s own
workforce, have already been explored, in terms
of recruitment challenges and skills shortages.
But with this specific threat comes a potential
opportunity for unemployed and economically
excluded UK citizen residents. Increased
numbers of vacancies prompt employers to
find ways of attracting and adapting to these
residents who may have previously been
overlooked.

The number of micro businesses in Bristol is
slightly lower than the national average – but
even so, extrapolating this national data to a
local level would mean an estimated 14,000
micro-businesses in the city have made no
preparations for a No Deal Brexit.
Of all the UK’s regional cities, Bristol is the third
most reliant on EU exports. With 66% of the
city’s exports going to the EU, compared to just
8% going to the US and 2% to China, Bristol is
only behind Exeter and Plymouth in terms of its
reliance on trade within the European Union17.

However, should an economic downturn
outweigh the reduction in the readily available
workforce, it could easily be that progressive
labour market policies aimed at inclusive
growth are pushed to one side in favour of a
more prosaic and pragmatic focus upon any job
rather than a quality job. A tight labour market
aids attempts to foster inclusive growth, while
the evidence shows that the opposite has a
negative impact on diverse recruitment, skills
development and utilisation, and the incentive
for improved terms and conditions.

Manufacturing and construction are vital
sectors to the area. Approximately 20.5% of
national aerospace employment is currently
located in the South West, with both Airbus
and Rolls Royce employing 3,000 people at
their Filton sites (just beyond the Bristol local
authority boundary in South Gloucestershire).
Recent months have been marked by
uncertainty and threats to jobs in the
sector. In June Rolls Royce announced 4,600
redundancies, saying that although their
Derby site would be hit the worst, some
corporate and support jobs would go at its
Filton Plant, Airbus has warned that should the
negotiations between the UK and EU conclude
without a deal, its site at Filton would be at
risk18. The Chief Executive of Business West said
he believes Airbus’s warning should be taken
seriously and “the role of Airbus as an employer
and an anchor firm for our high-tech, advanced
manufacturing and aerospace sectors is hard to
overstate.”

DR AFT

It remains important to maintain good
economic intelligence, through the analysis of
both hard and soft data, in order to have early
notice of changes in the business environment
and the local labour market. This should
alert us to which of the potential threats and
opportunities is manifesting locally, as well as
identifying additional impact not previously
assessed.

Between 2014 and 2020, the city region is
to receive €68m in European Structural and
Investment Funding and both the council and
wider city are exposed to European Investment
Bank (EIB) loans. The future of these is
uncertain, which poses a potential threat to a
number of city economy projects.
17

https://www.centreforcities.org/reader/cities-outlook-2017/uk-cities-export/

18
Page
97
https://www.google.co.uk/search?q=airbus+filton+No+Deal&rlz=1C1GCEA_

enGB815GB815&oq=airbus+filton+No+Deal&aqs=chrome..69i57.4254j1j7&sourceid=chrome&ie=UTF-8

32

Designed by Bristol Design, Bristol City Council November 2018 BD11321

www.bristol.gov.uk

Page 98

Facilitating Bristol to
prepare for Brexit
Page 99

Final
28 November 2018

Grant Thornton UK LLP

Tim Borrett
Acting Director of Policy and Strategy
Bristol City Council
City Hall
College Green
Bristol
BS1 5TR

2 Glass Wharf
Temple Quay
Bristol BS2 0EL
+44 (0)117 305 7600
+44 (0)117 955 4934
grantthornton.co.uk

28 November 2018
Dear Tim

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit

Page 100

We have pleasure in enclosing our report (the ‘Report’) documenting the discussions held during the workshop on Friday 6 November 2018 on
behalf of Bristol City Council (‘the Council’). The scope of this review was agreed in Grant Thornton’s Letter of Engagement, signed on 1
November 2018. Notwithstanding the scope of this engagement, responsibility for management decisions will remain with the Council and not with
Grant Thornton UK LLP.
Conflicts of interest and independence
Grant Thornton UK LLP are auditors of Bristol City Council. In order to maintain independence from the audit engagement the work has been
conducted by a separate engagement team that have no involvement in the audit of the Council. The workshop and this subsequent report do not
give any recommendations as that is outside the scope of this work. We have not played any part in the management or decision making process.
Limitation of Liability
We draw the Council’s attention to the limitation of liability clauses in paragraph 10.1 in the Terms of Engagement between the Council and Grant
Thornton UK LLP, signed on 18th June 2018.
Forms of report
For the Council’s convenience, this report may have been made available to the Council in electronic as well as hard copy format, multiple copies
and versions of this report may therefore exist in different media and in the case of any discrepancy the final signed hard copy should be regarded
as definitive.

Guy Clifton
Director – Public Services Advisory
Grant Thornton UK LLP
Chartered Accountants
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is
authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member
firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grantthornton.co.uk for further details.

grantthornton.co.uk

Contents
Section

Page

Background

04

Measuring threats and opportunities

06

Planning ahead

14

Appendix A – Understanding Brexit: A Bristol focus

16

Page 101
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

3

Page 102

Background

Background
On Friday 9 November we facilitated a 3-hour practical workshop at our Bristol office with
key stakeholders from Bristol City Council to identify and agree the risks and opportunities
for Bristol in relation to Brexit, and develop a set of priority actions for local leaders. This
document is the comprehensive write-up of the workshop based on discussions held on the
day. It documents the threats, changed from risks as per language used by the Council, and
opportunities identified along with the actions to be taken forward by the Council. Also
included, at Appendix A, in this write-up is the initial assessment of Bristol’s economic and
social exposure to Brexit using our Place Analytics tool, based on parameters relevant to the
Council based on our conversations and refined following feedback in the workshop.

The discussions during the workshop were based on a ‘No Deal’ Brexit as the existing Brexit
planning undertaken by the Council has been focused on this scenario.
The threats and opportunities, as well as the action planning, were focused on the seven
areas of interest identified by the Council. The write-up of the threats and opportunities has
also focused on these seven areas. The seven areas of interest are:
Workforce

•

Supply chain

The agenda for the Brexit workshop was:

•

City economy

•

Welcome and introductions

•

Legal and regulatory

•

Understanding Brexit: What does it mean and impact on Bristol

•

Finance and funding

•

Measuring threats and opportunities: Focusing on a No Deal scenario

•

Core operations (specific focus on Adult Social Care)

•

Planning ahead

•

Civil contingencies

•

Next steps and close

The nature of these seven areas means that many of the threats and opportunities overlap
and impact upon more than one area. The overarching theme emerging from the discussions
during the workshop are that workforce and supply chain are key to understanding the
Council’s exposure to Brexit. Failure in these areas could lead to a failure in service delivery
which could have significant implications to the Council and the population as service users.
On the hotspot we have allocated both threats and opportunities against a specific area, but
there is an awareness of the overlap between the different areas.

Page 103

•

Workshop attendees were:
Name(s)

Organisation
ler

ic

ld
e

N

ic
is

s

t
ley

ige

s
Ga

ia

is

il

Ob

is

il

Ob

is
ms

r

ing n

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Role

C

l

Ob

icipa

is

il

icipa

is

il

icipa

is

il

icipa

is

il

icipa

is

C

C
il

-

Workshop participants will be submitting a high level threat/opportunity assessment for
their work-stream. This will assess threat against the impact on citizens and business
continuity. This will take the form of a completed issues log, along with a narrative
description of the main threats and opportunities.

-

These completed assessments will form the main body of a report that will initially be
taken to the Council’s Scrutiny Committee for Member input.

-

Once Member input has been received the report will be updated and the final version is
to be a public report.

c

irs

il

The next steps are:

c

irs

is

is

c

irs

e
Legal
y
Fun ing
iv

ing

icipa

ly

icipa

Op

ies

ion

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

5

Page 104

Measuring threats and
opportunities - hotspot

No Deal
Threats and opportunities
Threats

Opportunities

Workforce
Recruitment and
retention of EU
nationals

Reliance of
delivery partners
on EU nationals

Non-EU workers

Cost pressures

Resilience and
continuity

Service delivery

Post-Brexit
recession

Inward investment

Relocation of
businesses

Brexit
preparedness

Inclusivity

Delivery of
statutory services

Breach of
contracts

Transfer of data

Contract terms and
conditions

Legal changes

Council funding

Credit rating

Horizon 2020
funding

Balanced budget

Capital
programme.

Service failure

Core operations

Legal risk

Continuity plans

Supply

Medical supplies

Funding and
training

Attracting skilled
workers

Regulatory
services

Collaboration
between public
sector
organisations

Engagement and
training of
indigenous
population
.

Inward investment

Avonmouth docks
and Port of Bristol

Creation of job
vacancies

Devolved legal
powers

Traded services

Terms and
conditions of
existing contracts
.

Strong financial
position

Devolved fiscal
power

Devolved funding
decisions

Innovation in
service delivery

Collaboration
across sectors

Be an employer of
choice

Supply chain

Page 105

Changes to import
VAT

City economy

Legal, data &
regulatory

Finance and
Funding

Core
operations
(focus on Adult
Social Care)
Civil
Contingencies

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Community
cohesion

Infrastructure

European
Investment Bank
loans

Replacing funding
from EU sources

Retail market

Agility

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

7

Threats

Threat

Description

Workstream

Recruitment and
retention of EU
nationals

Brexit poses a threat to the recruitment and retention of staff in the care sector. This is an existing issue in the sector that could be
exacerbated by Brexit. The threat at the Council is deemed to be low but impact on wider supply chain will be more significant.

Workforce

Reliance of
delivery partners
on EU nationals

EEA staff in delivery partners (especially social care) are at risk in terms of post-Brexit retention and recruitment. This could have a
significant impact of on the delivery of Council services

Workforce

Page 106

Cost Pressures

Brexit could result in significant cost pressures to the Council. In areas such as: construction/social care/education/facilities
management/repairs & maintenance there could be a loss of component parts from the supply chain. Loss of product availability due to
supply chain changes means that wholesale system changes needed which will come at a financial cost.

Supply Chain

Resilience and
continuity

Brexit has already led to delays in supply chain as demand is being front loaded by suppliers causing a lag in delivery timescales. Brexit
poses the risk that this could worsen which could come at financial and operational costs to the Council. This threat is particularly
significant in health and social care sector.

Supply Chain

Service delivery

Complete failure of the Council supply chain could impact upon the Councils ability to sustain the delivery of both non-statutory and
statutory services.

Supply Chain

Post-Brexit
recession

A post-Brexit economic downturn could impact on the city economy of Bristol. A slowdown in development and an increase in empty
retail units (a sector that is already struggling) could change the city economy of Bristol.

City Economy

Inward investment

There is a very real threat that Brexit could see a decline in inward investment. This could pose a threat to the economic growth of Bristol
as a place

City Economy

Relocation of
businesses

Brexit poses the threat that large companies could cease production in the UK. In Bristol this would impact on the city economy in terms
of lost jobs and a flow down impact on the supply chain. There could be a broader impact when smaller companies supply larger
companies as they could be under threat from these changes.

City Economy

Brexit
preparedness

A lack of Brexit preparedness of key businesses in the city economy would impact upon Bristol in terms of both the city economy and
people

City Economy

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

8

Threats (cont’d)

Description

Delivery of
statutory services

Threat of the Council not being able to deliver statutory duties in a post-Brexit environment. Local authorities do not have the flexibility
that private sector companies have to cease services. In areas such as social care, children’s services and housing stock maintenance
this legal risk is particularly acute.

Legal, Data and
Regulatory

Breach of
contracts

Risk that suppliers to the Council are in breach of contracts. This could have both a financial and service delivery impact on the Council.
As provider of last resort will need to have alternative arrangements for delivery of services, especially statutory services such as social
care

Legal, Data and
Regulatory

Council funding

The threat that Brexit poses to economic growth could directly impact upon the finances of the Council. An increased reliance on
business rates to fund service delivery could be impacted by an increase in empty units and slowdown in development associated with
an economic downturn. There is also a threat to planning and parking fees reducing. All of these could see a reduction in income to the
Council, placing further pressure on already stretched resources.

Finance and Funding

Credit rating

Brexit poses a threat to the Council having its AAA credit rating downgraded. This would potential dive up the pension deficit of the
Council, which is already significant.

Finance and Funding

Horizon 2020
funding

Currently Bristol has significant cross-border collaboration on funding projects. The Council is already seeing Bristol missing out on
opportunities due Brexit uncertainty having behavioural impact on partners, leading to them not choosing to partner with Bristol. PostBrexit this threat would be increased. Bristol is not only losing sources of finance but also losing the exchange of knowledge associated
with collaboration projects.

Finance and Funding

Balanced budget

Financial pressures on the Council pose a threat to the Section 151 officer duties of being required to set a balanced budget. (also
impacts on legal and regulatory)

Finance and Funding

Capital
programme

Concern over whether or not this can be delivered in its current guise under post-Brexit financial pressures (links to both workforce and
supply chain, as well as EU funding). This could result in delays or changes to the capital programme, slowing down development in
Bristol

Finance and Funding

Service failure

As a result in pressures on workforce and supply chain there is the very real threat that the Councils services could fail. The Council
could fail to deliver its statutory duty, impacting service users.

Page 107

Threat

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Workstream

Core operations

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

9

Threats (cont’d)

Description

Continuity plans

The Council does not currently have robust continuity plans in place to deal with Brexit associated risks.

Civil Contingencies

Supply

Threats to supply in food and fuel based on public perception leading to panic buying or port blocking. This would threaten the Councils
ability to deliver services or for and also impact upon the city economy.

Civil Contingencies

Medical supplies

In areas such as social care there is the threat that medical supplies are affected by Brexit. This could pose significant risks to service
users.

Civil Contingencies

Page 108

Threat

Workstream

Non-EU workers

The post-Brexit environment poses a threat to the recruitment of non-EU workers. They will be subject to new immigration criteria. There
are a high proportion of non-EU workers in low-skilled employment at the Council.

Workforce

Funding and
training

Loss of funding for engaging and training with indigenous population due to this coming from EU sources

Workforce

Attracting skilled
workers

Brexit poses a threat that Bristol becomes a less attractive place for skilled people to come and work.

Workforce

Inclusivity

A recession could drive less progressive policies in terms of recruitment (i.e. diversity and inclusion). An economic downturn makes it
harder to achieve inclusive economy

City Economy

European
Investment Bank
loans

Both the Council and the city are exposed to EIB Loans. The future of these is uncertain which could pose a threat to a number of city
economy projects in Bristol

City Economy

Data

Brexit could raise issues over the transfer of data from UK to EU. Threat that the Council does not have an understanding of the
potential impact of this

Legal, Data and
Regulatory

Contract terms
and conditions

There is a threat to the Council that suppliers use Brexit as an excuse to force prices up and the Council must be aware to this

Legal, Data and
Regulatory

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

10

Threats (cont’d)

Description

Replacing funding
from EU sources

There is a lack of clarity on how existing EU funding that comes through the UK government is to be replicated or replaced.

Core operations

In order for the Council to continue delivery of statutory services there is a threat to other services. The Council could neglect these
discretionary services.

Community
cohesion

Brexit has already been blamed for an increased in hate crime. It is a divisive issue that could erode community cohesion

Civil Contingencies

Infrastructure

The risk that Brexit poses to the capital programme of the Council and wider inward investment could make Bristol a less attractive place
to live and work.

Civil Contingencies

Regulatory
services

Where there are opportunities for growth post-Brexit (i.e. trading of regulatory services and Avonmouth docks) the Council needs to
develop appropriate staffing and skills levels

Legal changes

The Council needs to be aware of resources needed to process and respond to post-Brexit legal changes and updates

Legal, Data and
Regulatory

Legal risk

Brexit offer the opportunity for the Council to take innovative approaches to delivery of services. However, when this innovation relates to
statutory services there is an increased legal risk.

Core operations

Page 109

Threat

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Workstream
Finance and Funding
Core operations

Workforce

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

11

Opportunities

Description

Be an employer of
choice

Opportunity to become an employer of choice through initiatives such as funding settled status and improving both pay and non-pay
benefits.

Workforce

Collaboration
between public
sector
organisations

Collaboration between public sector bodies to manage demand, promote recruitment and improve training in care through innovation
(such as development of new skills and utilisation of developing technology).

Workforce

Engagement and
training of
indigenous
population

Development of indigenous population through engagement and training. Consideration needs to be given over where funding for this
could come from as much of it currently comes from EU sources

Workforce

Changes to import
VAT

Opportunities for supply chain as there are proposals that a government import delay on VAT could come into place. This could have a
huge financial impact on cash flows of suppliers as VAT won’t have to be paid up front, potentially driving down prices.

Supply chain

Inward investment

Although there is a threat to inward investment, there is also an opportunity for Bristol to focus on what it can offer for new inward
investment, creating economic growth.

City economy

Avonmouth docks
and Port of Bristol

Currently only 30% of existing imports are from the EU. Therefore, the port has the infrastructure in place and the space to process
imports in a ‘no deal’ trading environment. Presents the opportunity to grow the port traffic. Opportunity to market Avonmouth port in
response to concerns over Dover.

City economy

Creation of job
vacancies

When EEA nationals are not returning to the UK this creates job opportunities for the indigenous population. However, there is the risk
that people could not want to fill these roles.

City economy

Retail market

Retail is already a struggling sector but Brexit does offer an additional incentive to re-engineer retail market and increase resilience of
the city economy.

City economy

Devolved legal
powers

Devolution of legal powers to a local level is possible post-Brexit. This offers Bristol the opportunity to develop innovative policies in
relation to areas such as education and immigration.

Page 110

Opportunity

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Workstream

Legal, data & regulatory

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

12

Opportunities (cont’d)

Description

Workstream

Traded services

Opportunity for Bristol to leverage skill sets of the Council to trade externally with other areas that don’t have the skills required to deliver
these services outside of the Bristol City Council boundary (for example Bristol Airport). There is also an opportunity to trade services
more widely as part of West of England Combined Authority.

Legal, data & regulatory

Terms and
conditions of
existing contracts

Brexit presents an opportunity for the Council to make changes to contract terms and conditions. However, the Council must be aware of
pressures suppliers are facing. Forcing costs too low could threaten service delivery which would have a wide impact on both the people
and economy of Bristol.

Legal, data & regulatory

Strong financial
position

Bristol City Council remains in a relatively strong financial position when compared with other local authorities. Therefore, this provides
the Council with resilience and flexibility to respond to both threats and opportunities post-Brexit.

Finance and funding

Devolved fiscal
powers

Devolved power post-Brexit gives opportunity for innovation. For example, local taxation could be introduced to increase funding sources
for the Council (i.e. tourist tax).

Finance and funding

Devolved funding
decisions

The introduction of new funding streams to replace current EU funding offers an opportunity for devolution. New funding streams could
be aligned more closely with the needs of city and regional areas. Tailored funding creates opportunities that local areas can have
greater influence on how these funds are spent.

Finance and funding

Innovation in
service delivery

Brexit could be a catalyst for the Council to take new approaches to delivering statutory duties in response to pressures.

Core operations

Collaboration
across sectors

Preparing for Brexit present an opportunity for collaboration between local authorities and other local partners (i.e. shared services/Brexit
working party/place based leadership). Thought does need to be given whether the expertise and capacity for this exists in the Council.

Core operations

Agility in
responding

The Council has the opportunity to input into national planning in relation to civil contingencies.

Civil contingencies

Page 111

Opportunity

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

13

Page 112

Planning ahead

Action planning
Initial next steps
There was agreement throughout the room to focus on four key themes:

•
•
•
•

Collaborating – Working together across both the Council and the wider public, private and third sectors to plan for Brexit and increase resilience.
Understanding - Develop the understanding of the exposure of Bristol to Brexit in terms of seven areas in a quantitative manner to support the qualitative understanding.
Communicating - Provide reassurance through communication. Communicate with staff (both EU and non-EU), businesses and citizens in relation to preparing for Brexit.
Prioritising - Identify those threats that are likely to have the greatest impact on Bristol and to the Council and mitigate these where possible.

Description

Establish Bristol City Council
Brexit Working Group

Establish a Brexit working group for Bristol City Council to co-ordinate the planning for Brexit across the Council, as well as the wider public, private and third sectors.
The basis of this working group is now in existence with the workshop attendees but the group needs to identify who is missing from the discussions. Group to lead on
ensuring that stakeholders are informed and engaged so that there is a cumulative, joined-up impact in planning for Brexit. This group needs to have appropriate
governance from political stakeholders and should: Meet – Discuss – Test – Plan – Create mechanisms for dealing with threats and opportunities.

Communicate to EU workforce

There is a wide range of information available from government (https://www.gov.uk/settled-status-eu-citizens-families) on the future of EU citizens currently in the UK.
Communicating this with EU workers is key so that they are clear on their rights.
NB - Also important to communicate with non-EU employees as they may be married to EU citizens and would not be identified in mapping of relevant employees.

Map supply chain

Develop a better understanding of the key suppliers to the Council by analysing the c.10,000 suppliers and identifying the most significant suppliers by value as well as
those providing key services. Once this has been mapped the conversation can be had, working with other public sector organisations to avoid duplication, with these
suppliers to understand their Brexit preparedness. Where possible, work with suppliers to increase resilience to impacts of Brexit.

Understand legal position with
regard to statutory responsibilities

Appropriately mitigating the threats identified in relation to the ability of the Council to continue delivering its statutory services are key. This is because any failure to
deliver statutory duty could pose a significant legal and reputational risk.

Review contracts

Working with suppliers it is key that the Council understands the impact Brexit could have on existing contracts. A review of contracts in terms of pricing, as well as
front loading renewals could increase resilience for both the Council and their suppliers.

Model potential impact on
Business rates

In order to best understand the exposure the funding from business rates to Brexit a modelling exercise needs to be completed. This could increase the resilience of
the Council to changes in funding base due to Brexit.

Increase skill resilience

Improve recruitment and retention through incentives such as: retention bonuses and non-cash benefits.
Improve training by simplifying it (i.e. week long training course rather than disjointed approach). Potential to create an in-house agency for care staff rather than
relying on external providers to increase resilience. Potential to engage with education providers to create pipeline for care staff.

Explore opportunities to diversify
care prescriptions

Open up a wider number of suppliers to limit risk of individual supplier failure.

Review contingency plans

Use Brexit as a driver to develop more robust contingency plans across the Council.

Page 113

Action

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

15

Page 114

Appendix A –
Understanding Brexit: A Bristol focus

Bristol. Vibrancy
Vibrant Economy Index – Overall score

Local Authority

Page 115

Bristol, City of
Leeds
Sheffield
Newcastle upon Tyne
Liverpool
Manchester
Birmingham
Nottingham

Key questions to consider:

Key insights

• Which strengths are most important for
your area? How can these strengths be
preserved post-Brexit?
• Could some of these challenges be
compounded by the impacts of Brexit?
• How could you prioritise interventions
spatially?
• How can greater collaboration be
encouraged across boundaries with
neighbouring areas?

•

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

•
•
•
•
•

Vibrant
Economy Index

Prosperity
Index

A
B
C
C
C
D
D
D

A
A
B
B
B
A
A
B

Health,
Dynamism and
Resilience and
Inclusion and Wellbeing and
opportunity
sustainability
Equality Index Happiness
Index
Index
Index
A
A
A
B
A
A
B
C

E
E
E
E
E
E
E
E

D
C
D
E
E
E
E
E

A
A
B
A
B
B
D
C

Community,
Trust and
Belonging
Index
A
C
B
B
B
D
C
C

Overall Bristol performs very well by national standards, ranking in the top 20% of 324 local
authorities.
Bristol has the best performance of all English Core Cities.
It has top 20% performance on four of the six baskets- Prosperity, Dynamism & Opportunity,
Resilience & Sustainability and Community, Trust & Belonging.
Within the Prosperity basket Bristol performed particularly well on total GVA, ranking 9th highest
nationally.
Within the Dynamism & Opportunity basket it has top 20% performance on the proportion of people
qualified to Level 4 and above and employment in higher education.
Bristol has very weak performance on the Inclusion and Equality basket. This revealed high levels
of deprivation, as measured by the Index of Multiple Deprivation, and a large gap between the most
and least deprived local area within Bristol.

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

17

Bristol. Vibrancy
Vibrant Economy Profile* – Statistical Nearest Neighbours
Top 5 Nearest Neighbours

Page 116
*The larger the shape, the greater the vibrancy

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

18

Bristol. People
Employment rate

EU residents

Community Vulnerability Index

Proportion of population that were born in the EU

Vulnerability Index score (Eng = 100)

6
5

%

4

UK born residents
South West: 74.3%
National: 71.8%

Bristol

EU born residents
South West: 79.5%
National: 77.0%

Bristol

70.8%

3
2
1
0

Page 117

Community Vulnerability vs. Funding
(Regional)

Key questions to consider:

100

income
100

South West

West
Midlands
Yorkshir…

London

50

North East
25
East of
England
0

South East
25

50
Vulnerability Index

East
Midlands

75

75
50

North West

75

0

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Community Vulnerability
Index Profile*
Average total

Deprivation
EU Funding 20014-2020

• Given the high number and proportion of
residents from the EU, what could
restrictions on free movement of people
mean for Bristol?
• How will existing EU residents be
retained?
• How could you prioritise interventions to
mitigate the most vulnerable places?
• The SW is a major beneficiary of EU
funding, with Cornwall most notably
benefiting. What will removal of these
funds mean for Bristol? (Horizon 2020
grants)

77.3%

100

Unemployment
rate

25
0

Elementary
occupations

% below NVQ 2
skills
Great Britian median
Nottingham
Liverpool
Newcastle upon Tyne

Unemployment
rate (aged 1624)

% claiming
benefits
Bristol, City of
Manchester
Sheffield
Birmingham

*The larger the shape, the greater the vulnerability
Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

19

Bristol. Focus – Deprivation

DRAFT

Deprivation across Bristol
•

One of the least deprived of Core Cities (just
behind Leeds)

•

High inequality with ‘hotspots’ of deprivation
(gap of 32,085 ranks)

•

16% of resident (69,000) live in the bottom 10%
most deprived parts of England

Page 118

Bristol
LSOA Name
rank

Ward

IMD Rank where
1 is most
deprived

1

Bishport Avenue

Whitchurch Park

65

2

Hareclive Road

Whitchurch Park

67

3

Fulford Road North

Hartcliffe

200

4

Bishport Avenue East

Whitchurch Park

232

5

Inns Court

Filwood

245

6

Easton Road

Lawrence Hill

251

7

Broadway

Filwood

340

8

Ilminster Avenue West

Filwood

367

9

Southmead Central

Southmead

368

10

Whitchurch Lane

Hartcliffe

518

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Overall Index of Multiple Deprivation- LSOA level

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

20

Bristol. Businesses
UK GDP dependent on EU
35
30

Productivity

Agriculture, forestry…
100
Arts,…
Mining, quarrying &…

30 31

Health

25
18

Education

21

%

20

Business sectors

15
7 8

10
5

12.5
9.5
3 4

75
50
25

Public…
Business…

Page 119

G,W & NS

Key questions to consider:
• How could exposed sectors
(Manufacturing/Construction) be impacted
in Bristol?
• What could be the challenges for the 34
EU head-quartered corporates?
• What are the risk around the 2,639 foreign
owned businesses in the area?
• What will the impact be for the 24
businesses that have over £100 million
turnover? In particular, how will the 9
foreign owned businesses be impacted?
• How can Bristol increase productivity
levels?

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Construction
Motor trade

Retail
Transport & storage

Financial & insurance

Accommodation &…
Information &…
Bristol, City of
England median

Bristol, City of
Leeds
Liverpool
Manchester
Birmingham
Sheffield
Nottingham
70

80

90

100

110

120

Businesses with over 100 mill turnover

Business facts
Companies with either their registered or
primary trading address in Bristol & S.G

40,343

Companies owned by foreign corporates or
foreign nationals (individuals)

2,639

Companies owned by foreign nationals
(individuals) residing either in the UK or
overseas

GVA per hour indices
(100= national average)

Wholesale

Property
UK

Manufacturing

0

Professional,…

0

GVA per hour worked
Bristol: £31.0
South West: £29.3
United Kingdom: £32.6

c.2,087

Companies that are UK subsidiaries of a
foreign HQ corporate group (i.e. corporates)

c.254

Number of these corporates filing a revenue
figure in the UK

105

Number of EU HQd corporates filing a revenue
figure in the UK

34

Aggregate UK revenues of EU HQ’d corporates

£1.74b
n

Aggregate UK revenues of all non-UK HQ’d
corporates

£6.37b
n
Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

21

Bristol. Workforce
Skills

Page 120

No qualifications
Bristol: 5.1%
South West: 5.0%
England: 7.6%

30% of UK manufacturing GDP is reliant on the EU

100

NVQ 1
Bristol: 8.2%
South West: 11.2%
England: 10.9%

75

50
Bristol

25

0

0

25

50

75

100

Low skilled occupations

Proportion of workforce from EEA

Key questions to consider:

Adult Social Care

%

• What will a reduced reliance on EU
workers mean for your key sectors?
• How can a steady skills supply be
maintained post-Brexit?
• What action can be taken locally to
support those residents with the lowest
level skills and most at risk as a result of
Brexit?
• What steps could be taken to support
workers in the most vulnerable sectors e.g.
manufacturing?

Employment in manufacturing (%)

Low skills vs resident earnings

Resident earnings

“Those with fewer formal qualifications, are more likely to be
employed in the most exposed industries”
Institute of Fiscal Studies, 2018

18
16
14
12
10
8
6
4
2
0

National Insurance Number (NINo) registrations
29% of reduction in EU registrations between 2016 and 2018
across the UK
-40%
-30%
-20%
-10%
0%

Birmingham
Manchester
Sheffield
Bristol, City of
Nottingham

Leeds
Liverpool
Newcastle upon Tyne
UK

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

22

Bristol. Sector focus – Adult Social Care
UK ASC workforce demographics
Total workforce

1.47 million

8%

Total economic
contribution

£38.5 billion

+3%

Vacancy rate

Population projections (2016 – 2041 )

Key questions to consider:

52% increase in 65 and over population for England

Aged 65+ (no.)

• How can safeguard supply of health and
social care workers needed to continue
delivering safe, high quality care?
• How can BNSSG prepare for aging
population and the impact this may have
on services?

16
14
12
10
8
6
4
2
0

9

Bristol, North Somerset & S Gloucestershire
STP area (BNSSG) - Social Care

250,000

•

23,000 jobs (10,100 in Bristol)

200,000

•

10.9% care worker vacancy rate

•

37.5% turnover of care workers

•

19% of care workers non UK born- with
9% born in EEA (non UK) - high
dependence

•

Care homes with nursing – 18% from EEA
(594).

150,000
100,000
50,000
0

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Nationality trends
(2012/13- 2017/18)
EU: +3%
British: +1%
Non-EU: -3%

BNSSG
increase
69,588
(43%)

2016
2018
2020
2022
2024
2026
2028
2030
2032
2034
2036
2038
2040

Page 121

8%

Nationality
EU: 8%
British: 83%
Non-EU: 10%

EU adult social care workforce by region (%)

%

UK overview

DRAFT

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

23

Bristol. Sector focus – Aerospace
Aerospace employment by region (2017)
Total workforce

95,000
Total turnover

£32 billion
Growth rate

Page 122
•
•
•
•
•
•

23%

Region
East Midlands
South West
North West
Wales
East
South East
West Midlands
Scotland
North East
Yorkshire and
The Humber
London

Employment
(no.)

% of
% of national
regional
aerospace
employment employment

19,000
17,000
15,000
9,000
7,000
7,000
4,000
2,500
1,250
1,000

0.9
0.7
0.5
0.7
0.3
0.2
0.2
0.1
0.1
0.0

300

0.0

22.9
20.5
18.1
10.8
8.4
8.4
4.8
3.0
1.5

Aerospace employment by local authority

Employees (no.)

UK overview

DRAFT

7000

300

150

100

1.2
0.4

Rolls Royce

Airbus
Leading manufacture of aircraft, helicopters
and defence and space equipment
Headquarter in Toulouse
Directly employees 14,000 people across UK
Employs 3,000 people in its production site
in Filton near Bristol
No deal Brexit risk assessment*- production
likely to be ‘severely disrupted’
Unrecoverable delay- ‘up to €1 billion
weekly loss of turnover’

8000
7000
6000
5000
4000
3000
2000
1000
0

•
•
•
•
•
•

30 sites across UK and employees over
22,000 people
Significant investment over the past few
years
Filton plant is also a world leader in short
take-off/vertical landing (STOVL) engine
technology
Employs 3,000 people at this plant
Primary supplier of aircraft engines to
Airbus
Plans to cut 4,600 jobs across its plants
over the next two years.

*Airbus Brexit- Risk Assessment (June 2018)
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018

24

Sources
Theme
People
Focus - Deprivation
Businesses

Page 123

Workforce

Sector focus - Adult
Social Care

Sector focus Aerospace

Visual

Source

EU residents
Employment rate
Community Vulnerability Index
Deprivation map
UK GDP dependent on EU
Busness sectors
Productivity
Business Facts and map
Skills- No quals and NVQ 1
Low skills vs resident earnings
Employment in Manufatucrig
National Insurance Number (NINo)
registrations
UK overview
UK ASC workforce demographics
EU adult social care workforce by
region
Population projections
BNSSG Social care stats

Census (2011)
Census (2011)
Grant Thornton (2017)
English Indices of Deprivation, DCLG (2015)
Bart Los et al. (March, 2017)
UK Business Counts, Inter Departmental Business Register (2018)
Nominal (smoothed) GVA (B) per hour worked indices; NUTS 2 and NUTS 3, ONS (2016)
FAME, Bureau Van Djik (2018)
Annual Population Survey (Dec, 2017)
Annual Population Survey (Dec, 2017); Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings (2017)
Business Register and Employment Survey (2017)
NINo registrations to adult overseas nationals entering the UK by Region / Local Authority and world region registrations year to June 2018, DWP (June 2018)
The state of the adult social care sector and workforce in England (Sept, 2018)
The state of the adult social care sector and workforce in England (Sept, 2018)

UK overview
Aerospace employment by region
Aerospce employment by local
authority
Airbus - stats
Rolls Royce - stats

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential | Final

The state of the adult social care sector and workforce in England (Sept, 2018)
Mid-year population projections, ONS (2016)
BNSSG Sustainability and Transformation Plan (October, 2017)
Business Population Estimates, BEIS (2017); The areospace industry: statistics and policy, House of Commons
Library (Nov 2017)
Business Register and Employment Survey (2017)
Business Register and Employment Survey (2017)
https://www.airbus.com/company/worldwide-presence/uk.html#Economy; Brexit Risk Assessment Memorandum
(June 2018); The impact of Airbus on the Uk economy, Oxford Economics (June 2017)
Rolls Royce, 2018

Facilitating Bristol to prepare for Brexit | November 2018 25

Page 124
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Confidential
Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss
occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a result of any material in this publication.

grantthornton.co.uk

Agenda Item 11
Resources Scrutiny Commission

Resources Scrutiny
Commission
6th December 2018
Report of:

Denise Murray, Director of Finance

Title: Council Tax Base 2019/20
Ward:
Officer Presenting Report: Tony Whitlock, Principal Accountant
Contact Telephone Number: 0117

Recommendation
Members consider the information contained within the following Cabinet Report and
attachments which are as follows:
- Council Tax Base Cabinet Report
- Appendix A Tax Base Report
- Appendix 1 CTB (October 2018)

Page 125

Decision Pathway – Report Template
PURPOSE: Key decision
MEETING: Cabinet
DATE: 04 December 2018
TITLE

Council Tax Base 2019/20

Ward(s)

City Wide

Author: Denise Murray

Job title: Director of Finance

Cabinet lead: Cllr Craig Cheney

Executive Director lead: Mike Jackson

Proposal origin: BCC Staff
Decision maker: Cabinet Member
Decision forum: Cabinet
Purpose of Report: To recommend the Council Tax Base for 2019/20 for approval at Full Council.
Evidence Base: The Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended) requires the Council as the Billing Authority to
calculate a Council Tax Collection Fund estimate by 31 January each year.
The number of Band D equivalent properties, net of exemptions, reductions and discounts, in the Tax Base for 19/20
is 126,999 an increase of 0.95% Band D equivalent properties since October 2017.
Cabinet Member / Officer Recommendations:
1. The recommendation is for Cabinet to agree, in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council
Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by Bristol City Council as its Council Tax base for
the financial year 2019/20 shall be 126,999
Corporate Strategy alignment: N/A
City Benefits: N/A
Consultation Details: N/A
Revenue Cost

£1.6m

Source of Revenue Funding General Fund

Capital Cost

£ Nil

Source of Capital Funding

One off cost ☒

Ongoing cost ☐

Saving Proposal ☐

N/A

Income generation proposal ☐

Required information to be completed by Financial/Legal/ICT/ HR partners:
1. Finance Advice: The MTFP assumes an annual increase in the tax base of 1.5%. However estimates for 2019/20
suggest the number of new chargeable dwellings added to the valuation list will be exceeded by the number of
student exemptions awarded resulting in reduced growth of 0.95% in the tax base. The equivalent loss in council tax
revenue is £1.6m. This directly impacts on the resources available to the fund the revenue budget due to be
considered by Full Council on 19 February 2019. The calculation of the Council Tax Base is calculated based on data
extracted from the CTB1 return completed in mid-October. This is then adjusted for fluctuations in both the housing
market and the estimated effect of additional discounts and exemptions.
Finance Business Partner: Tony Whitlock 13/10/18
2. Legal Advice: The tax base calculations for 2019/20 set out in this report comply with the Local Authorities
(Calculation of Council tax base) Regulations 2012.
The report will enable the Council to meet the requirement under the Local Government Finance Act 1992 ( as
Version April-2018

Page 126

1

amended) to determine the Council Tax base by no later than 31st January in the preceding financial year.
These regulations have been made under the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (LGFA 1992).
Legal Team Leader: Nancy Rollason 25/10/18
3. Implications on IT: There are no IT implications arising
IT Team Leader: Ian Gale 25/10/18
4. HR Advice: No HR Implications
HR Partner: James Brereton 25/10/18
EDM Sign-off
Cabinet Member sign-off
CLB Sign-off
For Key Decisions - Mayor’s
Office sign-off

Mike Jackson
Cllr Craig Cheney
Mike Jackson
Mayor

17/10/18
29/10/18
30/10/18
29/10/18

Appendix A – Further essential background / detail on the proposal

YES

Appendix B – Details of consultation carried out - internal and external

YES

Appendix C – Summary of any engagement with scrutiny

NO

Appendix D – Risk assessment

NO

Appendix E – Equalities screening / impact assessment of proposal

NO

Appendix F – Eco-impact screening/ impact assessment of proposal

NO

Appendix G – Financial Advice

NO

Appendix H – Legal Advice

NO

Appendix I – Combined Background papers
Appendix J – Exempt Information

CTB1 return to
MHCLG
attached
NO

Appendix K – HR advice

NO

Appendix L – ICT

NO

Version April-2018

Page 127

2

APPENDIX A

1. Policy
Bristol City Council has the power in statute to raise a tax on households in its area to pay for the provision
of local services. It is designated as the Billing Authority for the area. This means that it is responsible for
levying a council tax to meet its own demands and to meet the precepts of other authorities in the area.
The major precepting bodies are Avon Police and Crime Commissioner and Avon Fire Authority.
2. Context
i.

Section 67 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended) requires the Council to
determine its tax base for council tax purposes each year. Properties are recorded in eight national
bands by value (A to H) as determined the Valuation Office agency. Band H taxpayers pay twice as
much as those in Band D and three times as much as those in Band A. The number of properties is
expressed as a number of Band D equivalent properties.

ii.

In accordance with Regulations the Authority must set a tax base for council tax purposes and
notify major precepting bodies by 31 January each year.

3. Calculation of council tax base
i.

The calculation has been prepared in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council
Tax Base) Regulations 2012 which came into force on 30 November 2012. In October each year
MHCLG requires a snapshot, which is based on the number of properties, of the Tax Base at a
specified date in September, net of exemptions, reductions and discounts. This is known as the
CTB1 return. A copy of the return for October 2018 is attached as Appendix B to this report. This
calculates the number of chargeable properties in the City. Adjustments are then made for
discounts and exemptions including those for the Council Tax Support Scheme. The adjusted
numbers of properties in each of the eight valuation bands A to H are expressed as numbers of
band D equivalents so they may be added together to produce a single figure. The table below
shows the tax base and associated year on year percentage increase since 2014/15.
Year
2014/15
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19
2019/20

ii.

Tax Base (Budget Report)
115,008
119,116
120,946
124,083
125,798
126,999

Percentage Increase
1.69%
3.57%
1.54%
2.59%
1.38%
0.95%

The significant factors required to be taken into account in calculating the Tax Base are as follows:

4. Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme
i.

From 1 April 2013 local council tax support schemes replaced council tax benefit in England. Under
these local schemes reductions are part of the council tax system rather than a welfare benefit.
Bristol City Council introduced a localised scheme that provided a full set of discounts that
replicated the previously existing national Council Tax benefit scheme. There is no intention to
change these arrangements for 2019/20.
1 128
Page

ii.

The table below shows the number of pensioner and working age claimants recorded each year on
the CTB return since October 2013 (Band D equivalents)
October
October
October
October
October
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
Pensioners
11,663
11,019
10,054
9,594
9,077
Working Age
20,949
20,163
19,447
19,100
18,938
Total
32,612
31,182
29,501
28,694
28,015

iii.

The table above shows that the reduction in tax base due to pensioner claimants has fallen by 2,586
, or 22.2% since 2014, primarily because pensioner benefit income is rising more quickly than the
cost of living (“triple lock”), while the number of working age claimants has reduced by 2,011 or
9.6% over the same period of time. This is in line with previously reported trends and therefore has
been reflected in the calculation of the Tax Base.

5. Unoccupied Properties
i.

Unoccupied Furnished Properties – the Council has discretion to set the level of discount for
properties which are substantially furnished but are not anyone’s sole or main residence (often
referred to as “second homes”) The Council has determined this level of discount will remain at
0% and this is reflected in the proposed Tax Base.

ii.

Vacant Properties – The Council has discretion to determine the discount, if any, to be awarded in
respect of vacant dwellings (that is dwellings that are unoccupied and substantially unfurnished).
From 1 April 2017 the Council has determined that empty properties that are unfurnished are no
longer entitled to a discount. The full council tax charge therefore applies.

iii.

Long Term Empty Properties – There is a discretionary power for the Council to impose a premium
of up to 50% in respect of properties that have remained vacant for at least two years. The
proposed Tax Base incorporates a premium of 50% charged in respect of properties that have been
empty for at least two years in accordance with the Council’s previous determination that a
premium of 50% should apply to this category of dwellings.

6. Single Person Discounts
i.

Regular reviews have significantly reduced the number of properties attracting single person
discounts. Currently 29.3% of domestic properties are claiming single person discount. Regular
National Fraud Initiatives identify multiple occupants in properties claiming single person discount
helping to ensure that the Council Tax Base properly reflects entitlements to this discount.

7. Student Discounts
i.

Students are entitled to an exemption from paying Council Tax if everyone in the property is a full
time student. Alternatively they may be entitled to a discount if some of the people occupying a
property are full time students. Bristol has a large student population, and as at the end of October
the status of all students has not been evidenced to the Council. It is therefore necessary to
estimate the number of additional students likely to be eligible for exemptions. Any estimate to be
included in the Tax Base will also take account of any known student related property
developments. The adjustment of 2,254 Band D equivalents in table 10 below comprises of an
estimated increase in student exemptions of 1857 Band D equivalents due to existing student
households where exemptions need to be re-instated and an additional 397 Band D equivalent
student properties under construction and likely to be added to the rating list for 2019/20.
2 129
Page

ii.

Student accommodation can take the form of either private housing or halls of residence. The table
below sets out both the actual number of properties (houses/flats and halls of residents) receiving
student exemptions at the end of the financial year along with an estimate of the Band D
equivalents based on these figures. The 2018/19 figures are an estimate of the position at the end
of March 2019 based on current information and the 2019/20 is an estimate of anticipated
numbers given as part of the Council tax base calculations For 2018/19 the City Council’s share of
reduced Council Tax income as a result of student exemptions is estimated to be £12.9m. This is
greater than expected in the tax base for 2018/19, primarily due to an increase in new
developments but also an increasing trend to switch existing privately let accommodation to
student lets.
Student Exemptions

Property Numbers

Year
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19
2019/20

Actual Student
Exemptions
6,784
7,548
8,273
8,500
8,900

Band D Equivalents
5,276
5,870
6,434
6,611
6,922

8. Growth
i.

In determining the Tax Base for the forthcoming year the Council is able to take into account any
increase in Tax Base that may arise from the completion of new properties. Given the amount of
property development across the City and, in view of this continuing trend, it is considered
reasonable to allow for an element of growth in the Tax Base due to the anticipated completion of
new properties in respect of known major developments. In estimating the effect on the Tax Base
of new properties it is prudent to assume the majority of new properties will be in lower valuation
Bands. Allowances must also be made for discounts that will apply in respect of new properties,
including Council Tax Support discounts, and for the fact that Council Tax will only be payable for
new properties from the date of completion rather than for a full financial year.

ii.

The 2018/19 estimate for growth uses information provided by the Council’s Valuation and
Inspection team and is based on the number of new developments in the City where work has
commenced. Assumptions are then made as to whether these properties will be banded by the
end of the financial year, the actual date during the year they may be banded and the number of
exemptions, discounts and Council Tax Support they might attract.
Since the completion of the CTB1 return the Valuation & Inspection team within Revenues has
identified that an additional 165 properties have been banded. A further 110 properties have been
reported to the Valuation Office but have not yet been banded. It is assumed all of these
properties will have been banded by 1 April 2019. Allowing for losses and a proportion of lower
banded properties this is equivalent to a total of 167 band D properties.

iii.

The team have further identified a potential 7,281 additional assessments were work has
commenced. The estimate of properties likely to be banded during 2019/20 is anticipated to be
around 75%, resulting in a figure of 5,461. A further reduction of 50% is made to take account of
3 130
Page

the fact that all of these properties will not have been banded on 1 April 2019. The resulting figure
is 2,730 and a 25% reduction has been factored in for loss in revenue due to exemptions, discounts
and Council Tax Support. The final figure of 2,048 is assumed to be lower banded properties so this
figure has been converted into the Band “D” equivalent of 1,593.
iv.

The total estimated equivalent Band D growth in the tax base is therefore estimated at 1,760.

Total Dwellings
Identified new dwellings under construction not complete
Reduction by 25% for sites not completed during 18/19
Reduction by 50%, to take into account sites will be
completed through-out the year so won’t be eligible for
Council Tax until complete.
Reduction by 25% to take into account any discounts,
exemptions and Council Tax Support Scheme on new
properties
Add: 110 properties already complete and waiting to be
banded
Add: 165 properties added to the rating list since
completion of CTB1
Total Growth

Band D
Equivalents

7,281
5,461
2,730
2,048

1,593

110

65

165

102
1,760

9. Losses on Collection
i.

In estimating the provision for losses on collection the Council makes an estimate of debts which,
after full recovery measures have been affected will be uncollectable and therefore recommended
for write-off. Losses on collection for 2019/20, after adjusting for the continued collection of prior
years’ arrears, is estimated to be 1.5%

4 131
Page

10. Calculation of the 2019/20 Council Tax Base
2019/20
Band D
Equivalent
Properties
Tax Base as per attached CTB 1 Return

Difference

129,427

127,376

2,051

1,760

1,489

271

(1,857)

(969)

(888)

(397)

(184)

(213)

Adjusted Tax Base

128,933

127,712

1,221

LESS losses on collection of 1.5%

(1,934)

(1,914)

(20)

Recommended Tax Base

126,999

125,798

1,201

Adjustment due to anticipated growth
Reduction due to reinstatement of existing
student properties not recorded on CTB1
Reduction due to additional student discounts

i.

2018/19
Band D
Equivalent
Properties

This is an increase of 1,201 (0.95%) Band D equivalent properties since the last Tax Base calculation
in October 2017, however this growth is below the MTFP assumed level in the Tax Base of 1.5%.
There has been an increase in the number of chargeable dwellings and a continued reduction in the
number of benefit recipients receiving council tax reductions. However the primary reason for the
lower than anticipated growth in the tax base is due to the increasing number of properties, both
new developments and existing privately let accommodation now being, or anticipated to be,
occupied by students and receiving student exemption. This results in an additional pressure of
£1.6m within the budget for 2019/20.

Appendix B – Details of consultation carried out - internal and external
i. Internal
Head of Revenues – Resources
ii. External
Not Applicable
Appendix D - Risk Assessment

5 132
Page

There are a number of risks associated with estimating the amount of Council Tax collected during the
year. These include;


Difficulty in estimating Council Tax discounts and exemptions, including the take-up of the
Council Tax Support Scheme.

Appendix E -Public Sector Equality Duties
There are no proposals in this report which require either a statement as to the relevance of public
sector equality duties or an Equalities Impact Assessment.

Appendices:
Appendix 1 - Copy of the CTB report submitted to the MHCLG October 2018
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers: Working papers in Corporate Finance

6 133
Page

CTB Form

CTB(October 2018)
34

Calculation of Council Tax Base
Please e-mail to : ctb.statistics@communities.gov.uk
Please enter your details after checking that you have selected the correct local authority name
Ver 1.1

Please select your local authority's name from this list

Check that this is your authority :
E-code :
Local authority contact name :
Local authority contact telephone number :
Local authority contact e-mail address :

Bristol
E0102
Martin Smith
0117 9755744
martin.smith@bristol.gov.uk

CTB(October 2018) form for : Bristol
Dwellings shown on the Valuation List
for the authority on
Monday 10 September 2018

Completed forms should be received by MHCLG by Friday 12 October 2018

Band A
entitled to
disabled relief
reduction
COLUMN 1

Band A
COLUMN 2

Band B
COLUMN 3

Band C
COLUMN 4

Band D
COLUMN 5

Band E
COLUMN 6

Band F
COLUMN 7

Band G
COLUMN 8

Band H
COLUMN 9

TOTAL
COLUMN 10

Part 1
1. Total number of dwellings on the Valuation List

52,243

73,560

39,094

18,391

9,708

4,787

2,857

338

200,978.0

2,411

1,376

1,384

1,207

996

176

44

14

7,608.0

3. Number of demolished dwellings and dwellings outside area
of authority on 1 October 2018 (please see notes)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.0

4. Number of chargeable dwellings on 1 October 2018 (treating
demolished dwellings etc as exempt) (lines 1-2-3)

49,832

72,184

37,710

17,184

8,712

4,611

2,813

324

193,370.0

5. Number of chargeable dwellings in line 4 subject to disabled
reduction on 1 October 2018

29

188

147

86

54

29

29

21

583.0

2. Number of dwellings on valuation list exempt on 1 October
2018 (Class B & D to W exemptions)

6. Number of dwellings effectively subject to council tax for this
band by virtue of disabled relief (line 5 after reduction)

29

188

147

86

54

29

29

21

7. Number of chargeable dwellings adjusted in accordance with
lines 5 and 6 (lines 4-5+6 or in the case of column 1, line 6)

29

49,991

72,143

37,649

17,152

8,687

4,611

2,805

303

193,370.0

8

22,093

20,635

9,741

3,765

1,688

668

341

28

58,967.0

6

16569.75

15476.25

7305.75

2823.75

1266

501

255.75

21

1

474

838

463

246

112

32

10

1

0.75

355.5

628.5

347.25

184.5

84

24

7.5

0.75

1

38

71

57

28

29

29

34

25

312.0

2.75

5,660.75

5,403.75

2,579.50

1,016.75

464.50

189.50

104.75

19.75

15,442.0

733

626

398

241

111

39

16

8

2,172.0

1,228

948

427

252

86

30

18

1

2,990.0

13. Number of dwellings in line 7 classed as empty and
receiving a discount on 1 October 2018 and not shown in line
12 (b/fwd from Flex Empty tab)

60

83

48

24

13

8

8

1

245.0

14. Number of dwellings in line 7 classed as empty and being
charged the Empty Homes Premium on 1 October 2018 (b/fwd
from Flex Empty tab)

107

103

29

18

12

13

3

0

285.0

1,395

1,134

504

294

111

51

29

2

3,520.0

354

316

120

64

32

21

14

2

923.0

8. Number of dwellings in line 7 entitled to a single adult
household 25% discount on 1 October 2018
Tax base after reduction
9. Number of dwellings in line 7 entitled to a 25% discount on 1
October 2018 due to all but one resident being disregarded for
council tax purposes
Tax base after reduction
10. Number of dwellings in line 7 entitled to a 50% discount on
1 October 2018 due to all residents being disregarded for
council tax purposes
Reduction in tax base
11. Number of dwellings in line 7 classed as second homes on
1 October 2018 (b/fwd from Flex Empty tab)
12. Number of dwellings in line 7 classed as empty and
receiving a zero% discount on 1 October 2018 (b/fwd from Flex
Empty tab)

15. Total number of dwellings in line 7 classed as empty on 1
October 2018 (lines 12, 13 & 14).
16. Number of dwellings that are classed as empty on 1
October 2018 and have been for more than 6 months.
NB These properties should have already been included in line
15 above.

583.0

2,177.0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

16a. The number of dwellings included in line 16 above which
are empty on 1 October 2018 because of the flooding that
occurred between 1 December 2013 and 31 March 2014 and
are only empty because of the flooding.

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.0

16b. The number of dwellings included in line 16 above which
are empty on 1 October 2018 because of the flooding that
occurred between 1 December 2015 and 31 March 2016 and
are only empty because of the flooding.

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.0

17. Number of dwellings that are classed as empty on 1
October 2018 and have been for more than 6 months and fall
to be treated under empty homes discount class D (formerly
Class A exemptions). NB These properties should have
already been included in line 15 above. Do NOT include any
dwellings included in line 16a and 16b above.

44

53

23

13

7

3

4

1

148.0

18 Line 16 - line 16a - line 16b - line 17. This is the equivalent
of line 18 on the CTB(October 2017) and will be used in the
calculation of the New Homes Bonus.

310

263

97

51

25

18

10

1

775.0

Page
50,413 134
27,311

13,071

6,833

3,861

2,409

248

131,384.0

19. Number of dwellings in line 7 where there is liability to pay
100% council tax before Family Annexe discount

19

27,219

X

0

CTB Form

CTB(October 2018)
34

Calculation of Council Tax Base
Please e-mail to : ctb.statistics@communities.gov.uk
Please enter your details after checking that you have selected the correct local authority name
Ver 1.1

20. Number of dwellings in line 7 that are assumed to be
subject to a discount or a premium before Family Annexe
discount

10

22,772

21,730

10,338

4,081

1,854

750

396

55

61,986.0

21. Reduction in taxbase as a result of the Family Annexe
discount (b/fwd from Family Annexe tab)

0.0

5.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

5.3

26.3

44,318.5

66,707.8

35,036.0

16,120.3

8,215.5

4,420.0

2,693.8

282.3

177,820.3

5/9

6/9

7/9

8/9

9/9

11/9

13/9

15/9

18/9

14.6

29,545.7

51,883.8

31,143.1

16,120.3

10,041.2

6,384.4

4,489.6

564.5

22. Number of dwellings equivalents after applying discounts
and premiums to calculate taxbase
23. Ratio to band D
24. Total number of band D equivalents
(to 1 decimal place) (line 22 x line 23)

25. Number of band D equivalents of contributions in lieu (in respect of Class O exempt dwellings) in 2018-19 (to 1 decimal place)
26. Tax base (to 1 decimal place) (line 24 col 10 + line 25)

150,187.2
17.8
150,205.0

Page 135

CTB Form

CTB(October 2018)
34

Calculation of Council Tax Base
Please e-mail to : ctb.statistics@communities.gov.uk
Please enter your details after checking that you have selected the correct local authority name
Ver 1.1

Part 2
27. Number of dwellings equivalents after applying discounts
amd premiums to calculate tax base (Line 22)

26.25

44,318.50

66,707.75

35,036.00

16,120.25

8,215.50

4,420.00

2,693.75

282.25

177,820.3

28.Reduction in taxbase as a result of local council tax support
(b/fwd from CT Support tab)

10.21

13,843.99

10,625.28

2,788.43

559.18

141.79

35.58

10.15

0.00

28,014.6

29. Number of dwellings equivalents after applying discounts,
premiums and local tax support to calculate taxbase

16.0

30,474.5

56,082.5

32,247.6

15,561.1

8,073.7

4,384.4

2,683.6

282.3

149,805.6

30. Ratio to band D

5/9

6/9

7/9

8/9

9/9

11/9

13/9

15/9

18/9

31. Total number of band D equivalents after allowance for
council tax support (to 1 decimal place) ( line 29 x line 30)

8.9

20,316.3

43,619.7

28,664.5

15,561.1

9,867.9

6,333.1

4,472.7

564.5

32. Number of band D equivalents of contributions in lieu (in respect of Class O exempt dwellings) in 2018-19 (to 1 decimal place)(line 25)
33. Tax base after allowance for council tax support (to 1 decimal place) (line 31 col 10 + line 32)

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer

I certify that the information provided on this form is based on the dwellings shown in the Valuation List for my authority on 10 September 2018 and that it
accurately reflects information available to me about exemptions, demolished dwellings, disabled relief, discounts and premiums applicable on 1 October 2018 and,
where appropriate, has been completed in a manner consistent with the form for 2017.

Chief Financial Officer : ………………………………………………………………………………

Date : ………………………………………………………

Page 136

129,408.7
17.8
129,426.5

Agenda Item 12
Resources Scrutiny Commission

Resources Scrutiny
Commission
6th December 2018
Report of:

Denise Murray, Director of Finance

Title:

Collection Fund Surplus Deficit Report

Ward:

All

Officer Presenting Report: Tony Whitlock, Principal Accountant
Contact Telephone Number: 0117

Recommendation:
Members to consider the following Collection Fund Surplus Deficit Report – Cabinet Report and
Appendix A

Page 137

Decision Pathway – Report Template
PURPOSE: Key decision
MEETING: Cabinet
DATE: 04 December 2018
TITLE

Collection Fund Surplus/Deficit 2018/19

Ward(s)

City Wide

Author: Denise Murray

Job title: Director of Finance

Cabinet lead: Cllr Craig Cheney

Executive Director lead: Mike Jackson

Proposal origin: BCC Staff
Decision maker: Cabinet Member
Decision forum: Cabinet
Purpose of Report To recommend the estimated Collection Fund surplus / deficit as at 31st March 2019 for
determination by Full Council
Evidence Base: The Local Government Finance Act 1992(as amended) requires the Council to determine the
estimated surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund in respect of Council Tax by 15 January. This will enable the
precepting authorities (the Police and Crime Commissioner for Avon and Somerset and Avon Fire and Rescue) to take
into account their share of any surplus before finalising their precepts for 2019/20.
Similarly, following the introduction of the Business Rates Retention Scheme from April 2013, in accordance with the
Non-Domestic Rating (Rates Retention) Regulations 2013, the Council must determine the estimated surplus or
deficit on the Collection Fund in respect of Business Rates prior to 31 January 2019.
Cabinet Member / Officer Recommendations: The recommendation to Cabinet is
1. That an estimated surplus at 31 March 2019 on the Council Tax element of the Collection Fund of £2.1m be
declared for 2018/19 and shared between this Council, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Avon and
Somerset and the Avon Fire and Rescue Service in proportion to their 2018/19 precepts on the Collection
Fund.
2. That an estimated surplus at 31 March 2019 on the Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) element of the Collection
Fund of £62k be declared for 2018/19 and shared between this Council, Avon Fire and Rescue Service and the
West of England Combined Authority (WECA) in proportion to the appropriate year demands (For 2018/19:
Bristol 94%, WECA 4%, Avon Fire and Rescue Service 1%). There is also an adjusting figure due to the
Secretary of State of £744k.
Corporate Strategy alignment: N/A
City Benefits: N/A
Consultation Details: N/A
Revenue Cost

£ Nil

Source of Revenue Funding General Fund

Capital Cost

£ Nil

Source of Capital Funding

One off cost ☐

Version April-2018

Ongoing cost ☐

Saving Proposal ☐

N/A

Income generation proposal ☐

Page 138

1

Required information to be completed by Financial/Legal/ICT/ HR partners:
1. Finance Advice: The Bristol share of the estimated surplus on the Collection Fund for 2018/19 is £892k. This
contributes to the resources available to the fund the revenue budget in 2019/20 due to be considered by Full
Council on 19 February 2019.
Finance Business Partner: Tony Whitlock 12/10/18
2. Legal Advice: This report enables the Council to comply with the requirements of the Local Government Finance
Act 1992(as amended), to determine the estimated surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund in respect of Council Tax
prior to 15 January. This is so that the precepting authorities (the Police and Crime Commissioner for Avon and
Somerset and Avon Fire and Rescue) can take into account their share of any surplus before finalising their precepts
for 2019/20.
The report also enables the Council to comply with the requirements of the Non-Domestic Rating (Rates Retention)
Regulations 2013, to determine the estimated surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund in respect of Business Rates
prior to 31 January.
Legal Team Leader: Nancy Rollason 25/10/18
3. Implications on IT: There are no IT implications arising
IT Team Leader: Ian Gale 25/10/18
4. HR Advice: No HR implications
HR Partner: James Brereton 25/10/18
EDM Sign-off
Cabinet Member sign-off
CLB Sign-off
For Key Decisions - Mayor’s
Office sign-off

Mike Jackson
Cllr Craig Cheney
Mike Jackson
Mayor

17/10/18
29/10/18
30/10/18
29/10/18

Appendix A – Further essential background / detail on the proposal

YES

Appendix B – Details of consultation carried out - internal and external

YES

Appendix C – Summary of any engagement with scrutiny

NO

Appendix D – Risk assessment

NO

Appendix E – Equalities screening / impact assessment of

NO

Appendix F – Eco-impact screening/ impact assessment of proposal

NO

Appendix G – Financial Advice

NO

Appendix H – Legal Advice

NO

Appendix I – Combined Background papers

N/A

Appendix J – Exempt Information

NO

Appendix K – HR advice

NO

Appendix L – ICT

NO

Version April-2018

Page 139

2

The proposal:
1.

APPENDIX A

The Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended) requires the Council to determine the
estimated surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund in respect of Council Tax by 15 January. This
will enable the precepting authorities (the Police and Crime Commissioner for Avon and
Somerset and Avon Fire and Rescue) to take into account their share of any surplus or deficit
before finalising their precepts for 2019/20.
Similarly, following the introduction of the Business Rates Retention Scheme from April 2013,
in accordance with the Non-Domestic Rating (Rates Retention) Regulations 2013, the Council
must determine the estimated surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund in respect of Business
Rates prior to 31 January.

2.

Income from Council Tax and Business Rates are fixed at the start of each financial year. Any
variations from this are realised through the Collection Fund and are distributed in the following
two financial years (based on estimated in the following year and actuals in the subsequent
year.) The Council is required by statute to maintain a Collection Fund separate from the
General Fund. The Collection Fund accounts independently for:


Income into the Fund: the Fund is credited with the amount of receipts of Council
Tax and (Non Domestic Rates) NDR it collects.



Payments out of the Fund: in relation to Council Tax payments that are made to the
Council and the two major precepting authorities (Avon and Somerset Police and
Crime Commissioner and Avon Fire and Rescue ). In relation to NDR payments that
are made to the Council, the Secretary of State, Avon Fire and Rescue Service and
WECA.

2018/19 Estimated Surplus for Council Tax
3.

The forecast of the Council Tax Collection Fund Balance for the year ending 31 March 2019 is an
estimated surplus of £2.1m. After accounting for savings of £300k arising from anti-fraud
initiatives carried out during the year a balanced position is anticipated for 2018/19. The
surplus of £1.8m to be distributed in 2019/20 therefore primarily relates to balances carried
forward from 2017/18.

4.

The surplus in 2017/18 is due to a number of factors. There was a £1.1m reduction in losses on
collection along with an associated reduction in the year-end contribution to the bad debt
provision. The net yield, after discounts and exemptions saw an increase of £700k. This
includes income of £1.6m in respect of new chargeable properties added to the valuation list in
addition to those estimated in the 2017/18 Council Tax Base Report. However discounts and
exemptions increased by £2.2m over and above those originally estimated, of which around
£1.7m related to students. In line with previous trends there was a reduction in benefits
awarded through the Council Tax Reduction Scheme of £1.3m.

5.

Although a balanced position after savings is estimated for 2018/19 there are a number of
significant variations. Since calculating the Council Tax Base for 18/19 (in October 2017), there
has been a very small increase in gross yield of around £200k.
1 140
Page

6.

In addition, the value of benefits awarded through the Council Tax Support Scheme has
continued to fall from an estimate of £40.3m at the beginning of the year to an anticipated
outturn position of £39m. This is following a trend identified over the last few years. The table
shows the split between the budgeted and likely actual cost of the scheme split between
working age and pensioner claimants. This results in a reduction of £1.3m.

Council Tax Base Estimate for 2018/19
Estimated Ouuturn 2018/19
Difference
Percentage Reduction

7.

Value of benefits claimed
Working Age Pensioner
Total
£m
£m
£m
26,522
13,759
40,281
26,077
12,923
39,000
445
836
1,281
1.68%
6.08%

The table below shows the number of pensioner and working age claimants recorded each year
on the CTB return since October 2014.

Pensioners
Working Age
Total

October
2014
11,663
20,949
32,612

October
2015
11,019
20,163
31,182

October
2016
10,054
19,447
29,501

October
2017
9,594
19,100
28,694

October
2018
9,077
18,938
28,015

8.

The table above shows that the reduction in tax base due to pensioner claimants has fallen by
2,586 , or 22.2% since 2014, primarily because pensioner benefit income is rising more quickly
than the cost of living (“triple lock”), while the number of working age claimants has reduced by
2,011 or 9.6% over the same period of time. This is in line with previously reported trends and
therefore has been reflected in the calculation of the Tax Base.

9.

Conversely, discounts and exemptions have also increased by £2.1m since the original tax base
estimate in October 2017. Student exemptions are estimated to have increased by £1.8m and
other discounts by £300k over the original budgeted for 2018/19.

10.

Losses on collection continue to fall, with an estimated reduction in losses of £1.0m in 2018/19.
This is in line with trends over the last few years.

11.

The estimated surplus is distributed to the major precepting authorities in proportion to the
current year’s demands and precepts on the Collection Fund. A detailed determination of the
estimated Council Tax Collection Fund surplus for 2018/19 is shown in Appendix A and the
allocation of the estimated deficit to each of the major precepting authorities is summarised
below:
£'000
Bristol City Council (net of £300k saving)
Avon and Somerset Police and Crime Commissioner
Avon Fire and Rescue

2 141
Page

1,549
217
82
1,848

2018/19 Estimated Surplus for Non-Domestic Rates (NDR)
12.

The Government introduced the first 100% pilot schemes in 2017/18. Only authorities with
signed devolution deals were eligible to participate in a pilot: the pilot for the West of England
(WoE) therefore includes Bath & North East Somerset Council (B&NES), Bristol City Council
(BCC), South Gloucestershire Council (SGC) and the West of England Combined Authority
(WECA). The 100% pilot gives the WoE the opportunity to retain 100% of any business rates
growth until the next national reset of the business rates system in 2020/21.

13.

In line with the Government’s stated intention for the reforms to the Business Rate Retention
system, authorities participating in a pilot will not have to pay a Levy on growth above their
Retained Income target and will retain an increased Local Share of Non-Domestic Rating
Income. Various grants, including Revenue Support Grant are ‘rolled in’ to the pilot, with the
funding source being switched from grant to the Business Rates retained under the pilot.
Through a system of tariffs and top-ups the creation of the pilot is fiscally neutral at baseline
but authorities gain from retaining 100% of any above baseline growth.

14.

Any estimated surplus/deficit is distributed in accordance with the 100% Business Rates
Retention Pilot Agreement between the West of England authorities, so 94% Bristol City
Council, 4% WECA and 1% Avon Fire and Rescue. The forecast of the Non-Domestic Rates
Collection Fund Balance for the year ending 31 March 2019 is an estimated surplus of £62k.

15.

The detailed determination of the estimated NDR Collection Fund deficit for 2017/18 is shown
in Appendix B and the allocation of the estimated deficit to the relevant precepting authorities
is summarised in the table below.

£'000
(87)
(9)
34
(62)

Bristol City Council
Avon Fire and Rescue
West of England Combined Authority

This is split between current and prior years in the table below
Accumulated (surplus)/deficit brought forward
Distribution of prior years estmated surplus
Prior year adjustment
Estimated in-year (surplus)/deficit

16.

£'000
13,725
(13,976)
(558)
747
(62)

The business rates income which each billing authority collects is determined by reference to
local rating lists maintained by the Valuation Office Agency. These lists are subject to variation
between revaluations as a result of physical changes (either to the property or the locality) and
appeals. The amount of business rates income collected by billing authorities therefore varies
year on year. The major factors giving rise to changes include:

3 142
Page

 Reductions to the rateable value of business properties arising from appeals. Once settled
the appeal may be backdated resulting in the Council having to refund several years rates
from a single year’s income. Under the business rates Pilot the risk to the Council of these
large appeals is 94% of the loss.
 Changes in the rateable values of very large business properties such as power stations or
hospitals can have a material effect.
 Business properties switching between rating lists. Large business properties which cross
boundaries, such as ports, appear in the list which contains the largest area. Changes in
these properties could lead to large amounts of rateable value switching from one list to
another. Similarly locally rated business with infrastructure covering large areas of the
Country, for example telecommunication companies, may apply to switch to the national
list.
17.

Properties facing large rating increases are entitled to transitional relief to phase in these
increases over a number of years. This relief is fully funded by the Government. In the event of
a successful appeal resulting in a significant RV reduction, the transitional relief awarded is
clawed back by netting off the refund. The relief is then paid back to the Government at the
end of the financial year via the NNDR3 return.

18.

The Council is required to provide for potential appeals from its business rates income.
Calculations for the provision are based upon the Valuation Office Agency ‘Settled and
Outstanding” proposals at end March reports. These reports show all appeals that have been
lodged for each authority against the 2017 valuation listing along with remaining appeals
outstanding on the 2010 list, including those which were agreed, dismissed, withdrawn or are
still outstanding. This list is analysed into “types” of appeal. The average success rate and the
percentage reduction in rateable value for those appeals which were successful is considered
along with the potential for the backdating of any appeals decisions and the estimated annual
cost was then adjusted by the ratings multiplier for the relevant year. Local intelligence is used
alongside statistical modelling to inform decision making.

19.

As the amounts involved can be significant the Council takes a very prudent approach when
calculating any likely impact of an appeal. As at the end of 2017/18 the appeals provision stood
at £25.2m. Officers have determined that an estimated additional contribution to the provision
of £4.0m will be required at the end of 2018/19. This is in line with Government
recommendations (4.7% of net rates) and has been built into the estimates in this report.
However the number of appeals against the 2010 list, has as expected, seen a significant
decline, reducing the year on year increase into the provision. The provision is reviewed against
valuation lists on a quarterly basis and is compared to that of both our nearest neighbours and
similar sized authorities nationally.

20.

It should be noted that volatility in Appeals outcomes is an on-going risk of the business rates
retention system which does introduce uncertainty in forecasting Collection Fund performance.
However, the most significant risk that remains to the generation of gains under the pilot is the
NHS/Foundation Trust applications for Charitable Relief. A claim has been made by 20
Foundation Trusts against 48 billing authorities. Bristol City Council is not one of these
4 143
Page

however, depending on how the result of the case, the outcome may very well affect the
Council. The estimated cost to BCC if successful, including backdated awards, is of the order of
£38.3m.
21.

Summary of Council Share of Collection Fund Surplus
The total share of the collection fund due to the Council in 2019/20 is as follows.

Council Tax
NNDR
Prior Year Adjustment
BCC Share

£'000
1,549
87
(744)
892

Appendix B - Consultation and scrutiny input:
a.

Internal consultation:
Head of Revenues - Resources

b.

External consultation:
Not Applicable

Appendix D - Risk assessment:
There are a number of risks associated with estimating the amount of Council Tax and Business Rates
collected during the year. These include;


Reductions to the rateable value of business properties arising from appeals. Once settled the
Council may have to settle several years business rates from a single year’s income. This is a
significant financial risk as the Council is now required to fund 94% of any award. Furthermore
the Government have yet to set out clear proposals as to how the appeals process will be dealt
with going forward.



Changes to the rateable values of very large business properties such as power stations or
hospitals can have a material effect on business rate collection.



Business Properties switching between rating lists. This can include large cross boundary
properties switching from one list to another or joining the central list.



Difficulty in estimating Council Tax discounts and exemptions, including the take-up of the
Council Tax Support Scheme.



Effect of Brexit on the current buoyant property market in Bristol

Appendices:
Appendix I – Estimated Council Tax Collection Fund Account 2018/19
Appendix II – Estimated Non-Domestic Rates Collection Fund Account 2018/19
Access to information (background papers):
5 144
Page

Working papers held in Corporate Finance
Council Tax Collection Fund Adjustment Account
2016/17
Actual

APPENDIX I
2017/18
Estimate as per
Jan 17
Surplus/Deficit
Report
£'000

£'000

2017/18
Actual

2018/19
Estimated
Outturn

£'000

£'000

Income
(214,094)

Council Tax Income

(226,521)

(227,200)

(240,869)

192,162
22,559
8,596

192,162
22,559
8,596

204,540
24,381
8,976

3,398

2,268

2,632

226,715

225,585

240,529

194

(1,615)

(340)

(4,761)
4,604
194
37

(4,761)
4,604
(1,615)
(1,772)

(1,772)
(37)
(340)
(2,149)

32
4
1
37

(1,525)
(179)
(68)
(1,772)

(1,849)
(217)
(83)
(2,149)

Expenditure
Precepts
178,403 Bristol City Council
21,560 Police
8,216 Fire
Bad and Doubtful Debts
2,132 Write Offs
210,311 Total Expenditure
(3,783)

(Surplus)/Deficit for the year

(5,406) Accumulated (surplus)/deficit Bfwd
4,428 Distribution of prior years estimated surplus
(3,783) (Surplus)/Deficit for the year
(4,761)
Distribution of estumated Collection Fund deficit:
(4,077) Bristol City Council
(495) Police
(189) Fire
(4,761)

6 145
Page

Business Rates Collection Fund Adjustment Account

APPENDIX II

2016/17
Actual

2017/18
Estimate as
per
surplus/deficit
report Jan 17
£'000

£'000

2017/18
Actual

2018/19
Estimated
Outturn

£'000

£'000

Income
(219,806) Business rates income
6,546 Transitional Surcharge

(227,718)
6,410

(219,119)
6,050

(223,749)
3,533

0
192,396
2,047
10,234
4,432

0
192,396
2,047
10,234
3,259

0
197,400
2,100
10,500
4,417

716

716

716

Bad and Doubbtful debts
2,509 Write offs

1,900

1,342

1,810

Appeals losses and provision
8,008 Increase/(decrease) in appeals provision

9,300

2,541

4,020

221,025

212,535

220,963

(283)

(534)

747

1,086
13,173

1,086
13,173

(283)
13,976

(534)
13,725

13,725
(13,976)
(558)
747
(62)

0
13,137
699
140
13,976

0
12,902
686
137
13,725

0
(87)
(9)
34
(62)

108,137
105,974
2,163
5,348

Expenditure
Payments to Preceptors
Central Government
Bristol City Council
Avon Fire
WECA
Disregarded amounts

722 Cost of collection allowance

232,861 Total Expenditure
19,601 (Surplus)/Deficit for the year
Accumulated (surplus)/deficit
Accumulated (surplus)/deficit BFwd
Distribution of prior year estimated (surplus)/deficit
Prior Year Adjustments
19,601 (Surplus)/deficit for the year
1,086

(2,586)
(15,929)

543
532
11
0
1,086

Distribution of estimated collection fund deficit
Central Government
Bristol City Council
Avon Fire and Rescue
WECA

7 146
Page

Agenda Item 13
Decision Pathway – Report Template
PURPOSE: For reference
MEETING: Resources Scrutiny Commission
DATE: 06 December 2018
.

TITLE

Quarterly Performance Progress Report (Quarter 2 2018/19)

Ward(s)

All wards

Author: Mark Wakefield

Job title: Service Manager – Insight, Performance & Intelligence

Cabinet lead: Cllr Cheney

Executive Director lead: Mike Jackson

Proposal origin: BCC Staff
Decision maker: Officer
Decision forum: Officer Meeting
Timescales: Performance is reported as part of quarterly governance process as soon as possible after gathering all
the necessary data. This report is designed to ensure the scrutiny commission is appraised on quarterly performance
in line with the directorate leadership team and cabinet members in the relevant directorate.
Purpose of Report:
1) To brief the Scrutiny Commission on the progress made against their Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for Q2
2018/19 (Appendix A1).
2) To enable the Scrutiny Commission to hold the executive to account using a common suite of performance
indicators for the directorate.
Evidence Base: Background
The Q2 performance progress report (Appendix A1) is illustrated in a new consistent and standardised format to
reflect the 2018/23 Corporate Plan (themes and key commitments) and is ordered by quarterly PIs followed by
annual PIs. This is in line with the new approach agreed by Statutory & Policy Board (SPB) on 10th May.
Further to the scrutiny meeting on 24th September where the Q1 progress report was discussed, an additional one
page summary has been added to the front of the progress report to guide the commission in the direction of a
shortened prioritised set of PI’s on which to focus scrutiny.
In terms of performance in Q2 for the directorate, of note is the following:
Performance summary:
Taking the total available KPI results this quarter:
 40.5% of those with established targets are performing on or above target and,
 Nearly two thirds (62.5%) of those with a direct comparison from 12 months ago have improved.
Service Areas:
Digital Transformation:
 The critical security issues found during the network health check in June have not been fixed due to higher
priority work, however they remain an urgent priority
 The average time taken to resolve both Priority 1 and Priority 2 incidents in the year to date is well above target
and an improvement on the same period the previous year.
Finance:
 Council tax collection is just below target but anticipated to improve, and business rates collection are ahead of

Version April‐2018

Page 147

1



target
The rolling year debt collection rate at 91.41% is above target due to a payment of £1.9m which was outstanding
from May.

Legal and Democratic Services:
 The % of target hours recorded on all legal work for in‐house and external clients ("Chargeable hours") is above
target and an improvement on the same period last year
 The % of deaths registered within 5 working days remains well below target but has shown improvement over
the last quarter, with measures in place to improve further.
Workforce & Change:
 Sickness continues to increase and is at its highest level since 2010
 Staff turnover is showing positive trends in retention
Cabinet Member / Officer Recommendations: That the performance report be noted, and scrutiny members and
directors discuss progress, and measures to address performance issues are considered and implemented by relevant
services.
Corporate Strategy alignment: All BCP PIs contained within Appendix A1 are designed to demonstrate our progress
towards the Corporate Strategy (2018/23). Directorate KPIs are designed to monitor progress at a more granular level
and to pick up other directorate priorities.
City Benefits: Understanding whether BCC is delivering outcomes for the citizens and city ensures organisational
effort can be focussed on benefit realisation.
Consultation Details: Performance progress has been presented to the relevant directorate management team and
cabinet leads prior to the production of this report.
Revenue Cost

£0

Source of Revenue Funding Insert specific service budget

Capital Cost

£0

Source of Capital Funding

One off cost ☐

Ongoing cost ☐

Saving Proposal ☐

e.g. grant/ prudential borrowing etc.

Income generation proposal ☐

Required information to be completed by Financial/Legal/ICT/ HR partners:
1. Finance Advice: n/a
Finance Business Partner: n/a
2. Legal Advice: n/a
Legal Team Leader: n/a
3. Implications on IT: n/a
IT Team Leader: n/a
4. HR Advice: n/a
HR Partner: n/a
EDM Sign‐off
Cabinet Member sign‐off
CLB Sign‐off
For Key Decisions ‐ Mayor’s
Office sign‐off

Resources EDM
Cllr Cheney
[name]
[name]

[date]
[date]

Appendix A – Further essential background / detail on the proposal
Appendix A1:
Version April‐2018

YES

Performance Progress Update (Q2 2018/19)

Page 148

2

Appendix B – Details of consultation carried out ‐ internal and external

NO

Appendix C – Summary of any engagement with scrutiny

NO

Appendix D – Risk assessment

NO

Appendix E – Equalities screening / impact assessment of proposal

NO

Appendix F – Eco‐impact screening/ impact assessment of proposal

NO

Appendix G – Financial Advice

NO

Appendix H – Legal Advice

NO

Appendix I – Combined Background papers

NO

Appendix J – Exempt Information

NO

Appendix K – HR advice

NO

Appendix L – ICT

NO

Version April‐2018

Page 149

3

APPENDIX A1

RESOURCES Directorate – Q2 2018/19 Performance Summary
FINANCE

WORKFORCE & CHANGE
Title
.BCP522: Reduce the average number of working days lost to sickness
(BCC)

Title
.BCP501a: Projected forecast outturn as a percentage of approved
budget (BCC)

Target status

.BCP501b: Forecast level of reserves (BCC)

On

.BCP523: Maintain staff turnover

.BCP502: Increase the percentage of invoices paid on time (BCC)

Well below

.BCP503: Increase the percentage of Council Tax collected

Below

.BCP504: Increase the percentage of non‐domestic rates collected

Above

.BCP524: Increase % employees starting their 'My Performance' 18/19
review form (BCC)
.BCP527: Increase the % of employees that live in the 10% most
deprived areas

DRE357b: Level (%) of rolling year debt collected (BCC)

Above

DRE421: Level of Internal Audit recommendation implementation (Fully
/ Partial)

Below

DRE619: Average time taken to process new Housing Benefit claims

Below

Below

DRE385: Agency spend as % of total salary bill (Resources)

Target status
Well below
On
Well below
No Target
Well below

Page 150

OVERALL SUMMARY:
38.9% (7) PI’s On / Above target
61.1% (11) PI’s Below target

DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION

LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES
Title
DRE129a: % of target hours recorded on all legal work for in‐house and
external clients ("Chargeable hours")

Target status

Title

Target status

DRE111: Percentage "first call fix" on the ICT Service Desk

Well below

DRE165: Average time taken to resolve a Priority 1 incident

Well above

DRE260: % of births registered within 42 days

Below

DRE183: Number of transactions performed online on BCC website

Well above

DRE261: % of deaths registered within 5 working days

Well below

Above

APPENDIX A1

Resources Scrutiny Commission ‐ 2nd Quarter Performance Progress Report (1 April '18 ‐ 30 Sept '18) ‐ Quarterly PIs
Corp Plan
KC ref

Code

Title

2017/18
Outturn

2018/19
Target

Q1 Progress

Q2 Progress

Comparison
over last 12
months

Responsible
Manager

Management Notes

Resources ‐ Digital Transformation
Performance is below the 60% target but incident volumes are currently running at an
average of 10% above target and service requests are at an average of 16% above target.
Key activities to address performance include:

Page 151

WOP1

DRE111 Percentage "first call fix" on the ICT Service Desk

WOP2

DRE150

WOP2

DRE151

WOP2



50.50%

60.00%

45.20%

48.00%

Number of critical security issues found during network
health checks

5

0

6

6

Matthew King

% of critical security issues found during network health
check fixed within 3 months

n/a

100%

n/a

0%

Matthew King

DRE165 Average time taken to resolve a Priority 1 incident

4.6 hrs

4.0 hrs

3.4 hrs

2.7 hrs



Ian Gale

WOP2

DRE166 Average time taken to resolve a Priority 2 incident

4.5 hrs

8.0 hrs

3.8 hrs

3.6 hrs



Ian Gale

WOP2

DRE183 Number of transactions performed online on BCC website

228,668

200,000

69,385

156,532



Tracy Dodds

Ian Gale

1) Recruit 2 new permanent colleagues – this will stabilise the team and enable consistent
performance to be achieved and maintained. Pay Panel Requests have been approved and
recruiting is underway.
2) Apply focussed Problem Management to;
• Understand Incident volumes and significant trends – high volume Incident types, and
then allocate resources to develop/implement permanent resolutions to the root causes of
those issues – reduce volume increase fix rate.
• Review Service Request volumes/categories to understand demand being so high against
target (ensure Directorates understand any cost identified against hardware or software),
and then assess results against target and understand these volumes with business input as
were this volume acceptable additional resource may be required to ensure acceptable
performance.
Network Health Test carried out in June 2018 (reported last quarter) and identified 6 critical
security issues. Plans are in place to deal with Critical issues identified previously as an
urgent priority.
An in‐depth review of IT Security arrangements is being commissioned. In the meantime,
resources are focussed only on the remediation work (Server 2003 decommissioning)
essential to gain Public Services Network accreditation.
Q1‐Q2 = 12 incidents. P1 Resolution performance (at 2.7 hrs) well within target of 4 hours.
This target represents general industry standard for Priority 1 incidents.
Q1‐Q2 = 109 incidents. P2 Resolution performance (at 3.6 hrs) well within target of 8 hours.
This target represents general industry standard for Priority 2 incidents.
An increase of 56% compared to Q12 in 2017/18 equal to an additional 56,650 transactions.

Resources ‐ Finance
Projected forecast outturn as a percentage of approved
budget (BCC)

WOP4

.BCP501a

WOP4

.BCP501b Forecast level of reserves (BCC)

n/a

100.00%

102.20%

100.10%

5.47%

5‐6%

5.62%

5.53%

This represents a forecast outturn of £0.3m budget overspend, however plans are in place to
bring this down to zero overspend by the 31st March 2019. The council continues to face
significant financial pressures particularly with regards to the cost of adult social care, which
Chris Holme,
is forecasting a £11.1m overspend, and education a £1.6m overspend due to loss of
Denise Murray
education services grant and home to school transport demand. There are mitigations
elsewhere and the figures incorporate the application of additional section 31 grant and use
of contingencies.
Chris Holme, Target = 5 ‐ 6%. This represents the general reserve of £20m expressed as a percentage of
Denise Murray the net revenue budget (£361.6m).

Corp Plan
KC ref

WOP4

WOP4

Code

Title

.BCP502 Increase the percentage of invoices paid on time (BCC)

.BCP503 Increase the percentage of Council Tax collected

Page 152

WOP4

.BCP504 Increase the percentage of non‐domestic rates collected

WOP4

Reduction during the year in opening balances of general
DRE356
debtors debt (BCC)

WOP4

DRE357a Value of rolling year debt to be collected (BCC)

WOP4

DRE357b Level (%) of rolling year debt collected (BCC)

WOP4

DRE357c Total uncollected rolling year debt (BCC)

2017/18
Outturn

78.50%

96.79%

97.93%

66.78%

2018/19
Target

96.00%

96.80%

98.20%

90.00%

£127,166,076
91.54%

Q1 Progress

81.20%

28.23%

28.03%

49.16%

Q2 Progress

81.00%

55.11%

57.01%

57.38%

£10,761,120








Responsible
Manager

Management Notes

Q1‐2 = 81.0%. (RE=80.8%, CO=78.3%, ACE=78.3%, G&R=82.3%). 19.0% of invoices were paid
late across the organisation equal to 10,963 invoices. We aim to reach the 96% target by the
end of the financial year by a series of ongoing initiatives which should demonstrate
ongoing improvement throughout the year. These include:
1) Improve reporting framework with analysis of reasons for late payments
Denise Murray 2) Regular report/update to EDMs ‐ incl task time reporting
3) Review work‐flow arrangements
4) Simplification of guidance to staff
5) Improve compliance arrangements
6) Targeted interventions in problem areas
7) Review facility for disputed indicator

Martin Smith

Target = 55.3%. Council Tax collection for September shows as 0.19% below target,
equivalent to a deficit of £456k.The changes in debit, after billing, fluctuate according to
cycles and in particular the end of the student academic year. The deficit this month can be
attributed to a lower increase in the number of exemptions awarded than previously
anticipated. This will correct itself over the coming months.

Martin Smith

Target = 55.93%. Business Rates collection for September 2018 shows as 1% ahead of target,
equivalent to an excess of £2.5m. The changes in debit, after billing, have fluctuated as a
result of changes in rateable value by the Valuation Office Agency and the award in reliefs
(for example Enterprise Zone and temporary reliefs). As a result of these changes the profile
has been changed for the months October to March.

Q2 target = 75%. The opening balance as at 1st April of general debtors debt was £34.4m.
Denise Murray As at 30th September, 57.38% of debt has been recovered (£19.7m), an increase on the
same period last year (55.23%).

87.37%

91.41%




£16,846,583

£11,056,715



Denise Murray

£133,405,284 £128,725,795
90.00%

Comparison
over last 12
months

Denise Murray
Denise Murray

(September) Of the invoices over £1m previously reported the invoice issued to NHS Bristol
CCG in May 2018 for £1,962,976.00 has been paid.

WOP4

DRE358 % P2P invoices paid with a retrospective order (Resources)

24.60%

15.00%

30.30%

25.60%



During Q1‐2, 1,236 invoices were paid with a retrospective order in Resources, broken down
as follows: Legal & DS: 507, ICT: 365, Workforce & Change: 251, Finance: 52, P&S: 50,
Denise Murray Capital: 11. 547 of the 1,236 RO invoices (44%) were paid late and is one of the main factors
in failing to achieve the payment target. In terms of RO's, high volume suppliers include
Vodafone (185), ITEC (56), Cyclescheme (52) & Pegasus Catering (50).

WOP4

DRE359 % purchasing completed without a PO number (Resources)

13.60%

0.00%

13.30%

15.70%



Denise Murray

WOP4

DRE420 Delivery of the Internal Audit plan to at least draft stage

n/a

90.00%

10.00%

30.00%

WOP4

DRE421

69.00%

90.00%

84.00%

84.00%

WOP4

DRE619 Average time taken to process new Housing Benefit claims

26.99 days

22.00 days

23.61 days

WOP4

DRE620

Average time taken to process changes to existing Housing
Benefit claims

15.72 days

9.00 days

9.39 days

Level of Internal Audit recommendation implementation
(Fully / Partial)

During Q1‐2, 758 invoices were paid without a PO number in Resources, this is broken down
as follows: ICT: 446, Finance: 299, Legal and DS: 11 and HR, Workplace & Org Design 2.

Jonathan Idle

Q2 target = 35%. The service remains under pressure due to reduced available resources
and a high volume of grant certifications required in the first half of the year, however
throughput is improving as demonstrated by the increased percentage of plan coverage.



Jonathan Idle

While the implementation rate remains below target, work continues to be directed to
supporting services to implement improvements as timely as possible. Additional support
from EDMs' has also driven implementation forward.

22.11 days



Graham Clapp Q1‐2 = 22.11 days (average time taken to process new housing benefit claims)

10.31 days



Graham Clapp

Q1‐2 = 10.31 days (average time taken to process changes to existing housing benefit
claims).

Corp Plan
KC ref

Code

Title

2017/18
Outturn

2018/19
Target

Q1 Progress

Q2 Progress

Comparison
over last 12
months

£591,712

£526,970

£84,780

£184,074



22.20%

17.00%

21.00%

22.10%

93.89%

100.00%

101.40%

102.63%

1

MI only

0

2

£11,367

MI only

£0

£0

74

MI only

189

497

£40,616.32

MI only

£51,546.00

£107,261.00

Responsible
Manager

Management Notes

Resources ‐ Legal and Democratic Services
WOP1

DRE212 Legal Services spend on external barristers

WOP1

DRE213 Legal Services agency spend as % of total salary bill

WOP2

DRE129a

WOP2

% of target hours recorded on all legal work for in‐house and
external clients ("Chargeable hours")
Number of court claims in which BCC has costs awarded
DRE214a
against it

Page 153







Jane Johnson,
Nancy Rollason
Jane Johnson,
Nancy Rollason
Jane Johnson,
Nancy Rollason
Jane Johnson,
Nancy Rollason
Jane Johnson,
Nancy Rollason
Jane Johnson,
Nancy Rollason
Jane Johnson,
Nancy Rollason



Jane Johnson,
Q2 target = £646,160. These figures are for all income, not just external income.
Nancy Rollason

Q2 target = £263,485 Q1 & Q2: CP: £123,983.60 LRC: £60,090.10

Total cost awards against the council £73525.00 not chargeable to the Legal Budget

WOP2

DRE214b Total sum of costs awarded against BCC

WOP2

DRE215a

WOP2

DRE215b Total sum of costs awarded in favour of BCC

WOP2

DRE260 % of births registered within 42 days

97.00%

98.00%

97.40%

97.90%

WOP2

DRE261 % of deaths registered within 5 working days

65.00%

90.00%

68.00%

74.00%

WOP4

DRE211 Legal Services ‐ Income vs Target

£1,213,631

£1,292,320

£360,000

£412,773

95.00%

80.00%

95.00%

87.50%



14.60%

12.50%

15.50%

14.20%



Mark Jefferson, Target = 10‐15%. There has been a positive trend in retention over the last 18 months and
Mark Williams shows significant improvement compared to the same period last year (18.6%).

6.23

8

6.21

6.08



There is now a larger cohort for Resources following the transition of Revenues and Benefits
Mark Jefferson,
from Communities, which may impact upon sickness absence. Resources will further
Mark Williams
increase as the restructure is confirmed and additional teams move across.



During Q1‐Q2 10.3% of salary costs can be attributed to agency costs in Resources,
equivalent to £2.15m. Most costs are a result of dealing with short term transformation
Mark Jefferson,
projects where it wouldn’t be practical to appoint salaried staff. Agency costs for BCC as a
Mark Williams
whole were 4.8% (£5.0m). Other directorates performed as follows: CO 2.7%, ACE 2.2%,
G&R 6% Agency costs have reduced since the contract with Guidant.



During Q1‐Q2 0.1% of salary costs can be attributed to overtime in Resources, equivalent to
Mark Jefferson,
£15k. Overtime costs for BCC as a whole were 0.6% (£600k). Other directorates performed
Mark Williams
as follows: CO 1.1%, ACE 0.4%, G&R 0.6%

Number of court claims in which BCC has costs awarded in its
favour

Q1 189
Q2 308
Q1 £51,546
Q2 £55,715
In April ‐ September 5,649 Births were registered within the required 42 day period ‐
Yvonne Dawes,
compliance 97.86.% 919 in September 2018 ‐ 19 exceptions therefore 97.93% compliance
Elizabeth
in December Measures have been put in place to remind parents to register the birth within
Matthews
six weeks.
No of deaths registered in April ‐ September with a Medical Certificate of Cause of Death
(MCCD) =1512,
1124(74%) were registered within 5 working days
Yvonne Dawes,
388(26%) were NOT registered within 5 working days
Elizabeth
Matthews
A variety of measures are being implemented to improve performance including turning off
the on line system that allows the public to book outside the statutory timeframe and
working closely with hospital bereavement services.

Resources ‐ Policy & Strategy
WOP2

DRE411 Communication Campaign effectiveness (%)

Saskia
Konynenburg

Aggregated total based on achievement of SMART objectives for the following campaigns:
Flood exhibition (met 3 objectives of 4); Let's Ride (met 4 out of 4); Rough Sleeping (met 3
out of 4); Litter Critters (met 4 out of 4).

Resources ‐ Workforce & Change
WOP1

.BCP523 Maintain staff turnover

WOP1

DRE134a

WOP1

WOP1

Number of working days lost due to sickness absence
(Resources)

DRE385 Agency spend as % of total salary bill (Resources)

DRE386 Overtime spend as % of total salary bill (Resources)

9.50%

0.10%

5.00%

0.50%

8.40%

0.10%

10.30%

0.10%

Corp Plan
KC ref

WOP2

Code

.BCP524

Title

Increase % employees starting their 'My Performance' 18/19
review form (BCC)

Reduce the average number of working days lost to sickness
(BCC)

Page 154

WOP3

.BCP522

WOP3

Increase the % of employees that live in the 10% most
.BCP527
deprived areas

WOP3

DRE240

WOP3

WOP3

2017/18
Outturn

n/a

2018/19
Target

100%

Q1 Progress

34%

Comparison
over last 12
months

46%

9.26 days

Responsible
Manager

Officer Notes

This PI previously recorded the % of employees completing their 17/18 review form, which
included setting 18/19 objectives. As the system was closed down for 17/18 it has been
Mark Jefferson,
updated to measure the % of employees starting their 18/19 review form. As at 17th
Mark Williams
October, 45.93% of employees had started their 18/19 review form, broken down as
follows: RE=48%, CO=71%, G&R=58%, ACE=18%.



9.10 days

8.00 days

6.20%

Establish
benchmark

6.50%

6.40%

‐1.27%

0.00%

‐0.30%

‐0.40%



DRE241 Difference between progression rate of Women and Men

‐0.14%

0.00%

3.30%

0.10%



DRE242 Percentage of top earners who are women

60.70%

60.37%

57.26%

57.30%



Difference between progression rate of BME and non‐BME
employee

9.25 days

Q2 Progress

Sickness is at its highest level since 2010. The directorate breakdown is as follows: RE 6.08
days, CO 10.68 days, ACE 10.48 days, G&R 6.7 days.
Workforce wellbeing is a key priority in the new HR organisational improvement plan. A new
Occupational Health manager starts work in November to provide further support to the
plan. A number of planned actions have been developed to improve the number of working
Mark Jefferson, days lost due to absence including;
Mark Williams 1) Introduction of improved sickness absence trigger reporting
2) New enhanced employee assistance programme
3) Mental health and first aid training
4) Regular case management
5) Proactive targeted support for managers and systematic performance reviews
6) Review of Occupational health supplier.
6.42% = 403 employees living in the 10% most deprived areas / 6274 headcount as at 30
Mark Jefferson, September 2018. Work is ongoing to review the pay model for BG1‐15, which is being
Mark Williams developed in consultation with the Unions. Findings will be presented to the HR committee
in November.
BME progression rate = 1.44%
Mark Jefferson, Non‐BME progression rate = 1.80%
Mark Williams BME promotions = 10
Non‐BME promotions = 90
Female progression rate = 1.91%
Mark Jefferson, Male progression rate = 1.76%
Mark Williams Female promotions = 72
Male promotions = 44
Mark Jefferson, 208 females
Mark Williams 155 males

Resources EDM ‐ 2nd Quarter Performance Progress Report (1 April '18 ‐ 30 Sept '18) ‐ [Annual PIs]
Corp Plan
KC ref

Code

Title

2017/18
Outturn

2018/19
Target

Q1 Progress

Q2 Progress

Comparison
over last 12
months

Responsible
Manager

Officer Notes

Martyn
Wordsworth

We are currently confident that the target will be achieved. A number of practical steps have
been taken to maximise opportunities for SMEs in the supply chain such as:
• early market engagement (and promoting these opportunities to SMEs through our E‐
procurement solution);
• encouraging SMEs to network with prospective bidders (where they can't/won't bid
independently);
• streamlining the bidding process (to ensure is proportionate to the value and risk of the
contract);
• using frameworks and DPSs (where appropriate – allowing bidders to bid for smaller
contracts);
• lotting contracts (where possible);
• reducing the turnover cap (applicable to the assessment of financial standing/risk).

Resources ‐ Finance

WOP4

WOP4
WOP4

.BCP505

Increase the percentage of procurement spend with 'Small
and Medium sized Enterprises' (SME's)

Delivery of Audit Opinion to Management, Audit Committee
in time to inform the AGS
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) delivered in line with
DRE423
statutory deadlines
DRE422

Page 155

38.20%

40.00%

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

Yes

n/a

Yes

Jonathan Idle

n/a

Yes

n/a

Yes

=
=

Yes

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

Yvonne Dawes

Jonathan Idle

Resources ‐ Legal and Democratic Services
WOP2

DRE344

Electoral Registration Officer (ERO) meets average national
REGISTER standard

Resources ‐ Policy & Strategy

WOP2

DRE572

Increase consultation response from under represented
communities

n/a

Establish
baseline

n/a

n/a

n/a

Tim Borrett

Work is currently ongoing to develop a suite of measures to understand the impact of our
consultation process on our community and how we can improve responses from under‐
represented groups . Proposed indicators include the following:
1) Total number of respondents across all closed consultations
2) Equalities distribution (in development) – this will measure the response rate by
equalities characteristics
3) Geographical distribution (in development) – this will measure the response rate by ward
or deprivation decile (tbc)
Both 2 and 3 above will only use citywide consultations with over 1000 respondents (eg
Budget, Adult social care etc) as the data source
It is anticipated that data will be provided in time for Q3 reporting.

Resources ‐ Workforce & Change
WOP1

WOP2

.BCP520

Increase the percentage of colleagues who would
recommend the council as a place to work

.BCP521

Increase % of colleagues reporting they have the right tools
to do their job effectively/efficiently

50.00%

n/a

60.00%

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

Data source: Staff survey. The previous staff survey was carried out in 2016/17 and showed
that 40% of colleagues recommend the council as a place to work. A survey was not carried
Stephanie Griffin
out in 2017/18. A draft survey for 18/19 will be presented to HR committee in November
and following agreement will be rolled out to colleagues for completion.

n/a

Data source: Staff survey. The previous staff survey was carried out in 2016/17. A survey
was not carried out in 2017/18. This is a new question for 2018/19. A draft survey for 18/19
Stephanie Griffin
will be presented to HR committee in November and following agreement will be rolled out
to colleagues for completion.

Corp Plan
KC ref

Code

Title

2017/18
Outturn

2018/19
Target

Q1 Progress

Q2 Progress

Comparison
over last 12
months

4.00%

n/a

n/a

n/a

Mark Jefferson, HR are working with Councillor Harriet Bradley to investigate pay inequality in the city and
Mark Williams will report back through the HR committee in May 2019 on findings and actions required.

n/a

n/a

n/a

Mark Jefferson, Information on the race pay gap will be published later in the Autumn, and will include an
Mark Williams action plan.

n/a

n/a

n/a

WOP3

.BCP525 Reduce the gender pay gap

4.10%

WOP3

.BCP526 Reduce the race pay gap

12.96%

Responsible
Manager

Officer Notes

Resources ‐ Council Wide
WOP1

.BCP560

Increase the satisfaction of citizens with our services (QoL)

Key:

n/a

Establish
baseline

Status Key

Tim Borrett

The Quality of Life (QoL) survey will run in Autumn 2018. Headline results will be available in
February 2019 followed by a full set of data in March 2019.

Improvement Key

Well Above Target
Above Target
On Target



Direction of travel IMPROVED compared to same period in the previous year

=

SAME as previous same period in the previous year

Below Target



Direction of travel WORSENED compared to same period in the previous year

Well Below Target

Corporate Strategy ‐ Key Commitments

Page 156

Empowering & Caring
Give our children the best start in life by protecting and developing children’s centre services, being great corporate parents and protecting children from exploitation or harm.
EC1
Reduce the overall level of homelessness and rough sleeping, with no‐one needing to spend a ‘second night out’.
EC2
Provide ‘help to help yourself’ and ‘help when you need it’ through a sustainable, safe and diverse system of social care and safeguarding provision, with a focus on early help and intervention.
EC3
Prioritise community development and enable people to support their community.
EC4
Fair & Inclusive
Make sure that 2,000 new homes (800 affordable) are built in Bristol each year by 2020.
FI1
Improve educational outcomes and reduce educational inequality, whilst ensuring there are enough school places to meet demand and with a transparent admissions process.
FI2
Develop
a diverse economy that offers opportunity to all and makes quality work experience and apprenticeships available to every young person.
FI3
Help develop balanced communities which are inclusive and avoid negative impacts from gentrification.
FI4
Wellbeing
Embed health in all our policies to improve physical and mental health and wellbeing, reducing inequali es and the demand for acute services.
W1
Keep Bristol on course to be run entirely on clean energy by 2050 whilst improving our environment to ensure people enjoy cleaner air, cleaner streets and access to parks and green spaces.
W2
Tackle food and fuel poverty.
W3
Keep Bristol a leading cultural city, helping make culture, sport and play accessible to all.
W4
Well‐Connected
WC1 Improve physical and geographical connectivity; tackling congestion and progressing towards a mass transit system.
WC2 Make progress towards being the UK’s best digitally connected city.
WC3 Reduce social and economic isolation and help connect people to people, people to jobs and people to opportunity.
WC4 Work with cultural partners to involve citizens in the ‘Bristol’ story, giving everyone in the city a stake in our long‐term strategies and sense of connection.
Workplace Organisational Priorities
WOP1 Redesign the council to work effectively as a smaller organisation.
WOP2 Equip our colleagues to be as productive and efficient as possible.
WOP3 Make sure we have an inclusive, high‐performing, healthy and motivated workforce.
WOP4 Be responsible financial managers and explore new commercial ideas.

Agenda Item 15
Resources Scrutiny Commission

Resources Scrutiny
Commission
6th December 2018
Report of:

Michael Pilcher, Finance Business Partner

Title:

2018/19 Period 6 Forecast Outturn Report

Ward:

N/A

Officer Presenting Report: Denise Murray, Service Director - Finance
Contact Telephone Number: 0117
Recommendation
That the Commission consider the Resources Directorate extracts taken from the Period 6
Finance Report that will be presented to the Cabinet meeting on 4th December 2018.

Appendices:
- Executive Summary
- Appendix A- P06 Budget Monitoring Report
- P6 Appendix 2, Resources

Page 157

Decision Pathway – Report
PURPOSE: For reference
MEETING: Cabinet
DATE: 04 December 2018
TITLE

2018/19 Period 6 Forecast Outturn Report

Ward(s)

n/a

Author: Michael Pilcher

Job title: Finance Business Partner

Cabinet lead: Cllr Cheney

Executive Director lead: Mike Jackson

Proposal origin: Other
Decision maker: Cabinet Member
Decision forum: Cabinet
Purpose of Report: The report provides update on the Council’s financial performance and forecast use of resources
during the financial year 2018/19. The Council budget for 2018/19 was agreed by Council on 20th February 2018 and
this report focuses on the forecast position against that budget.
The Council operates Directorate cash limited budgets and Executive Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate action is taken to contain both revenue and capital spending within the directorate’s overall budget limit.
Budget holders forecasting a risk of overspend should in the first instance set out in-service options for mitigation.
Where these are considered undeliverable or pressures cannot be contained across the directorate a request can be
made for the Executive to consider granting a supplementary estimate redirecting funds from an alternative source.
The Adults, Children’s and Education Directorate (ACE) has requested a supplementary estimate for 2018/19.
Evidence Base:
The Council’s overall annual revenue spend during 2018/19 is managed across a number of areas:
 The General Fund with a net budget of £361.6m, providing revenue funding for the majority of the Council’s
services;
Ring Fenced Accounts:
 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) of £119.9m gross spend, is ring-fenced, money received in rent in order
to plan and provide services to current and future tenants, and is managed within Communities Directorate;
 The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) of £346.6m, which is a ring-fenced grant that must be used in support of
the schools budget as defined in the School and Early Years Finance Regulations and can be used for any
other purpose. The grant is managed within the Adults, Children’s and Education Directorate;
 Public Health, a ring-fenced grant of £32.5m, must be spent to support the delivery of the Public Health
Outcomes Framework exclusively for all ages and is managed within Adults, Children’s and Education
Directorate.
Full detail for each of these areas is provided in the main monitoring report, Appendix A.
Cabinet Member / Officer Recommendations:
1.

To note the reduction in revenue expenditure of £648k from P05 forecast position to an overspend
against budget of £308k, although there is still significant pressures in Adult Social Care and Education.
(Appendix A, section 1).

2.

To approve the additional budget totalling £12.3m to be allocated to the ACE directorate, (as per
schedule in Table 2), funded by virements for £5.1m released from other ongoing budgets and £7.2m of
one off income.
To note the current forecast position with regard to the Housing Revenue Account and Public Health

3.

Page 158

1

4.
5.
6.

Accounts. (Appendices A5 and A7).
To note the current forecast spend of £164m against the capital programme budget of £244m.
(Appendix A, section 5).
To note the forecast movement in reserves of £32m (Appendix A, Table 6)
To approve the changes to the capital programme for 2018/19 as set out in Appendix A8.

Corporate Strategy alignment: This report sets out progress against our budget, part of delivering the financial plan
described in the Corporate Strategy 2018-23 (p4) and acting in line with our organisational priority to ‘Be responsible
financial managers’ (p11).
City Benefits: Cross priority report that covers whole of Council’s business.
Consultation Details: n/a
Revenue Cost

Net: £361.6m

Source of Revenue Funding Total approved revenue budget including
ring-fenced accounts

Capital Cost

£244.9m

Source of Capital Funding

One off cost ☐

Ongoing cost ☐

Saving Proposal ☐

Total capital programme incl. HRA

Income generation proposal ☐

Required information to be completed by Financial/Legal/ICT/ HR partners:
1. Finance Advice: The resource and financial implications are set out in the report.
Finance Business Partner: Chris Holme 21/11/18
2. Legal Advice: In relation to recommendation 2 Cabinet is asked to approve the supplementary estimate for Adults
children and Education Directorate and resolve this by way of ongoing and one off virements. As these virements are
not from reserves, the Finance Scheme of Delegation authorises Cabinet to make this decision.
In relation to recommendation 5 Cabinet is asked to approve the revised Capital programme as set out in appendix 8.
Any request to change the capital programme by adding or removing schemes, or by allocating additional items to an
approved scheme outside of the annual budget setting process must be approved by Cabinet under the Finance
Scheme of Delegation.
More generally the report, including the detail in Appendix A, will assist the Cabinet to monitor the budget position
with a view to meeting the Council’s legal obligation to deliver a balanced budget.
Legal Team Leader: Nancy Rollason, Head of Service, Legal 23/11/18
3. Implications on IT: There are no IT implications arising from production of this report.
IT Team Leader : Ian Gale, Head of IT 20/11/18
4. HR Advice: Expenditure on staffing is monitored on a monthly basis by budget holders. Managers are required to
manage expenditure within the agreed staffing budget that has been set for 2018/19.
HR Partner: Mark Williams, Head of Human Resources 23/11/18
EDM Sign-off
Cabinet Member sign-off
CLB Sign-off
For Key Decisions - Mayor’s
Office sign-off

Mike Jackson
Cllr Cheney
Mike Jackson
Mayor’s Office

17/10/18
26/11/18
6/11/18
5/11/18

Appendix A – Further essential background / detail on the proposal

YES

Appendix B – Details of consultation carried out - internal and external

NO

Appendix C – Summary of any engagement with scrutiny

NO

Appendix D – Risk assessment

NO

Appendix E – Equalities screening / impact assessment of proposal

NO

Page 159

2

Appendix F – Eco-impact screening/ impact assessment of proposal

NO

Appendix G – Financial Advice

NO

Appendix H – Legal Advice

NO

Appendix I – Combined Background papers

NO

Appendix J – Exempt Information

NO

Appendix K – HR advice

NO

Appendix L – ICT

NO

Page 160

3

APPENDIX A
1. General Fund
1.1. The Council is currently forecasting a risk of a £0.3m overspend on the current approved budget.
This is an improvement of £0.7m on the position reported at period 5.
1.2. The main areas of forecast overspend are Adult Social Care placements, which is forecasting a
£11.1m overspend, and Education £1.6m due to loss of Education Services grant and home-toschool transport demand. The risk of overspend for these three areas remain a concern as the
forecast outturn position for each has continued to deteriorate further. The City Growth,
Investment and Infrastructure service area is also forecasting the risk of £0.7m overspend due to
spend on vacant assets earmarked for disposal.
1.3. The (£12.6m) underspend on the corporate budgets relates, a reassessment of capital financing
costs based on projected capital spend, application of the Section 31 grant and contingency
specifically earmarked for service pressures which are now reflected within the service forecasts.
1.4. Table 1 provides an overview of the Council’s current forecast position for the 2018/19 financial
year. Additional service detail is provided for each Directorate in individual appendices.
Table 1: General Fund Forecast Net Expenditure
Approved
Budget
£m

Directorate

205.518 Adults, Children’s and Education
63.466 Communities
5.490 Growth and Regeneration
40.784 Resources
315.259 Sub-total
40.973 Other Budgets*

Revised
Budget
£m

Outturn
£m

Variance
£m

Variance as %
of Net Budget

218.240

230.571

12.331

5.7%

63.177

63.580

0.403

0.6%

5.596

6.170

0.575

10.3%

43.118

42.670

(0.449)

(1.0%)

330.131

342.991

12.860

3.9%

31.483

18.931

(12.552)

(39.9%)

356.232 Net Expenditure Total
361.614
361.922
0.308
0.1%
*Other Budgets includes capital financing & borrowing costs, and un-apportioned central overheads.
1.5. Cabinet approval is sought to effect a supplementary estimate across Adults, Children’s and
Education (ACE) to be funded from ongoing contingencies held and one off virements from other
general fund service areas, as per Appendix A9. Further details are provided in Table 2 below.
Table 2: Supplementary Estimate for ACE for 2018/19
Description
P6 forecast outturn (overspend)
Adult Social Care
Education
Public Health general fund forecast
underspend
Total Supplementary Estimate
Additional S31 grant
Social Care Grant
Third Party contingency
Subtotal one off funding
Capital financing

Nature of funding

11.100
1.600
(0.380)
12.320
One-off
One-off
One-off
Permanent

Page 161

£m

(2.199)
(2.000)
(3.000)
(7.199)
(2.500)

Social Care Contingency
Sleep-in Contingency
Forecast Resources Directorate Underspends
Subtotal Ongoing funding
Total Funding of supplementary estimate

Permanent
Permanent
Permanent

(1.325)
(0.718)
(0.578)
(5.121)
(12.320)

2. Ring-Fenced Accounts
Housing Revenue Account
2.1. There is a forecast underspend on the HRA of £3.728m due to staff vacancies and an underspend
on rechargeable services. Plans will be developed to utilise this underspend in line with the
service objectives.
Dedicated Schools Grant
2.2. The total Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), including amounts recouped by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency for Academies, is £346.6m for 2018/19 and £1.0m deficit carried forward from
prior year.
2.3. The DSG is currently forecasting an in year underspend of £1.1m based on Early Years pupil
numbers as at May 2018, though the final financial position will be determined based on pupil
censuses during the year. The cumulative position on High Needs remains at £1.6m deficit and the
long term sustainability of the High Need budget is being discussed with Schools Forum.
2.4. Public Health
2.5. The original Public Health business plan for 2018/19 assumes a drawdown of ring-fenced reserves
of £1.8m in order to deliver the business plan. Public Health forecast a balance year end position;
however this must been seen in the context of a 2.6% reduction (£0.9m) in the grant funding
allocated by Public Health England in 2018/19.
2.6. The service is currently exploring the mechanisms by which this will be delivered which may
include restructuring and reviewing contracts to ensure that it can deliver a sustainable offer that
meets the core priorities of the funding for 2018/19 and beyond.

3. Savings Programme
3.1. To balance the 2018/19 budget, savings totalling £34.5m were approved by Full Council. There was
also £8.7m of savings from 2017/18 which whilst were mitigated as one off in 2017/18 still remain
as an ongoing saving requirement for delivery in 2018/19. £1.6m of savings targets have been
written off in 2018/19 as they are undeliverable.
3.2. There remains a risk regarding £9.5m of savings where further work / mitigating actions are
required in order to deliver, of this £6.2m relates to savings within Adult Social Care, £0.7m for
organisational redesign, £0.5m for reduced education Services grant and £0.5m for review of fees
and charges and £0.4m for Facilities Management saving target. Table 3 provides a breakdown of
the realisation of the planned 2018/19 savings by directorate.
Table 3: Summary of Delivery of Savings by Directorate
2018/19
Savings
£m
Adults, Childrens and Education
Resources
Communities
Growth and Regeneration

2018/19 Savings
reported as safe
£m

11.520
12.511
6.001
3.908

Page
2 162

4.577
11.000
5.133
3.518

2018/19 Savings
reported as at risk
£m
6.943
1.511
0.868
0.390

%
60.3
12.1
14.5
10.0

Total

33.940

24.228

9.712

28.6

3.3. Members should note that delivery of savings is based on Directors assessment of whether the
savings agreed by Council have been delivered and whilst other areas of underspends and income
generation is being realised with budgets, until this is reallocated via a change control process the
savings delivery tracker and forecast outturn will not be aligned.

4. Risk and Opportunities
4.1. There are other financial risks and opportunities to the Council which have been identified which
could materialise during the financial year, these costs/income are not reflected in the forecast
and are detailed within the specific directorate appendices.

5. Capital Programme
5.1. The following table sets out the forecast Capital Outturn position for 2018/19 by Directorate.
Table 4: Capital Forecast Outturn position for 2018/19 by Directorate
Approved
Revised
Budget Directorate
Budget
£m
£m
33.200 Adults, Childrens and Education
8.600 Communities
133.500 Growth and Regeneration
3.500 Resources
178.800 Sub-total
18.600 Corporate
47.000 Housing Revenue Account
244.400 Total

Forecast
Outturn
£m

Variance
£m

30.821

28.002

(2.819)

27.881

16.723

(11.158)

121.358

72.235

(49.123)

8.775

5.613

(3.163)

188.835

122.573

(55.358)

9.045

2.500

(6.545)

47.056

39.226

(7.830)

244.936

164.299

(80.638)

5.2. The main areas of forecast underspend at P06 relate to the budget previously set aside for the
Arena £31.3m, Colston Hall £11.1m, £7.89m on the Housing Revenue Account and within
Communities - £3.4m on Energy and £2.6m across Health and Safety and vehicle replacement.
5.3. Following the Mayoral decision in September regarding the future use of land in Temple Quarter,
the Arena capital budgets have been removed and the costs written off. Budget adjustments will
be made in due course following the reports approved by Cabinet in September for the following
schemes: Energy Heat Networks expansion, HRA Alderman Moores and the Housing Company.
There are also some minor S106 / CIL schemes across directorates that are awaiting Executive
Director approvals that will add £1m to the capital programme.
5.4. Subsequent to the P6 forecast, further forecasting work has been done and the 2018/19 projected
outturn now shows a reduced capital spend of £162.6m.
5.5. Overall there are several factors which mean that the original Capital Programme as approved by
Full Council in February 2018 for 2018/19 should be revised to take account of these changes –
some of which have already been reported to Cabinet. Appendix A8 provides an overview of all
the proposed changes and Cabinet approval is sought to adjust the Capital Programme to the
revised budget. Further details of new funding sources and changes to the delivery of projects in
2018/19 is provided in Appendix A8.

Page
3 163

6. Debt Management
6.1. As at 30/09/2018, there was £21.2m outstanding sundry debt owed to Bristol City Council that has
been outstanding for longer than three months (not including Housing Rent, Council Tax or
Business Rates). This is slight increase of £0.2m from the previous month’s level. £13.2m of this
relates to debt owed by individuals made up of over 21,000 invoices mainly for social care.

7. Reserves
Overall Revenue Reserves Position
7.1. The opening revenue reserves are £104.4m, made up of £84.4m earmarked reserves and £20m
general reserves. Current planned drawdowns of earmarked reserves are £35.2 and assuming no
further mitigations can be achieved the current forecast overspend would reduce our reserves at
year end by a further £0.3m.
7.2. Any unmitigated overspend at the end of the year would be reduce the general reserves balance
as all ear-marked reserves are held for a specific purpose.
Table 5: Summary of movement in revenue reserves
Opening
balance

Forecast Net
Drawdown

Unmitigated
Overspend

Closing Balance

Earmarked Reserves

(84.420)

32.170

-

(52.250)

General Reserves

(20.000)

-

0.308

(19.692)

(104.420)

32.170

0.308

(71.942)

Earmarked Reserves
7.3. Opening earmarked reserves at 1st April 2018, were £84.4m in setting the budget for 2018/19
there was a budgeted net drawdown from reserves of £12.4m, made up of a £7.5m contribution
from MRP clawback and a drawdowns of £19.9m, giving an expected year end balance of £72.0m
7.4. The current forecast contributions are in line with the budgeted £7.5m. Drawdowns from
earmarked reserves are slightly higher than budgeted. This is expected as at the end of 2017/18
additional contributions to reserves were made where income was received in advance or planned
expenditure was delayed until this financial year.
7.5. Following the decision regarding Arena Island a current forecast of £12m has been included as a
provisional drawdown from capital investment and risk management reserves against the
necessary revenue reversion related to aborted project costs.
Table 6: Summary of Forecast year end position
Opening balance

Forecast Net
Drawdown

Closing Balance

Capital Investment

(22.479)

21.155

(1.324)

Risk Management

(18.239)

4.110

(14.129)

Ring-Fenced

(14.642)

0.939

(13.703)

Financing/Technical

(13.600)

3.771

(9.829)

Service Specific

(15.460)

2.195

(13.265)

(84.420)

32.170

(52.250)

Page
4 164

Appendix A2
Bristol City Council - Resources
2018/19 – Budget Monitor Report

P6

a: 2018/19 Summary Headlines
Revised Budget

Forecast Outturn

P5 £43.1m
P6

Outturn Variance

P5 £43.0m

£43.1m

P5 (£0.1m)

£42.7m

(£0.4m)

b: Budget Monitor
1.

Revenue Position by Division
2018/19 - Full Year
Revised Forecast Outturn
Budget Outturn Variance
£000s
12.5
12.8
12.8
(0.0)
6.2
6.4
6.4
(0.0)
8.9
10.5
10.4
(0.1)
10.7
10.8
10.5
(0.3)
2.5
2.6
2.5
(0.1)
40.8
43.1
42.7
(0.4)

Approved
Budget

Revenue Position by Division
ICT
Legal and Democratic Services
Finance
HR, Workplace & Organisational Design
Policy & Strategy
Total

2.

Overall Position and Movement

3. Aged Debt Analysis

2018/19 Forecast Outturn Against Budget and
2017/18 Resources Expenditure

Divisional Aged Debt Analysis - Resources
Finance

Legal and Democratic Services

HR, Workplace & Organisational Design

Policy & Strategy

400

350

2017/18 Expenditure
300
Outsannding Debt £000s

Revised Budget
YTD Expenditure
Forecast Outturn

250

200

150

100

P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9 P10 P11 P12

50

Forecast Outturn Variance 2018/19
£000
Revised
budget
£43.1m

ICT

450

50
45
40
35
30
25
£m
20
15
10
5
0
(5)

May
0.0



Jun
(0.1)

Jul
(0.2)

Aug
(0.1)

Sep
(0.4)









0

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

1to29_Days

Mar

30to59_Days

60to89_Days

90to119_Days

120to365_Days

1to2_Years

2to4.5_Years

Over_4.5_Years

Debt Age Range
AGE_RANGE

Key Messages
 The Directorate has shown an increase in forecast savings for P6 which follows the trend from P4. In P5 it
was reported that Legal Services would forecast the pressure for use of locums until year end (£0.2m) and
subsequent work has taken place to mitigate this additional pressure through assessing the resources
required and ensuring full income recovery.
 The Finance Division is reporting a forecast underspend of £0.1m which relates mainly to a forecast net
saving of £0.2m in Rev’s & Ben’s (£170m gross budget) mainly relating to additional recovery of
overpayments & administration saving partly off-set by reduced income on court fees and a forecast
pressure in audit £0.1m relating to increased cost of agency staff.

c: Risks and Opportunities

Page 165

4. Savings Delivery RAG Status

18/19 Resources Directorate Savings Target (£'000s):
This month
18/19 - Total
value of
savings
(£'000s)

18/19 Savings

Last month

18/19 Value at
risk
(£'000s)

Proporti 18/19 on at
Total value
risk
of savings
(£'000s)

18/19 Value at
risk
(£'000s)

Proportion
at risk

13,224

Top 5 largest savings at risk in 18/19 (ordered by size of
saving at risk)
Value at
Risk in
ID
Name of Proposal
18/19
(£’000)

No - savings are at risk

2,809

1,511

54%

3,156

1,858

59%

BE7

Organisational redesign including the council’s
senior management structures

737

Yes - savings are safe
SAVING CLOSED - CONFIRMED AS
'SECURED & DELIVERED'
NO RAG PROVIDED

9,201

0

0%

9,201

0

0%

IN24

Review budgets for fees and charges

500

1,213

0

0%

1,213

0

0%

BE23-B

*17/18 Rollover* Registrar's Office improvements

100

0

0

n/a

0

0

n/a

FP34-B

Subset of "Better use of developer contributions for
infrastructure improvements" (One off element)

100

Grand Total

13,224

1,511

11%

13,571

1,858

14%

BE13-B

*17/18 Rollover* Improvements to legal case
management system

n/a - represents one off savings or
mitigations in previous year

-1,218

0

0%

-1,218

0

0%

WRITTEN OFF
Grand Total

51

Mitigated 17/18 savings that remain 'due' for delivery in
18/19 (£’000)

505

0

0%

158

0

0%

Amount due from 17/18:

527

12,511

1,511

12%

12,511

1,858

15%

Amount reported at risk:

22

Key Changes since last month:
1. FP14 - In House Enforcement: This saving has been formally written off following agreement at Delivery Executive. Note this has also led to a reduction of £60k to the target
rolled over from 17/18.

5. Revenue Risks and Opportunities
Directorate

Division

Risk or
Opportunity

Risk
/Opportunity £

Resources

Legal & Democratic
Services

Risk

Shortfall in Registrars savings target BE23B for improvements (current target
offset by increased income)

Resources

Legal & Democratic
Services

Risk

Estimated shortfall on Land charge income based on Trend analysis and current
income

Resources

Legal & Democratic
Services

Opportunity

Resources

Legal & Democratic
Services

Resources

Policy & Strategy

Risk

Resources

Policy & Strategy

Opportunity

Resources

Finance

Risk

Description

Forecast savings for disbursements which are subject to volatility

Expected saving in Electoral Registration relating to printing, FM and non
Opportunity contractual overtime (subject to risk of snap election)

Net Risk
/Opportunity

14,274

90%

12,847

371,374

90%

334,237

(143,000)

70%

(100,100)

(284,000)

90%

(255,600)

174,000

50%

87,000

(174,000)

50%

(87,000)

Potential pressure within the forecast for Bristol Design re internal income
currently under review for central funding
Mitigate above pressure from current income review or Policy Iniatives reserve

Likelihood
(%age)

The unaudited LA errors in Benefits and Rents is currently below the lower
threshold suggesting no further in year penalty to BCC. Should a pressure be
realised through formal audit this would be mitigated from the reserve
provision set up for this purpose
Total Risk/-Opportunity

(8,617)

d: Capital

£3.5m

Revised Budget

£8.8m

Expenditure to Date

Forecast Outturn

£0.8m

Outturn Variance

£5.6m

9% of budget
14% of forecast

(£3.2m)

64% of budget

Performance to
budget

Gross expenditure by Programme

Budget

Expenditur
e to Date

Forecast

Expenditure to date

Current Year (FY2018)

Variance

£000s

Resources

Forecast

Approved Budget

%

RE01

ICT Refresh Programme

2,587

0

1,137

(1,450)

0%

44%

RE02

ICT Development - HR/Finance

1,700

236

1,362

(338)

14%

80%

RE03

ICT Strategy Development

3,067

272

1,956

(1,111)

9%

64%

RE04

Bristol Workplace Programme

756

253

493

(263)

33%

65%

RE05

Mobile Working for Social Care (Adults & Childrens)

665

59

665

0

9%

100%

8,775

820

5,613

(3,163)

9%

64%

Total Resources

Key Messages
The Capital forecast for ICT Strategy Development has been reduced in year and will be re-profiled in the
following years. Costs in year reflect the current ongoing works relating to cloud migration, end user
productivity and security. The recently appointed Director of Digital Transformation is reviewing the
remaining work streams in relation to value for money and resourcing to be able to re-profile the pattern
of expenditure.

Page 166

